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Electronically Filed

10/26/2010 08:22:55 AM

INFO i b i

DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

W. JAKE MERBACK

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009126

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
I.A. 11/01/2010 DISTRICT COURT
10:30 A.M. CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
PUBLIC DEFENDER
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintift, % Case No: C268351-1
) Dept No: 11
-VS- )
BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, %
#2508991 ) INFORMATION
Defendant. %
STATE OF NEVADA
SS.
COUNTY OF CLARK

DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of
Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crime of LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14
(Category B Felony - NRS 201.230) in the manner following, to-wit: That the said
Defendant, on or between July 1, 2010, and September, 2010, at and within the County of
Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made
and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

//
//
//
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COUNT 1 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the genital area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, and/or causing and/or directing the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON to
use her genital area to touch and/or rub the penis of said Defendant and/or placing the
hand(s) and/or finger(s) of the said the CAITLIN JEFFERSON on the penis of said
Defendant, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or

sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.

COUNT 2 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the anal area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,

passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

BY /s/ W.JAKE MERBACK

W. JAKE MERBACK
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009126

DA#10F17735X/hjc/SVU
LVMPD EV#1009142950
(TK10)
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AINF ~ FILED IN OPEN COURT

STEVEN D. GRIERSON
DAVID ROGER
Clark County District Attorney CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar #002781 NOV 09 20l

W. JAKE MERBACK

Deputy District Attorney . v
Nevada Bar #009126 BY, [‘) aarle /‘) ﬂ/h&w\
200 Lewis Avenue CAROLE D'ALOIA, DEPUTY

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT C-10- 2683511
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA AINF

Amended Information

A

1040279

THE STATE OF NEVADA, VT

Plaintiff,
Case No. C268351
Dept No. I

-V§-

BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON,
#2508991

AMENDED
INFORMATION

Defendant,

M Nt gt Nt vt ot et et vt "t st st

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF CLARK
DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of

ERN

Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, the Defendant(s) above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF
14 (Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366) and LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE
AGE OF 14 (Felony - NRS 201.230), on or about the 1st day of August, 2010, and the 14th
day of September, 2010, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form,
force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and
dignity of the State of Nevada,

/"
/
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COUNT 1 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: sexual intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the genital opening of the
said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew,
or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 2 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the genital area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, and/or causing and/or directing the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON to
use her genital area to touch and/or rub the penis of said Defendant, with the intent of
arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or
said child.

COUNT 3 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetrétion, to-
wit: sexual intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the genital opening of the
said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew,
or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 4 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years: by said

Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the genital area of the said the
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CAITLIN JEFFERSON, and/or causing and/or directing the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON to
use her genital area to touch and/or rub the penis of said Defendant, with the intent of
arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or
said child.
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject

CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-

wit: anal intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the anal opening of the said

CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or
should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.
COUNT 6 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the anal area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,
passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.
COUNT 7 - SEXUAIL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: anal intercourse, by; said Defendant inserting his penis into the anal opening of the said
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or
should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.
H
"
/
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COUNT 8 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the anal area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,
passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.
COUNT 9 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: fellatio, by said Defendant placing his penis on and/or into the tongue and/or mouth of
the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant
knew, or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or
physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.
COUNT 10 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject

CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-

wit: fellatio, by said Defendant placing his penis on and/or into the tongue and/or mouth of
the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant
knew, or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or
physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct,
COUNT 11 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant placing the hahd(s) and/or finger(s) of the said the CAITLIN JEFFERSON on the
I
7
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penis of said Defendant, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,

passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.
DAVID ROGER

DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

W St Al

W. JAKE MERBACK
Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009126

Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this
Information are as follows:

NAME ADDRESS

ANDERS, RUSSELL — LVMPD P#12877

BELLO, GERARD - LVMPD P#6793

DEMAS, MATTHEW — LVMPD P#6173

JEFFERSON, CAITLIN — 1525 PINTO LANE, #1-6, LVN 89106

EFFERSON, BRANDON - 1525 PINTO LANE, #1-6, LVN 89106

ATOWICH, TODD — LVMPD P#6360

LLOSTERMAN, OLIVIA - LVMPD P#13177

AMUG-JEFFERSON, CINDY — 1525 PINTO LANE, #1-6, LVN 89106

DA#10F17735X/mmw/SVU
LVMPD EV#1009142950
(TK10)

PAWPDOCSUNFO1701773503. DOC

000007




O 0 1 N o R W

o NN NN N N N N~ s e e s s s e
co ~1 &N o BEOWON = O DO~ Nt B WY —= DO

AINF

DAVID ROGER

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #002781

W. JAKE MERBACK

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009126

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Electronically Filed

11/16/2011 11:17:51 AM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintift, %
) Case No. C-10-268351-1
-VS- ) Dept No. II
BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, %
#2508991 )
Defendant. % SECOND AMENDED
% INFORMATION
STATE OF NEVADA
SS.
COUNTY OF CLARK

DAVID ROGER, District Attorney within and for the County of Clark, State of

Nevada, in the name and by the authority of the State of Nevada, informs the Court:

That BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, the Defendant above named, having
committed the crimes of SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF
14 (Category A Felony - NRS 200.364, 200.366) and LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD
UNDER THE AGE OF 14 (Category A Felony - NRS 201.230), on or between the July,

2010, and September, 2010, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the

form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and

dignity of the State of Nevada,
//
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COUNT 1 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: sexual intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the genital opening of the
said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew,
or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 2 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Detendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the genital area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, and/or causing and/or directing the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON to
use her genital area to touch and/or rub the penis of said Defendant, with the intent of
arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or
said child.

COUNT 3 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: sexual intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the genital opening of the
said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew,
or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 4 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said

Detendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the genital area of the said the

Cr'PROGRAM FILES\NEEVIA.COMDOCUMENT CONVERTER\TEMP\2336956-2759112.DOC
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CAITLIN JEFFERSON, and/or causing and/or directing the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON to
use her genital area to touch and/or rub the penis of said Defendant, with the intent of
arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust, passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or
said child.

COUNT 35 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: anal intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the anal opening of the said
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or
should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 6 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the anal area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,
passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.

COUNT 7 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: anal intercourse, by said Defendant inserting his penis into the anal opening of the said
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant knew, or
should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or physically
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

//
//
//
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COUNT 8 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant using his penis to touch and/or rub and/or fondle the anal area of the said the
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,
passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.

COUNT 9 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: fellatio, by said Defendant placing his penis on and/or into the tongue and/or mouth of
the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant
knew, or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or
physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

COUNT 10 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously sexually assault and subject
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, a child under fourteen (14) years of age, to sexual penetration, to-
wit: fellatio, by said Defendant placing his penis on and/or into the tongue and/or mouth of
the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON, against her will, or under conditions in which Defendant
knew, or should have known, that the said CAITLIN JEFFERSON was mentally or
physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of Defendant's conduct.

//
//
//
//
//
//
//
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COUNT 11 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14

did, then and there, willfully, lewdly, unlawfully, and feloniously commit a lewd or
lascivious act upon or with the body, or any part or member thereof, a child, to-wit:
CAITLIN JEFFERSON, said child being under the age of fourteen (14) years, by said
Defendant placing the hand(s) and/or finger(s) of the said the CAITLIN JEFFERSON on the
penis of said Defendant, with the intent of arousing, appealing to, or gratifying the lust,

passions, or sexual desires of said Defendant, or said child.

DAVID ROGER
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Nevada Bar #002781

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009126

Names of witnesses known to the District Attorney's Office at the time of filing this
Information are as follows:

ANDERS; LVMPD #12877

BELLO; LVMPD #06793

DEMAS; LVMPD #06173

JEFFERSON, CAITLIN; 1525 PINTO LANE #1/6, LVN 89106

EFFERSON, BRANDON, 1525 PINTO LANE #1/6, LVN 89106

ATOWICH; LVMPD #06360

LOSTERMAN; LVMPD #13177

AMUG-JEFFERSON, CINDY:; 1525 PINTO LANE #1/6, LVN 89106

DA#10F17735X/hjc/SVU
LVMPD EV#1009142950
(TK10)

C:'PROGRAM FILES\NEEVIA.COMDOCUMENT CONVERTER\TEMP\2336956-2759112.DOC
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FILED IN OPEN COURT

O R I Gl N AL STEVEN D. GRIERSON

CLERK OF THE COURT

AUG - 8§ 2012
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADABY‘M [Q—N

NORA PENA, DEPUTY 5 ; 5%

P

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
CASENO: (C268351

DEPTNO: JI

-VS_
BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON,
Defendant.

VERDICT
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 1 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE

(please chegk the appropriate box, select only one)
[Z/ Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age

(]  Not Guilty
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 2 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14
(please chepk the appropriate box, select only onej
{kGuilty of Lewdness With a Child Under the Age of 14
[0  Not Guilty

7 ¢-10-268361-1
VER
Verdlct
19268386

[T
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We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:

COUNT 3 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF

AGE
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
[] - Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age
Not Guilty
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows: )
COUNT 4 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14
(please chegk the appropriate box, select only one)
E/kGuilty of Lewdness With a Child Under the Age of 14
[0  Not Guilty
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 5 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
[J  Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age
Not Guilty.
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 6 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Lewdness With a Child Under the Age of 14

IE/ Not Guilty
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We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:

COUNT 7 - SEXUAIL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF

AGE
(please check the appropriate box, select only one}
[0  Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age
Not Guilty
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 8 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF 14
(please check the appropriate box, select only one}
] - Guilty of Lewdness With a Child Under the Age of 14
@( Not Guilty
We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:
COUNT 9- SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF
AGE
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
{{d‘Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age
[0  Not Guilty
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We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant BRANDON MONTANE
JEFFERSON, as follows:

COUNT 10- SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEN YEARS OF

AGE

(please [;Iye the appropriate box, select only one)
Guilty of Sexual Assault With a Minor Under Fourteen Years of Age

[J  Not Guilty

DATED this 2 day of August, 2012

P et autl
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

6 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

9 Plaintiff,
CASE NO (C268351
10 V&
1 DEPT. NO. 1
BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON :
12 || #2508991
13 Defendant.
14
15
® JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(JURY TRIAL)

17

18

19 The Defendant previously entered a plea of not guilty to the crimes of

20 |[COUNTS 1, 3, 5,7, 9 & 10 — SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE

21| OF FOURTEEN (Category A Felony) in violation of NRS 200.364, 200.366; and

2||COUNTS 2, 4,6, 8 & 11 — LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDER THE AGE OF

23
FOURTEEN (Category A Felony) in violation of NRS 201.230; and the matter having
24

25 been tried before a jury and the Defendant having been found guilty of the crimes of

26 ||COUNTS 1, 9 & 10 - SEXUAL ASSAULT WITH A MINOR UNDER THE AGE OF

27 ||FOURTEEN (CategoryA Felony) in violation of NRS 200.364, 200.366 ; and

28 {3 Nolle Prosequi (befora trig) Bench (Non-Jury) Tra dury Trig)
/" O Dismissed (aher diversion) O Dismissed (during that) DO e
| ) Dismissed (belore trial) O Acquital O Aco.
< | £235.Guilty Piea with Sent {befors trial) (1 Guilty Ples with Sent. (during trial} [ Guilyy 1ec w - Se. LR
O Transtomed lorakiung s}~ 0] Convickon K convicion
000017
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11

12

13

14

16

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

COUNT 4 - LEWDNESS WITH A CHILD UNDEﬁ THE AGE OF FOURTEEN (Category
A Felony) in violation of NRS 201.230; thereafter, on the 23™ day of October, 2012, the
Defendant was present in court for sentencing with his counsel BRYAN COX, Deputy
Public Defender, and good cause appearing,

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said offenses and, in
addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, Restitution in the amount of
$7,427.20 as to Count 1, payable as follows: $4,480.00 to Victims of Crime, $1,000.00
to DA Victim Witness and $1,947.20 to Ciark County Social Services and
$150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testing to determine genetic markers, the
Defendant is SENTENCED to the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) as follows:
AS TO COUNT 1 - LIFE with the possibility of parole Iafter a MINIMUM of THIRTY-FIVE
(35) YEARS have been served; AS TO COUNT 4 — LIFE with the possibility of parole
after a MINIMUM of TEN (10) YEARS have been served, Count 4 to run
CONCURRENT with Count 1; AS TO COUNT 9 - LIFE with the possibility of parole
after a MINIMUM of THIRTY-FIVE (35) YEARS have been served, Count 9 to run
CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1 & 4; and AS TO COUNT 10 — LIFE with the possibility of
parole after a MINIMUM of THIRTY-FIVE (35) YEARS have been served, Count 10 to
run CONCURRENT with Counts 1, 4 & 9, with SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-NINE (769)
DAYS credit for time served. Remaining Counts — DISMISSED.

FURTHER ORDERED, a SPECIAL SENTENCE of LIFETIME SUPERVISION is
imposed to commence upon release from any term of imprisonment, probation or
parole. In addition, before the Defendant is eligible for parole, a panel consisting of the

Administrator of the Mental health and Development Services of the Department of

2 S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 C/10/29/2012
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24

25

26

27

28

Human Resources or his designee; the director of the Department of corrections or his
designee; and a psychologist licensed to practice in this state; or a psychiatrist licensed
to practice medicine in Nevada must certify that the Defendant does‘not represent a
high risk to re-offend based on current accepted standards of assessment.
ADDITIONALLY, the Defendant is ORDERED to REGISTER as a sex offender
in accordance with NRS 179D.460 within FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS after any release

from custody.

DATED this_2.9™ _ day of October, 2012.

£/ =

VALORIE J. VEGA—
DISTRICT JUDGE P

3 S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 C1/10/29/2012
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, Supreme Court No. 62120

Appellant, District Court Case No. C268351

VS,

THE STATE OF NEVADA, Fﬂ LED

Respondent. _
SEP 03 2%

CLERK'’S CERTIFICATE .

S b

STATE OF NEVADA, ss.

|, Tracie Lindeman, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Court of the
State of Nevada, do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of
the Judgment in this matter.

JUDGMENT

The court being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged
and decreed, as follows:

“ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.”
Judgment, as quoted above, entered this 29" day of July, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have subscribed
my name and affixed the seal of the Supreme
Court at my Office in Carson City, Nevada this
August 26, 2014.

Tracie Lindeman, Supreme Court Clerk

By: Sally Williams
Deputy Clerk

C-10-268351-1
CCJA
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgn

4202948
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, _ No. 62120
Appellant,
vs. FILED
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent. JUL 29 20%4

TRACIEX. LINDEMAN
REME G

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE CLERNAQF
W iV ek
This is an appeal from a judgment of conviction, pursuant to a

jury verdict, of three counts of sexual assault and one count of lewdness.
Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County; Valorie J. Vega, Judge.

Appellant Brandon Jefferson was convicted based largely upon
the testimony of his daughter C.J., who testified that when she was five
years old her father engaged in vaginal, anal, and oral intercourse with
her. C.J.s mother first contacted police when C.J. stated that her father
had forced her to perform oral sex on him. Detectives arrested Jefferson
and conducted an interview, during which Jefferson admitted to having
some sexual contact with his daughter, including oral intercourse. He
denied having vaginal or. anal intercourse with her. Prior to trial,
Jefferson moved unsuccessfully to have his confession suppressed.

On appeal, Jefferson alleges the following errors require
reversal of his conviction: (1) the district court erred in denying his motion
to suppress his confession; (2) multiple instances of prosecutorial
misconduct; (3) the district court abused its discretion in admitting
evidence of jail phone calls between Jefferson and his wife; (4) the district
court abused its discretion in admitting certain expert testimony from Dr.

Theresa Vergara; (5) the district court abused its discretion in admitting
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the testimony of Jefferson's wife and son as to C.J.’s statements; (6) the
district court erred in denying his request for a hearing pursuant to
Summitt v. State, 101 Nev. 159, 697 P.2d 1374 (1985), to determine
whether C.J. had prior sexual experiences; (7) there. was insufficient
evidence to support the jury’s verdict; (8) his two consecutive life sentences
constitute cruel and unusual punishment; (9) the district court abused its
discretion in failing to give his proposed jury instructions; (10) the district
court abused its discretion in denying his motion to dismiss counsel and
appoint new counsel; and (11) cumulative error. Because we conclude that
any. error that occurred in this case was harmless, we affirm the judgment
of conviction.

The district court did not err in denying Jefferson’s motion to suppress his
confession '

Jefferson argues that the disi‘;rict court erred in denying his
motion to suppress the statements he made to law enforcement. He
argues that his confession was involuntary because he was subjected to
repeated and prolonged questiohing, as well as deceptive interrogation

techniques.

“A confession is admissible only if it is made freely and
voluntarily, without compulsion or inducement.” Passama v. State, 103
Nev. 212, 213, 735 P.2d 321, 322 (1987). “To determine the voluntariness
of a confession, the court must consider the effect of the totality of the
circumstances on the will of the defendant.” Id. at 214, 735 P.2d at 323.
Factors relevant to voluntariness include: “the youth of the accused; his
lack of education or his low intelligence; the lack of any advice of
constitutional rights; the length of detention; the repeated and prolonged
nature of questioning; and the use of pliysical punishment such as the
deprivation of food or sleep.” Id. “On appeal, if substantial evidence
SurREME COURT
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supports the district éourt’s finding that the confession was voluntary,
then the distriet court did not err in admitting the confession.” Brust v.
State, 108 Nev. 872, 874, 839 P.2d 1300, 1301 (1992).

We conclude that substantial evidence supports the district
court’s conclusion that Jefferson’s confession was voluntary. Jefferson, an
adult, does not claim that he misunderstood what was happening; he
responded cogently to the detectives’ questions; his interrogation began
with an explanation of his Miranda rights; it took place at a reasonable
time (9:00 p.m.) and lasted only 45 minutes; and, while one of his hands
waé handcuffed to a bar, he was free to leave any time for water or to use
the restroom.

Additionally, Jefferson’s argument that his confession was
rendered involuntary by the detectives’ deceptive interrogation techniqueé
is unavailing. Jefferson argues that the detectives misrepresented DNA
evidence by exaggerating what DNA evidence could reveal to them and the
time frame in which they would learn the information. However, “an
officer’s lie about the strength of the evidence against the defendant is, in
itself, insufficient to make the confession involuntary.” Sheriff, Washoe
Cnty. v. Bessey, 112 Nev, 322, 325, 914 P.2d 618, 619 (1996). The question
is whether the tactics “interject[ed] the type of extrinsic considerations
that would overcome [Jefferson’s] will by distorting an otherwise rational
choice of whether to confess or remain silent.” Id. at 325, 914 P.2d at 620
(quoting Holland v. McGinnis, 963 F.2d 1044, 1051 (7th Cir. 1992)). In
this case, such tactics would not likely overcome Jefferson’s will because, if
Jefferson was truly innocent, he would not be concerned that DNA

evidence would implicate him. Rather, he would know that it would

Supreme CourT
OF
MEVADA 3

©) 1478 <50




exonerate him. Thus, nothing about the detectives’ tactics appears
coercive or likely to produce a false confession.

Jefferson’s arguments that the detectives impermissibly
implied that the prosecutor would be informed that he refused to
cooperate, and threatened to take away his children are equally
unavailing. The detectives indicated that if the DNA showed something
different than what Jefferson had told them, then the DA would be aware
of the discrepancy, which would likely be bad for Jefferson. But that is not
the equivalent of a threat to inform the DA that Jefferson was not
cooi:erating. Likewise, the .detectives told Jefferson that, given the
allegations against him, he might not be able to be around his children for
a while. However, this statement was only made in response to Jefferson’s
own questions regarding his children. This was not a coercive tactic to get

Jefferson to confess, but merely a true statement of the current situation.!

lJefferson’s argument to this court appears to conflate two separate
legal issues—waiver of his rights pursuant to Mirgnda v. Arizona, 384
U.S. 436 (1966), and whether his statement was voluntary. To the extent
that Jefferson is also arguing that his waiver of his Miranda rights was
not voluntary, we conclude that argument lacks merit. “A valid waiver of
rights under Miranda must be voluntary, knowing, and intelligent.”
Mendoza v. State, 122 Nev. 267, 276, 130 P.3d 176, 181 (2006). “[T)he
question of whether a waiver is voluntary is a mixed question of fact and
law that is properly reviewed de novo.” Id. In this case, detectives
explained to Jefferson that he was In their custody and that they were
trying to clear up an investigation. They then read him his Miranda
rights, and asked him if he understood, to which he replied yes. The
detectives began asking him questions, and he responded without further
prompting. Thus, the circumstances show Jefferson voluntarily waived
Miranda.
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Prosecutorial misconduct does not warrant reversal

Jefferson argues that the prosecutor committed numerous acts
of misconduct that warrant reversal of his conviction. In assessing claims
of prosecutorial misconduct, this court must first determine whether the
prosecutor’s conduct was improper, and, if so, the court must then
determine whether such conduct warrants reversal. Valdez v. State, 124
Nev. 1172, 1188, 196 P.3d 465, 476 (2008). Reversal is not warranted if
the misconduct is determined to be harmless error. Id. Under harmless-
error review, errors that are not of a constitutional dimension will only
wafrant reversal if they substantially affected the jury's verdict. Id. at
1188-89, 196 P.3d at 476.

Jefferson argues that the prosecutor improperly argued with
the defense’s expert, Dr. Chambers, and denigrated his credibility by
offering the personal opinion that he was not qualified to opine as to how
police interrogation techniques can lead to false confessions. Because it is
improper for the prosecutor to state his or her own distrust .of the
testimony of the expert, Yates v. State, 103 Nev. 200, 204-05, 734 P.2d
1252, 1255 .(1987), we conclude the prosecutor committed misconduct
when she stated, “I have not heard one citation of any study, of any
documentation, of any conference. .. nothing that you've done that has
allowed you to come in and make the generalizations, and educate the jury
as you have today.” However, we conclude the error was harmless because
the court sustained the objection to that comment, and the State’s cas'e did
not rely entirely on Jefferson’s confession.

Jefferson also argues that the prosecutor committed
misconduct by referencing testimony from Jefferson’s son that his father
beat his mother. On cross-examination, when asked by the defense if his

parents fought, Jefferson’s son stated for the first time that his father beat
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his mother. The defense then questioned him further, which ultimately
resulted in him admitting that he never saw hié father beating his mother.
The defense also questioned him about why he never told this to the
prosecutors. On redirect, the prosecution questioned Jefferson’s son about
why he had never mentioned the beatings before. We conclude that the
prosecutor did not cdmmit misconduct because the prosecutor did not
solicit the comment, and only brought it up in an attempt to rehabilitate
the witness from the defense’s attempt to discredit him. Furthermore, any
misconduct or prejudice to Jefferson was remedied by the fact that the
court gave a curative instruction to the jury which stated that “[alny
allegations of domestic abuse between the defendant and [his wife] .. . are
not matters for your consideration, and shall not be considered by you in
any way.”?

The district court abused its discretion in admitting evidence of jail phone
calls between Jefferson-and his wife

Jefferson argues that the district court abuséd its discretion
when it admitted recordings of phone calls between him and his wife
during the time he was incarcerated because the calls held minimal
relevance, were highly prejudicial and contained inadmissible hearsay.
The State argues that the calls were relevant to the family dynamic, which
the defense put at issue, and more importantly, they contained admissions
from Jefferson regarding the charged crimes. The State admitted into
evidence and played for the jury four calls between Jefferson and his wife,
three of which had been redacted, but the fourth was played in its

entirety, over Jefferson’s objection.

£We conclude that Jefferson’s.remaimng contentions of prosecutorial
misconduct lack merit and we decline to address them.
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A district court’s decision to admit or exclude evidence is
reviewed for an abuse of discretion. Ramet v. State, 125 Nev. 195, 198,
209 P.3d 268,-269 (2009). We conclude that while certain portions of the
calls were relevant and admissible, the district court erred in allowing the
jury to hear conversations that held little relevance, were highly
prejudicial, and contained statements that constituted inadmissible
hearsay. For example, the jury heard the following statements from
Jefferson’s wife: “you touched her, it can't be fixed,” “you were planning on
doing this for the rest of her life, was she your little back up?” and
“remember when you said she’s gonna be hot one day, she needs to start
shaving her legs.” These statements were not necessary to give context to
Jefferson’s admissions, as the State argues, because Jefferson did not
respond to them with any admissions.

Furthermore, those statements, as well as other portions of
the calls, were highly emotional and inflammatory. In all four calls,
Jefferson’s wife was clearly distraught and repeatedly expressed that
Jefferson had ruined her and her children’s lives. She also used
inflammatory language, calling Jefferson a pedophile and stating he would
do it again. Thus, we conclude that the district court erred in admitting
certain portions of the phone calls because the prejudicial value
substantially outweighed the probative value. Nevertheless, we conclude
the error was harmless given the other evidence against Jefferson;
specifically, Jefferson’s confession and C.d.’s festimony.

The district court abused its discretion in admitting expert testimony from
Dr. Vergara as to the behauvior of perpetrators

Jefferson - next argues that the district court abused its
discretion when it allowed the State’s medical expert, Dr. Vergara, to offer

testimony that vouched for the.victim and improperly speculated as to

Surreme Court
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why a sexual assault viectim might have normal physical findings. Dr.
Vergara testified that her examination of C.J. revealed no abnormal
results, but that “normal is normal” with child sex abuse victims, meaning
that a normal examination is typical even though a child has been abused.
Because Jefferson did not object to that particular testimony at trial, we
review it for plain error. Valdez v. State, 124 Nev. 1172, 1190, 196 P.3d
465, 477 (2008). We conclude that the district court did not commit plain
error in allowing the testimony.

NRS 50.345 provides that “[iln any prosecution for sexual
assault, expert testimony is not inadmissible to show that the victim’s
behavior or mental or physical condition is consistent with the behavior or
condition of a victim of sexual assault.” Thus, Dr. Vergara’'s testimony
that child victims of sexual assault often have normal findings was proper.
This in no way vouched for C.J.’s credibility. See Marvelle v. State, 114
Nev. 921, 931, 966 P.2d 151, 157 (1998) (holding that an expert may not
testify to the veracity of another witness), abrogated on other grounds by
Koerschner v. State, 116 Nev. 1111, 13 P.3d 451 (2000).

Jefferson also argues that it'was improper for Dr. Vergara to
speculate as to how a sexual assault might occur without physical trauma.
Specifically, she stated: “[I]f I was going to approach a child with my
intentions, I can’t hurt that child. Because if I make that child cry, I will
never have a chance or opportunity to approach that child again. So, the
initial encounter with a child and their perpetrator could be hugging,
kissing, rubbing.” Jefferson objected to this testimony as improper
speculation, and the objection was overruled. We conclude that this
testimony was outside the scope of NRS 50.345. It went beyond a

discussion of how C.J.s normal findings were consistent with those of
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6ther sexually abused children-and became speculation on the behavior of
perpetrators in general. However, we conclude that given the other
evidence in the case, this was harmless error that did not “substantially
affect]] the jury’s verdict.” Valdez, 124 Nev. at 1189, 196 P.3d at 476.

The district court did not abuse its discretion in admitting the testimony of
C.J.’s mother and brother as to C.J.’s statement that her father abused her

Jefferson also argues that the district: court -abused. its
discretion when it denied his motion in limine to preclude hearsay
testimony from his wife regarding C.J.’s statement to her that her father
was sexually abusing her. Pursuant to NRS 51.385, hearsay evidence
regarding the statement of a child describing sexual conduct is admissible
if “[tlhe court finds .. .that the time, content and circumstances of the
statement provide sufficient circumstantial guarantees of trustworthiness”
and “[tlhe child testifies at the proceeding.” NRS 51.385(1)(a)-(b). In
determining the trustworthiness of the statement, the court shall
consider, without limitation, whether: “(a) The statement was
spontaneous; (b) The child was subjected to repetitive questioning; (c) The
child had a motive to fabricate; (d) The child used terminology unexpected
of a child of similar age; and (e) The child was in a stable mental state.”
NRS 51.385(2)(a)-(e).

In this case, C.J.. was not subject to repetitive questioning
regarding sexual abuse, but rather made the statement to her mother
after her mother told the children that she might be leaving their father,
and that they should not have any secrets between them. Thus, because
C.J. was the one to raise the issue of sexual abuse and it was spontaneous,
we conclude that the district court did not err in admitting the statement
because there were “sufficient circumstantial guarantees of

trustworthiness.” NRS 51.385(1)(a).
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Jefferson argues it was also impermissible to allow C.J.s
brother to testify about C.J.’s statement to her mother. Her brother was
also present in the room when she told her mother about the alleged
abuse. However, we conclude that C.J.’s brother’s testimony as to C.d.’s
statement is admissible pursuant to NRS 51.385, for the same reasons
C.d’s mother's testimony as to C.J.s statement was admissible, and the
district court did not abuse its discretion in admitting the brother’s
testimony.

The district court did not err in denying Jefferson’s request for a hearing
pursuant to Summitt v. State, to determine whether C..J. had prior sexual
experiences

Jefferson argues that the district court committed reversible
error when it refused to grant him a hearing pursuant to Summiit v.
State, 101 Nev. 159, 697 P.2d 1374 (1985), so he could determine if there
was another basis for C.J.’s knowledge of sexual matters. In Summitt, the
district court denied the defendant’s request to introduce a specific
incident of prior sexual contact involving the six-year-old victim in order to
explain why the child victim had “prior independent knowledge” of sexual
matters. 101 Nev. at 160, 697 P.2d at 1375. This court determined that
the defendant, upon motion, “must be afforded the opportunity to show, by
specific incidents of sexual conduct, that the [alleged victim] has the
experience and ability” to fabricate the crime. Id. at 164, 697 P.2d at 1377
(quoting State v. Howard, 426-A.2d 457, 462 (N.H. 1981) (emphasis
added)).
- In this case, Jefferson moved: for a hearing pursuant to
Summitt, in order to determine whether C.J. had any prior experiences
that might explain her knowledge of sexual matters. We conclude that the

district court did not err in denying Jefferson’s request because Summitt is
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entirely distinguishable and inapplicable to this situation. The premise of
Summitt is that the defense already has knowledge of this evidence and
believes it is constitutionally entitled to present it to the jury. See 101
Nev. at 162-63, 697 P.2d at 1376-77. Here, Jefferson sought a hearing to
learn whether such evidence existed. Therefore, the district court properly
denied the motion.

There was sufficient evidence to support the jury’s verdict

Jefferson next argues that there was insufficient evidence to
support the jury’s verdict. The standard of review for a challenge to the
sufficiency of the evidence is “whether, after viewing the evidence in the
light most favorable to the prosecution, any rational trier of fact could
have found the essential elements of the crime beyond a reasonable
doubt.” Rose v. State, 123 Nev. 194, 202, 163 P.3d 408, 414 (2007)
(internal quotations omitted). In rendering its deciston, the jury is tasked
with “assess[ing] the weight of the evidence and determin[ing] the
credibility of witnesses.” Id. at 202-03, 163 P.3d at 414 (internal
quotations omitted). Furthermore, in a sexual assault case, “the victim’s
testimony alone is sufficient to uphold a conviction” and need not be
corroborated so long as the victim testifies “with some particularity
regarding the incident.” Id. at 203, 163 P.3d at 414 (quoting LaPierre v.
State, 108 Nev. 528, 531, 836 P.2d 56, 58 (1992)).

In this case, C.J. testified with specificity as to four separate
occasions of sexual abuse—three in Jefferson’s bedroom, and one in her
bedroom. She testified that on each of the three occasions in the master
bedroom, Jefferson put his penis in her mouth, vagina, and anus, and on
the fourth occasion, in her bedroom, he put his penis in her mouth and
vagina. Finally, Jefferson’s own confession also supports the lewdness and

sexual assault charges as he stated that on different occasions C.J. rubbed
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her vagina against his penis, touched his penis, and put his penis in her
mouth. Therefore, we conclude there was sufficient evidence supporting
the jury's conviction because in viewing the evidence in the light most
favorable to the prosecution, a rational trier of fact could have found
Jefferson guilty of three counts of sexual assault and one count of
lewdness beyond a reasonable doubt. Rose, 123 Nev. at 202, 163 P.3d at
414; see NRS 200.366(1); NRS 201.230.

Jefferson’s sentences do not constitute cruel and unusual punishment-
Jefferson contends that his sentence amounts to cruel and
unusual punishment because it constitutes the remainder of his natural
Iife for conduct that did not result in the loss of human life or permanent
physical damage.
This court reviews constitutional issues de novo. Jackson v.
State, 128 Nev. ___, _ , 291 P.3d 1274, 1277 (2012). “A sentence does not
constitute cruel and unusual punishment unless the statute fixing
- punishment is unconstitutional or the sentence is so unreasonably
disproportionate to the offense as to shock the conscience.” Culverson v,
State, 95 Nev. 433, 435, 596 P.2d 220, 221-22 (1979). A punishment is
unconstitutionally excessive “if it (1) makes no measurable contribution to
acceptable goals of punishment and hence i1s nothing more than the
purposeless and needless imposition of pain and suffering; or (2) is grossly
out of proportion to. the severity of the crime.” Pickard v. State, 94 Nev.
681, 684, 585 P.2d 1342, 1344 (1978) (quoting Coker v. Georgia, 433 U.S.
584, 592 (1977)).
In this case, Jefferson’s only argument is that lns punishment
is harsher than a murderer would receive. However, given the fact

Jefferson was convicted of repeatedly sexually assaulting his five-year old
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daughter, we conclude that the punishment is not so disproportionate to
the severity of the crimes as to shock the conscience. Moreover, the
punishment serves the purpose of protecting C.J. and other young children
from being. subjected to sexual assault, and thus accomplishes an
acceptable goal of punishment. Therefore, we conclude that Jefferson's
sentences do not constitute cruel and unusual punishment.

The district court did not abuse its discretion in failing to give Jefferson’s
proposed jury instructions

Jefferson argues that the district court erred in rejecting his
proposed jury instructions. Jefferson sought to have the jury instructed on
attempted sexual .assault, as well as the possible redundancy of the
lewdness and sexual assault counts.

“The district court has broad discretion to- .settle jury
instructions,” and its decisions will be reviewed for abuse of discretion or
judicial error. Jackson v. State, 117 Nev. 116, 120, 17 P.3d 998, 1000
(2001). “This. court evaluates appellate claims concerning jury
: instructions using a harmless error standard of review.” Barnier v. Stdte,
119 Nev. 129, 132, 67 P.3d 320, 322 (2003).

Jefferson first argues that the district court was required to
instruct the jury on his theory of attempt because of the lack of physical
findings and C.J.’s ambiguous testimony. We conclude that this argument
lacks merit and that the district court did not abuse its discretion by
refusing to give this instruction. Although the defense has a right to have
the jury instructed on its theory of the case, here the defense’s theory was .
that C.J. fabricated the story and Jefferson falsely confessed; thus attempt
is actually inconsistent with the defense’'s theory and the evidence
presented. Cf Margetts v. State, 107 Nev. 616, 619, 818 P.2d 392, 394

(1991). As such, Jefferson was not entitled to have the jury so instructed.
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Jefferson also argues that the district court was required to
give his proposed instruction explaining that the State bears the burden of
proving any acts of lewdness were not incidental to the sexual assault, and
thus, if the jury finds lewdness charges to be redundant, then it must
return the verdict of not guilty. We conclude the district court abused its
discretion in failing .to give the instruction; however, the error was
harmless. While the defense was entitled to the redundancy instruction
as part of its theory of the case and it was a proper statement of law, the
jury only convicted Jefferson of two of the lewdness counts. The
prosecution ultimately agreed to dismiss one of those counts as redundant.
Therefore, while the district court erred in failing to give the instruction,
the error was harmless.?

Jefferson further argues that the district court abused its
discretion in giving jury instruction no. 12, which stated that the jury
must consider whether the State proved that Jefferson’s confession was
voluntary by “a preponderance of the evidence.” This instruction was an
accurate statement of the law. See Falcon v. State, 110 Nev. 530, 534, 874
P.2d 772, 775 (1994). Moreover, jury instruction no. 11 made it clear that

the State needed to prove every element of the charged crimes beyond a

3Jefferson also argues the district court erred in rejecting his
proposed instruction on deliberation, which informed the jury that the
verdict needed to be unanimous and each juror must decide the case for
themselves. We conclude that this was not an error because the
instruction was not related to the defense’s theory of the case and it was
redundant to other instructions given to the jury. See Earl v. State, 111
Nev. 1304, 1308, 904 P.2d 1029, 1031 (1995) (stating that it is not
reversible error to refuse a jury instruction that 18 “substantially covered
by other instructions”™),
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reasonable doubt. Therefore, we conclude the district court did not abuse
its discretion in allowing this instruction.

The district court did not abuse its discretion in denying Jefferson’s motion
to dismiss counsel and appoint new counsel

Jefferson -argues the district court erred when it denied his
motion to dismiss counsel and appoint new counsel. This court reviews a
district court’s “denial of a motion for substitution of counsel for abuse of
discretion.” Young v. State, 120 Nev. 963, 968, 102 P.3d 572, 576 (2004).
This court considers-the following three factors when reviewing a district
court’s decision: “(1) the extent of the conflict; (2) the adequacy of the
inquiry; and (3) the timeliness of the motion.” Id. (quoting United States
v. Moore, 159 F.3d 1154, 1158-59 (9th Cir. 1998)).

In this case, the district court conducted an inquiry into
Jefferson’s request. The court determined that Jefferson was unhappy
because he believed his counsel had not provided to him everything
obtained through discovery, and his counsel had not obtained his work
records. Jefferson’s attorney explained that the work records were not
relevant and that leaving the records with a client in custody is risky
because nothing is private in jail; however, he further expressed that he
would provide anything Jefferson requested up to that point. We conclude
that based on the factors above, the district court did not err in denying
the motion. The district court's inquiry demonstrates the conflict was
minimal and could easily be resolved. Furthermore, Jefferson’s request
was untimely as it was made only a few days prior to trial.
Cumulative error does not warrant reversal

Finally, Jefferson contends that cumulative error violated his
right to a fair trial. Cumulative error may deny a defendant a fair trial
even if the errors, standing alone, would be harmless. Valdez v. State, 124
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Nev. 1172, 1195, 196 P.3d 465, 481 (2008). “When evaluating a claim of
cumulative error, we consider the following factors: (1) whether the issue
of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of the error, and (3) the
gravity of the crime charged.” Id. (internal quotations omitted).

In this case, while Jefferson was charged with very serious
crimes, the issue of guilt was not close given the overwhelming evidence
presented by the State. Furthermore, despite the number of errors
Jefferson alleges, the majority of his contentions are meritless, and the
cumulative effect of the few errors committed did not amount to the denial
of a fair trial. Therefore, after reviewing the entire record, we conclude
that Jefferson’s cumulative error challenge is unavailing.

Having considered Jefferson’s contentions and concluded that
they do not warrant reversal, we

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

BRANDON MONTANE JEFFERSON, Supreme Court No. 62120
Appellant, District Court Case No. C268351

VS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

REMITTITUR

v
TO: Steven D. Grierson, Eighth District Court Clerk

Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:

Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE: August 26, 2014
Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court

By: Sally Williams
Deputy Clerk

cc (without enclosures):
Hon. Valorie J. Vega, District Judge
Brandon Montane Jefferson
Clark County Public Defender
Clark County District Attorney
Attorney General/Carson City

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, the
REMITTITUR issued in the above-entitled cause, on SEP (132044 .
HEATHER UNGERMANN
Deputy District Court Clerk

RECEIVED

AUG 2 9 2014
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IN THE E‘GH T H JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF_ CLARK

C-10-268351-1

PWHC
Petition for Writ of Haheas Corpus
4307220
Rrandm M. Jelferson _ l ” IH ||||| ’ |”|’
Petitioner, ToTToTT o T
V. -
PETITION FOR WRIT
OF HABEAS CORPUS
Rence Baker , (POSTCONVICTION)
Respondent.
INSTRUCTIONS:

(1) This petition must be legibly handwritten or typewritten, signed by the petitioner and verified.

(2) Additional pages arc not permitted except where noted or with respect to the facts which you
rely upon to support your grounds for relief. No citation of authoritics need be furnished. If briefs or
arguments are submitted, they should be submitted in the form of a separate memorandum.

(3) If you want an attorney appointed, you must complete the Affidavit in Support of Request to
Proceed in Forma Pauperis. You must have an authorized officer at the prison complete the certificate as to
the amount of money and securities on deposit to your credit in any account in the institution.

(4) You must name as respondent the person by whom you are confined or restrained. If you are
in a specific institution of the Department of Corrections, name the warden or head of the institution. If
you're not in a specific institution of the Department but within its custody, name the Director of the

Department of Corrections.

(5) You must inchude all grounds or claims for relief which you may have regarding your
conviction or sentence. Failure to raise all grounds in this petition may preclude you from filing future
petitions challenging your conviction and sentence. -

(6) You must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition you file seeking relief
from any conviction or sentence. Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause
your petition to be dismissed. If your petition contains a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, that
claim will operate to waive the attorney-client privilege for the proceeding in which you claim your counsel

was incfective.
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000039 -



(7) When the petition is fully completed, the original and one copy must be filed with the clerk of
the state district court for the county in which you were convicted. One copy must be mailed to the
respondent, one copy 10 the Attorney General's Office, and one copy to the district attorney of the county
in which you were convicted or to the original prosecutor if you are challenging your original conviction or
sentence. Copics must conform in all particulars to the original submitted for filing.

PETITION

1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently imprisoned or where and how you
are presently restrained of your liberty: E LY SVATE PRiSsN ELM _NevaDA

2. Name and location of court which entered the judgment of conviction under attack:
EVGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT QEPARTMENT T
CLARK COUNTY NEVADA

3. Date of judgment of conviction:_ (X TOBER 30 2012
4. Casenumber; C 268351

5. (a) Length of sentence: MANDATORY MINIMUM OF SEVENTY NEARS
BEFORE_PAROLE ELIGI@ILITY

(b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which execution is scheduled:

6. Are you presently serving a sentence for a conviction other than the conviction under attack in
this motion? Yes No

If “yes”, list crime, case number and sentence being served at this time:

7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: SEXUAL ASSAULT WiTH A
MINOR, UNDER FUUP-.TEEN_ LEWONESS WITH A MINOR UNDER FOURTEEM ,

8.  What was your plea? (check one):
(a) Notguilty +/ (b) Guikty (¢} Nolo contendere

9. If you entered a plea of guilty to one count of an indictment or information, and a plea of not
guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if a plea of guilty was negotiated, give details:

10. If you were found guilty after a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check one)
(@) Jury v (b) Judge without a jury

11. Did you testify at the trial? Yes No /

12. Did you appeal form the judgment of conviction? Yes &/ No

13. If you did appeal, answer the following:
(a) Name of Court: THE SUPREME COURT oF NEVADA
(b) Case number or citation: 2120
(c) Result: REMITT[TUR
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. (d) Date of result;_ AVGusT 26 201
(Attach copy of order or decisien, if available.)

14. If you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did not:

15. Other than a dircct appeal from the judgment of conviction and sentence, have you previously
filed any petitions, appli::}tions or motions with respect to this judgment in any court, state or federal?
Yes No

16. If your answer to No. 15 was “yes”, give the following information:
(a)(1) Name of court:_|J.S, DiSTRICT COVRT OF NEVADA
(2) Nature of proceeding:_PRE- TR(AL CHALLENGE To \NFORMATION

(3) Grounds raised: ABVSE OF DISCRETNMIN | NAZMISSABLE HEARSNY
PROsecuTvR  MiSLoNpueT T

(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion?
Yes No
(5) Result: DISMISSER WITHOUT PREJVOICE .
(6) Date of result:_ MARCH 26 2012
(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such result:

(b} Asto any second petition, application or motion, give the same information:
(1) Name of court; EiG HTH JuDiUAL DISTRICE CoveT QEPT. IL
(2) Nature of proceeding: MoTlon TO_DASMISS _COUNSEL AND APPOINT AL [E@NATE.

(3) Grounds raised: Mi5SiNG NS COVERY | NADEQUATE INVESTIGATION

(4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion?
Yes No
(5) Result: MOTION DENIED
(6) Date of result:_ NOVEMEBER (, 201{
(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such a

result:

(c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications or motions, give the same
Information as above, list them on a separate sheet and attach.
(d) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court having jurisdiction, the result or action
- taken on any petition, application or motion?

{1) First petition, application or motion? Yes No
Citation or date of decision:
{2) Second petition, application or motion? Yes No
Citation or date of decision:
(3) Third or subsequent petitions, applications or motions? Yes No

Citation or date of decision:

(e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any petition, application or motion, explain
briefly why you did not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your responsc may
be included on paper which is 8 2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may nol exceed
five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) Pe tiTIONER. HAD NOT £XHAUSIED CLAMMS (N STATE

COURT PROCEEDINGS ,
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17. Has any ground being raised in this petition been previously presented to this or any other
court by way of petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other postconviction proceeding? If
50, identify:

(a) Which of the grounds is the same: Mirardg \iokihon involuntary Confession procecuhr
pusconduct, Albuse of discrehan by Court double yeopardy _insufhicient evidence cumolatine
Qrror 1NADMISSABLE HEARGAY ) i i " i

(b) The proceedings in which these grounds were raised: Dis tRACT COVRT, Ap PELLATE COVRT

(c) Briefly explain why you are again raising these grounds. (You must refate specific facts in
response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 % by 11 inches attached to
the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) jneffecnive
ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL {0 EnttAusT STATE REMEDIES  To pRESCRVE ANY AND ALL GROUNDS

FuR FEOERAL REVIEW, State Covrt ajudication Coatrary to establshed Tedera] law,

18. If any of the grounds listed in No.’s 23(a), (b), (c) and (d), or listed on any additional pages
you have attached, were not previously presented in any other court, state or federal, list briefly what
grounds were not so presented, and give your reasons for not presenting them. (You must relate specific
facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 % by 11 inches
attached to the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.)
Pesyored bestimany Judicial bias. Jovernment Wntrusion, ackual jpnnocence. 1neffechve
4nal Counsel ] \he fechive agpellate Coul\id._'m«:{'{fd:ly(. Counse| farled to adiess 1sses .

19.  Are you filing this petition more than one year following the filing of the judgment of
conviction or the filing of a decision on direct appeal? If so, state briefly the reasons for the delay. (You
must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is
8 2 by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten

pages in length.)

20. Do you have any petition or appeal now pending in any court, cither state or federal, as to the
judgment under attack? Yes No
If yes, state what court and case number:

21.  Give the name of each attomcy who represented you in the proceeding resulting in your
conviction and on direct appeal: Bryan Cox kevin Seeed(Trig] consel ) Avdrey Conwiy
{appelate Counsel.])

22. Do you have any future sentences to serve afier you complete the sentence imposed by the
judgment under attack? Yes No v/
If yes, specify where and when it is to be served, if you know:

23, State concisely every ground on which you claim that you are being held unlawfully.
summarize briefly the facts supporting each ground. If necessary you may attach pages stating additional
grounds and facts supporting same.
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(@) Ground One : Pd:cjﬁ‘meris waver of Mirand o, was 'mVothhry

SupporJr'ma‘ Facks: (4ell your shory briefly withovt c£+f'n3 cases or law.):
(JeJcI’n};\cr hereby swears avers ard shates that Hee r.ouw,',,g 15 brve
and Correct Yo my ewn persmol Knowledge and bel}aF' ond ag bo any
makes Shaled upon belieF T Sincerely believe, ¥hem +o Yoe rve.
Furbher petibimer would iﬂCOYP’JTRJfﬁ"'\-e,rt:lf\ as \f Fu\le stated

the stpar-};n\r) facts of all other grovnds of Hs Pzﬁ‘r{m’\"lﬁ Sugport hereok,

On Seplember 14,2016 the pehtimer placed a Qi Call wibh +he ndent
to Fle o -M;S-"'W‘E) P%rsﬂ‘r\’s Report For s Wiz and two children . Derechves’

inshched the dispicher fo Serd the petthaner fo the M‘sj;ns persms Buceas,

(EraieiTH| pg. (UG lns.10-20.) Shortly Yhercather debechives met the pekioner

on the street and said 4hey were Yhere to file the Msafng pecsms Report
The detechives stated siace T was rldl'ngj i Yheir veohiele, T

Would need to be Vrdcoffed. The detechives did not adwvise the pekitner
he was under acrest, sus pecked in Crimes o odvised Mirando WO WNGS -

(EXthmITHZ pg.52) The pertioner had ro crsnal backgromd, and WaLs vnaware

The debechves were bemng decephve, or Prat they Knew wvere his J,?&m',\Y WOLS .+
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Arrivif\g at the Missina person’s Bureav, The petitioner was +aken o
a Small reem and 1eft o ponder. The petitioncr fell askeep when +he
de_l'ecfwcs'; returned rougnly, two hours later, The petitioner's wrigh
had been coffed o a bar the entice +ime, The detechves explained
that L was in their Custody, but could un-acrest me for OOOPcmh'ng

with the .mves'ﬁaqhor\. To this I resporded “OkAy.” The detechive

fhen advised the Mirardq, -Wam.mﬂ. (SEEExwmpiT# 3 Pg-2.)

As the interview progressed T came Yo realization that
the, de*f_c-\wc &’ were not 'Fﬁln'ng a M]ss}na Person’s Repor+l bout vere

Occus: : .
using me o Se&uq”y assavlting my own child. Detechives’ refused

to accept petihioners dﬁn;a\s' and I grew Frustrabed qu[ckly. Se, L

Intecrupted the detechive and Said I 3 not do the s, that's My Story,

as T was done SPCak;nS wibh them ot that point. (SE6 Extipir 44 pg. 20-22.)

However the detechive conhived +o badger me wWhile T cemanned Silent, and
resl-url'cd ‘H'\Q r“lnkrv.;e,w b\{ st; ns m< ‘H\Q quesfl-or\ Wh&H\er‘ m\{ d’uld

was a4 har.( SEE ExmpITE4 0g. 22.)

onee I was de?r:lvcd of mY Free Wl“ the del’td;VCS Spbbld

bave reod my rigkhsi and not be concerned aboot my embarrassment.

The detectives’ ‘\f-|n5+b the petitoner about b'tcns un-arrested to

| ver | : e [ oot
induce & warver 1s the equivalent o starhing mrf{rroso.)ﬂof\ Withov

ﬁdv'ls‘mg Mirarde, at all, and when T +ried to invecat € My Tight

to stop tal I'L;nj with them Pethmer was ignored.
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T he admitance of the incrlminahng Statements ot the petitoners

+r‘1ai Violgkd his rigkfs under the F"i{:‘r\'\‘ S'anr\‘ and Fourdeenth

amendments +o the U.S. Constitotion,

\WHEREFORE based on the above the petdioner's Convichomg

ond sentence Must ‘be vacated.
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(b)) Ground +wo: The Pc;'l:ni'iontr's Confession was the resyld oF

Improper 1nducement and impermissable threats

Sup +.r\. F . | ' o
porting acts: (Tell your Story bmcﬂy without c:#ma Cases or law.);

The Pe’r;-Honcr ht:rc,by Swears, overs and States that +he -Pollow'ma 1s e
and Correct to my personal knowledge and belief, and as o any makers
Stated upon belieP, T Se'ncerdy believc. them to be trve.

Further The pefioner would incorporate herein as it Rilly

Stated herein the supporhing Facts of all other grourds of +his petition
n Support herecof.

On September 14,2010 the petitioner was en%qgfc( n
Costodial mbermgation with two delecives’ accusing in of
Sexual assautt. Afkn several denials, The pekitioner asked 1£ his
Chidren would be faken away. The detechive's response to this

apecific queshon was © NO THEY ARE WITH YOUR WIFE. “ Silenct

ensuecl‘ and The pethoner never asked the detechive onother

queshon Pegard;ns my Chi Idren. The detechive restacted the {m*ﬁfroga'h.on
with stotements that my children were not safe with me, ond T

wanked to See them aga;(\ll had betHer COnchs.(SEE ExtiBITHS PQ-ZT.)

This +ype of eytorhien induced an admssion. As the ““R‘mﬁo‘h’“"\
progressed Ahe debechive Stated thot once the Districk Attorney reviewed
s nvestigatien he would Conclude The pehhener wos “ LYING. "

And that Fhe Districk Attorney would be concerned for other Onildren.

{ SEE ExmiBiT 46 pg.40.) 000046




The detechives assuronce of harsher +reatment From the Districh AH
orne
Y

Caused Fhe perbioner to admit to allegahion s described +o him

For c,lcir’t?i‘caﬁon‘ the deteckwes €xag 3erah;m-‘= about DNA evidence

Was a theme used at the ootset of the -;nkrv':ew which preduced no
admissions becavse ne Crime hod been Committed, Furthermore +he
)

detechves miskandled €35 Interview and as a resvlt +he Cour+

decided the Comp\a'urﬂ' \acked Carcomstanhal froth.

This be.'mﬁ an acual Fact the detechve s’ ad no 1e§.+immlf_

reason o theeaten o Seperate the pehhoner From s Children to
Gblain an admission. T n €5%encc +he de_#ed-'wes' knowing! y

ﬂ\anu{?ochrcd o C'}‘Ol“ac ng:ns{‘ +he .pc{-;h'or\e,r‘ }o effect an arrest.

The detective's tThreat fo 1w poSL. s own penalty By

ideen unttl he COH&SSCC}.,

SePera+; nG Yhe petihioner from s chm
& AHoch

Coupled with irdicabon obf SHffer p.m'tshme.ni- Lrom the Dishn

sobrat 10 fabricated Ceimes violated s I‘.l(bhﬁ' Yo

'FOr ref u‘éms Yo

The admitance of the incriminabing statement

remain '5.| lent-

ot the pe}]ﬁonﬁr's }ria) violated the Fibth, Sixth and fourteenth

amerdments of the U.D. Conshtution.

\VHEREFORE koased on e above he pekiimers

convichion 5 and Séatence myst be vacated .
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(C) Ground theee ! The prosecution committed miscondoct when -
(@) withheld evidence requesked | N
( b)'Impermissably led C.T's +es+£mon>,
(¢) Solictted perjured teshmony
(d) Tntrded the attorney-Client rebhonshp

Sopporﬁnﬁ focts : (Tell your story briefly without cihing coses or low.)

Pe—\‘-\h'oner hereby swears overs and stalts that the Pol{owmg is frve

and Correct o my own Personai lcrow ledge. ard belief and as to any

mabters Stated vpon belef, T Sincerely believe them o be frve.

Fur‘Hr\er‘ pe)r.nh'oncr would 'lnCorPO"O-JfC here.m as +F FU“‘/ stated

the Supporh ng Pocts of all other grounds of Fhis pehtion in Support

bhereof.

Bﬂld\f makr.m\ where the defense

for events of September
5.6,7.) The

e}t‘HOWL‘;

3 (@) A mo*;or\ n Lmne Was Filed For
requested Gny ond alf wideo, audio \'C(‘_ord;njs
Fovrteenth two Frousand- ten [ SEE ExtiBiTH7 P

Stake Pailed ‘o produce the ~ideo reCordur\s of the P
t a SUbsequcni' SuppressieN hearmg the
shng cle’rcc}nvf_ hat the video

proscou+or‘

ir\’furogal-lor\, A

Solict +ed -I'c&{'.lmon?t From The arre
ot B Pg. 15 lines 4 -10.)

« miauT BE" avalable. ( SEE ExH
se\ for Fou‘mg Yo obtan

The pehhoner later moved o dismiss Coun
ek informed The oehtiener of recent

BT HA p3-3 lines Y4-12.)

Foll dn'scovcry Wherein the w0

W addihns” Yo discovery. (S€EEE
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Even at that point the video was not produced and was matecial o the

petchoner's gu‘tH as +he defechives’ unﬁ‘a‘lrly teshified +hat the petihoner
was egxtended Cow{-csy ‘Qﬂd detainecl for Of‘l\/ Yorky - four e s, This

Prosecutor bad construchve know \co‘ﬁc. of +he video rf‘unS‘}Cd, ard withoot 14

the pc#il—ioncr covld not discredit the deteckives'.

3(b): The petchioner’s tral Stacked with C.T as the shate’s Secord wikness .
during direck examinahon, the Prosecutor Suggested answers wikhin the queshons
Fo prove +he pehhimers quilt, over Sustouned defense obgechon. There wa s

no indicaton €T was \'\Q\fmg dfficolty +esﬂ<r‘(t.n3 frobhfully, n fact many of

C.3'5 vesponses were VT pon'T know or NOLY To Gimuald acts, of knowledge.
Yheresf. CI's %-s-':;mn\/ was the resolt of \ﬂld:ng Yo Which the pefrhoner

vas Conviched { SEE ERMBITHID p9(5) at6, 317, 921,922 424,925, qz6, 933,.)
4 ! i .

3(C)'. The prosecutor knowmsly Selicited False *!'es*'t.mon\/ From LT when the

Queshon was asked had the pebibioner done anything else to CT. the vesponse
was *' No. 4 (SEE ExtiBiT #10 pges) 42 lines 26 - pq 422 lines 1-9.) when the
Queshom Was asked had C.T Seen the pelitioner's peris C.T onswened “No. ¥
(SEe extprttio py.933 bines 7-19.) Ths prosecuter 'lgmreci C.Ts answers

and repeated the Same queshon unkl She lied o everyone observing .
\ ' ch
The prosccu*mr solicibed further Colse -les\'lmoml Fom detechve kolowic

when e Clsked' +he qucg‘.»lo‘n WwWas a -porensiic, 'in-{er\‘ﬂCW COY\dUc.{'fcl Wl"k c.7,

the detechve hied aboot o moter matertal o whebher CT Pabricated charges

agan st the pekioner and answered “YES.” ((SEE ExHiBIT I Pyls) W5b- 1157.)
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iKnown to +he prosecuter was this teshimony was False. (SEEEwHBITH 2 05. 65 lines 1-7.)

i dhe Jurors' believed Fhat the de_.‘rtcﬁvts‘ ook prccau{“'loﬂs +o avaid a false d!'SdOSUrt

When there was evidence not-presented o prove othernise, the pekibioner was denad

o faur trial and Convicked wikh pecjured teshmony.

3[(d) The prosecvtor intruded into the otorney- Client relabinship a5 the

Court heard the pehhoner on @ Pro-52 Mchion ta -dismiss counsel, The

Prosecutor Invaded into q-oauemem*“ An an unsolictted opposihion agoanst

the pe}tlhloncr‘, Litrerly Cor\dovl\ma pd:tHoner‘:s trial Ccovnse l's reluctance Fo
trad |

Produce dl.SCovcry ~and develop Q, worki ng relah‘ov\.s'kip Yo best prepare for

(SEE extuBiT 4 '3 lines {2-18 Pﬁ-t'o) Thes dt'sparagtmen-l' contributed o

the petikioner be'ms represented by netlechve trial counsel . (SEE EXHBITHE IS pge 6 lines 7-20.)

The Four Seperale incidents of prosecotonal misconduct de prived

the petihimer of s Fi F'Hr\.svud’h andl Four beentrh amend ments

under the U.S. Conshduhon, dﬁen;lt"\S ths Irad unfour

\NHERE FORE based upon +the above the pe{-‘\-h‘mer's

Convichions and sentence must be vocored .
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(d) Ground four: The District Covrt abusad i+'S discretion when ;
(Q) The Court +a.m¥cd +the JU'Y

(b) admiHed nadmissable hearsmy

(C) Perml:Heol Jurors to learn pehhorer was IlnCarcarakd\

Suppor):lng facks :(%e\) your Sﬂ}ory bf‘.tcmy w.ﬁhou‘l‘ C\Hn9 Coses or law.):

pc}'tjr;oncr hereby Swears, Overs ond states that the (:ollo\o\;mf) s true

and Correct to My own personal Krowledge and belief and as to any
matters Stated upon belicP, T Sincerely believe them to be true.

Furlrker‘ pel:a+;uner would ;‘ncmpomlt herean Qs i f Pu\lxj stated

herein the ‘5upp(;'{t}-|ﬂ3 facts of all other grourds of +his pehition in

SUPPOH' hereof .

Y(a) The pehtioner's r'tgh’r Yo adnal by -;mgnr‘-{a\ Jury Was violated

when danS voir dire, oF a po‘mrﬂ}\ou\ Jury the Jury panel wos erposed

to the district coord's 'prochs}onal view of the pogolar opinion Yor

" CHILD MOLESTATION. " ( SEE ExtiBITH 1Y pg. 580 lines 2-7.) The court

attempted 4o cotrect Wscdf However the court's State of mind Come

into pla\, with pojfcn-};o_l Jurors Thot '\rnpad'n\ and Pour Judstnf\enF

OF * CHILD MoLESTATIoN, ¥ 16 unlikely. The courk contammated 4 he

group a5 o whole rtrde}mﬁ Yhe pe,\-'.h}mr,ris convickions unconshivhonal .
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Y b)Y The district court erred 1n Qdm'lH;ﬂS +es!—imon\f from C.J's
mother ar}d brother recounHr\S cC.J's 'hCQrSJL\/ al[cgaiims of abuse
becavsé the Court did not Consder +he relubility of EACH Statement

INDIViDUALLY. C.T's brother was not prcﬁcr\a’ for Yhe \r\ear'm\rj, umﬂa;rly

PrCJudn'c,'mg the pe,l-;h.or\er,(SEE ExmBT IS pg-2 ) The <;lts’rrtc,\L Court also erred

" p(qc'm(j the burden of proof on the me;’rt'oncr to prove the hcarsa\/

Statements unrehiable when NRS. 51,385 clearly places the buden

on 4he state o hove hearsay odmitted 1nto evdence. . (SEE ExiBr#G ns.8-a)

The record also establishes that the mother was upset with
the pc}&iamr‘ and fransmitted those r\ega-’r;\fﬁ Feel;ngs indo smal]
Children ochvely Invol\fmﬁ T and her brother \nto o mantal dispute,
prompled them 4o choose sides in the attempt 4o refan custedy, and

Share “seceets.” Trli%f,}mg fhe motive Yo fobricate \ and the statement

Q\\eginﬁ abouse 'lo.ck'ma crrcomaonbial guarantees of 4rustworthiness .

(SEE €T # 17 pg.A30 hnes Z-17) Addihonally Fhe prosecuvtor expresscd

ra:oun’r] ng of hearsay n c,\os'mf) o.rsue,menJrs

dickrvel of C.T's mother's

( SEE ExtIBITH\Q pg. 1870 lines 16-22.) The hcarsay admiHed ot triad
ieft the pd-.tjrl‘nr\cr in the position of not bcl)mg afforded the opportundy

o ePFe.d'-ve(\/ Ccoss - examing C. I~
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The prosecuhionm admirted +his -}cs&imony recwr\h'nﬁ hearso.y after C.T. hod
been €xcused as a winess. The ch'anne.r- Should have been o fforded the
Opportunt~ .\'o Cross-etamine €T, on the inconsisyent Rs%imn\/ elicited
theough C.T'S mother, C.T's mother feshfied C.T rode no altegahon of

be'mﬁ Sub:)cck.d to anal pcnd'mﬁo’(\-(seg EXHBIT 19 pg 108y lnes 4-4,} C3J‘g

teshmony conflicked (SEE EXHBITH 17 pg.a3% lines 18-24.3 The pelitioner WA S,

chu.:Hfd of ths a\\egq,’f.lm, but pro bqbly would have been chu'lﬂed en-h'rclf

had +he petrhaner been g\.vcn the proper Oppoﬁ‘un'dy to duscredib €T Jeshmony,
TThe hearsay wos madmissable and the pe,{:lwtl;fh—or's Swirh amend ment

n'gbd' Yo effechive Cross-eraminaton was violated, Recallng slate withesses

is placmﬁ the defense .w\ an unfair ‘S&U(ﬂ:‘m‘

4(C) The Digrick Cowrt Abused +'s discrekion ' admithing @ Jol phone call bebween

the petihioner and C.T°s Mother becavse the durors Yearned OF the pehtioners
incarcerabion, ( SEE ExwBITH 20 P3-1142 lines 9-13.) This un consttubiona | “"."‘3

undermined +he pe:\:|+ianﬁr'5 r{g\d’ 10 be prc&umed innocent, as Yrere was no

imediate Suvation present for the ywors Yo be informed oF Hhis infurmation

The three -.mcjdenkg presentcd violoded Hre Qe‘r't’r;m"s FE F+h sk and

Fourkeenth amendments Under the 0.5, Conshivhion .

\WHEREFORE buged upon the above the pehitiomers
Convichiams< ond senbence. must be vacaded .
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(e) Ground 5 ¢ Double Jtomrd\/

Suppor-Flr\ﬁ facts I(Tc,u Your Sbry br;c,Plr w.d—honﬂ“ C.'t{—ina Cases or Iaw.):

The pethomer hCFbe Swears, avers and states that fhe Collov\',.nﬁ s

troe and Correck to my own persmal kmwpdgc and ‘belief and as to any
matters stated Upon belief, T S':ncere'ly believe them 4o be trve .
Forther Pelthoner would incorpoate herein as'if Fully stated

herein the Suppar'}:tng facts of ali other Sraunols of Hus pebdon n

Svpport hereof.

The ?&hh}mer wOs ISUlefol-ed +o dovble :3topardy when he was Caﬁv;decl
of theee Counts of Sexwal assavid, and dwo Counts of tewdne ss . based
on non- Speafic ev.tdﬂnc.c adduced at +rial. €T did not teshfy,
Spec:lﬁcqlly as Yo two seperate coonts of lewwd ne.s5. ( SEE EXHBITH10.)

while the state dismissed one count of lewdness for Tﬁdur\dancy,‘rhu
Nevado, Supreme Coyrt Fourd ecror '\:\;H‘h the "U'.SJ“.‘O'} Covrt for dem{mf)

the P&HHM\&I”S Jury instruchon oh redundmncy.t+ Is (mpossible to
ascerton two Seperate alleged incidents oF lewdness withoot €T 'g
SPCC.AF!.C‘ ‘lr\dapenclen+ -l'f,ai:;w\on\/. e perihoners Ef4Hh and fourteenth

amendment s under the V.5 conshivhion were vidated when I was Subyechd

to doukle -J.ccpzrdy ,
WHERE FORE loused, upm the akove Hhe
Pehitimer's Sentence and co v et on
Must be vocated .
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(F) Grouncj S'l)(i InSUFF;C;Cn+ evltdencﬁ {o Su,s{-q;n durY',s 90”'_7 _ﬁ‘dl‘nas

Suppm{-;nﬂ Facts ( Tell your S*‘ory br‘iePI\/ without C,.th'ng cases or law.):

The péiﬁ-l-l.mer H:rcby Swear s, Overs ord states that the P"“"W"\j 15 true

ord Correct to ™y own persora knowledgc and ‘beﬁepi and as to Qny

maters stated vpon belief T S[ncarely believe them Yo be true.
FU"H"ef, Petitioner wvould t.ﬂCOr‘pam‘Fc herein as 1"? puHY

skated herein the Suppor#-;nj facts of all other giourds of this
pel-l-}im n Support hereof.

AS presented In Porcgc;tng grourds, CT's +€S+.|mon\f was without independent

details. In foct C.Ts +e.s+imcmy was derived completely From }ead.mﬂ qucshm_g

ot Feced by the posecutor. The prosecubor treated €T in q hogtile Fashion

When She teshfied She ad not seen the pethomer’s genvals and forced
CT. to change her ’res%'umonY(EaneiTttto $3.433 hines 7-19.) CJ's +€S*.lmonf
Compared to the mother’s conflicted.

There awas ’ccs%'tmon\f feomn CT . that the mother prompted C.,
and her brother for “Secrets” to Gek out of the marriage wth pehtioner
wWhile re\-d-rimg Custedy “Fhe Digtrick Court Also allawed CT's brother o
testify withoot defermining 1€ +he vecounhng of CT's hearsay mef the
Criteria Seb Torkh within NRs, 61,326, The hearsay was admited afker

CT. had been excused, making Cross-examuation an unfacr process.
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The petihioner's statement was cOuced‘ defeckive s d;e,‘-q'mtc{ +he. pd"mne‘_
withoot informing him he was under arrest or Suspecked in crimes, The
delective s". lied akoot Hhe pehbioners costehal status to induwce +he Mirardg
wawer ond when he Hried fo invoke the right 4o Stlence he wwas ignered .
The delectives’ threatened to Seperate the pehbioners foamily onh | he Confassed
)

and assured even shlfer punshment from bhe districh aHvrne\/.

Despite CJ's 4es+'-mon7 the medical evidence proves penetration
did nof ocer, ard that €3S @xam revealed Non-specific findings of
Sexua) abuge. This evidence also undermines the Phys'lc‘m s “Normal is Normal *

&ﬂ‘lﬂwny becavse the “Normal emm/' Norma| Vanant © Was a Pactor tebt

UnCOl'\S‘IdCICd‘ and equovlly rial Counse] should have ;mpeqo\'\co‘ the phys;c;w(\
\N-IH’\ her own 'PeporJr w\r\'tclr\ was made QV(;.I‘Gb\ﬁ for this 4ral ([ S€E E‘AH{B(T‘#Z(.)

(SEE ExHBIT #24 p3.82) The prosecuhan orgued “Normal is Nocmal * tn closing .

Evidence not presented at fral was the detechves dilscoun'h‘ng

ms the abs'umpl';m Gin -ln(itc\en“' occured which o

CJ's den.ml.sl ond %\lou;

pre mec,c.wcc( qgem&q :mvolv]ns Crcod;f\g false
ea):ms whﬂ* C.J's mother Wos %ei\ms

mc:v\m;es, prm}zb'nﬂ J'rerm'moiojy and

Coercive ques’r;vr;mﬂ resubded in CJ, TEOp

low enforcement, and \what detechves expected Cl. Yo report, The fourdahion

of these Queams,',,ns are dpparent. (seE ExrBITHE 22 pgis) G 1Z,13,04,15.) Thes .7

ever made accusafins €T tord Jetechves the mother called police with them,

C.T. was ignored. T3, Was Sorced to Conform with the dedectives ard €IS (rother,
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The petctioner was deprived of evidence which Was crdical to the
deler m.tr\q,{:[m of his gu‘nH' or innocence. The Convichons rested pr'\mqr,]y
Upon {{m +354{m\0 of C.T. CT's credib'.l'n\y wos the central 1ssve 1n s
Case. Avadable evidence would hove yod great W“;‘gk’f in the asserhon
that C.Jts chshlmoﬂy was not trve. This evidence, Statement was not
used, and the Jury had no knowledge ot it There \'s o reasorable
Pobabuity that tad C.I's original Shikement been introdiced af trial,
The result would rave been different, The Nevoda Supreme Court ru\{ng

that Suebrcient evidence upholds the Convichims, violated the pehiioners

Fourteenth amendment ﬁghf under the V.3, Conghtuhon .

WWHEREFURE based upat he alowve +he pekitioners
Conv chms ond  Senterce must e vacoted .
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(9) Grovnd Seven: Tneftechve trial Coonsel violated +he Pe“i'oner's S
ard fourteenth amendments to the Us Constitukion Ohen

(@) Counsel refused to File mokians for 4rial.

(b) Moved to preclde C.J's Statement to detechves,

(c) Soded +o object fo prejudicial remarks mude by +he Courk,
(d) falled to Cross-examine C.T. with insnsistent Statement,

() fated to \npeoch medical expert with EMT reprt/ Medical regort

(%) Fated to move For Conkinvance 4o ;nvtshéquc, joul colls,

(c}) ?Cided to rarse the Corpug delich 550 at trial.
(k) Faded 4o rosse the iSsue of '\nsoFP{g;an evidencc afber 4nal.

(T) There ewsted irreconcilable conflict of indrest

SUPPOf’f'lr\g Rocks: (Tell your story br.|cFly wikhout dHng onses or law. )
The pefitimer hereby swears, avers and Stakes that the Pollov&uns (s
trve and correck 4o my own personal Knowledge and bclfc{?l and
05 to any matters Stated upon belief, T Sincerely believe them +o be

trve.

FUT_'H\CI‘) PCH'\'I'OMf,r‘ Would .lnCO\‘PO‘ra{-e, \’\ﬁl‘c'tn s “_p QUUY Shl‘-ed
herern the SUPPO(H(\S Facts of all other gramds of this pekthon in

Support hereof ,
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T(a) Defense counsel refused to fle a mohon in Iimine fwo Months

before $he pd\-;JrfJnﬁrB Friod +hat would have prevented the state'’s
Medical expert From ¥es¥i\?\f{r\5 outside their arey of experkise.
Gee (ExtBiTH 23.) 0n direct appeal the court held the stake's

expert went ovtside +he scope of NRs. 50.345 (EXHBITH 24 pgs @-9)
The pebitimer Subfered undue Prejudice becavse of Counsel’s unuilh'rﬁne,ss
to develop a WOfk;na reloabimship wikh Hae pel-;h.mer oand pregare o

+ral.

M(b) Trial counsel was ineSleckive for m\;mcj o omt C.T's shatement to
polce as i} was dantamount 4o her impeachment, The Cirst queshion
the progecohion asked was did someme touch €7 the response wog
Yes " (exwiBiT # 25 3.1 lines 22-25.) Which is different Prom
her orig(ml statement (EXHBIT #22 pg.14-) This Cannet be
Considered Sound strategy, Counse( abardomed Yhe pettimer's defense
that debechves’ forced C1 o Rabrieate ableqotims +o ePeckan

arrest, T+ appears Counsel wag W prepared to +ry Hus case |

F-ur\’\\er‘ Counsel mismnierpeted the statute and ‘lmpra,per(y
Shihed Unecessary burden Jo the petchoner to prove C.T's Slatement-

unrelable ( SEE Bt B8(T4 26 lineg 23-26.)
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7(c) Trial Counsel was ineHfeckve for fau ling to object move for o new :J“’)’, or

dec\ar]n5 a pustnal wWhen during vour dire +he cort stated * How many o you

LIKE CHILD MoLeSTATIEN T T AM NOT" GoiNG T0 GET PEOPLE RAISING THEIR. WANDS o T, ¥

(E*Hlﬁﬂ'#h\?ﬂ-sgb lines 2-7.) Counsel Should haye atempled 40 Correck

e Sitvahion @S the courks Slatement ts prejudiciod ' nature .

7(¢) Triad Counsel was ineffeckve for faling 4o impench © T with inconsishent
Statements C.3 made Yo dekechive s, the district court roled the
Shatement Could be used for rebutal or rReent folbrication. A s mentioed
oIS ’-ies%mon\/ conflicked with the out of et statement and the Cowt

Tded that edher defence o +re state could Supplement theie Case

with vt CEXMBITHF 12 lLines 18-24,) Triad Consel obvioust was unpregared -

7(e) Triod Conse) hod evdence that C.T's examning physiclan did not conduch

an accvrade observation, CJI'S Aisclosure. entaitted an assault within
Seventy-bwo hours of the pefdimer’s arresh, According 4o the physician
Hhat Ts Fhe Himeline for 0 Senlassavlt kit fo be adminstered. The
Phx{éac(an keshfied that the rape kit \was not requested, by dckd’ich,and
Specibically becnuse of delay fo the emergency rwom.(EWBITA 27 pyts) B75-27¢.)
Fhe EMT report votfies Hhat €T was imadiadely dranskeed to wgpal

shaff (Exarr #28 ) wibh allegations oF QsSautt 0N September |, 2010
trial counsel allowed +he Physican to be ewcusedy without conf’ f"“h.f\‘j

her with dhis evidence. 000060




T(£) Trial Counsel vis ineffective for Facling to move for Continvance +o 'mvesﬁgmle
Jaul phowe colis admed into evidence. There Was o' racord of twenty-one
P.\wué' calls, one of which C.3's mother .mf'or med the pethoner Huat +he
Prosecutor \Wos %rémﬁ her to hzs%\i\f, Yrat She Jusi‘ wonted me ‘m'meranq
She wished 4hey would offer me a deal * S0 T Could come hame in e

Neacs. TF lnvcsjfl'%Q’fEd and prtsen’feo\ +he pro&ec:uﬁuv\ would have found
+‘r'rcmsdves .\\'\ an Olwkvdm‘d po.s.\’r.wv\ . —Tf-lCLl COUﬂSe,l'S W'L\lu'ma nesS 4o ev.c.ep-\-

+he slale's \,’Lfs.\m of evcn\—s,wﬂ'\mouf ;r\vcshgcﬁn'm Conshivbes -\r\CF&c{';vcmSS-

7(9) The stake relied solely of +he pekbimer's Confession bo SohckiRy Hhe
tewdness convickion: As menkimed C.F offe red NG hs’rimom( Yo
Svppoct that cmat‘ -'Tr"ch( counsel ‘(:Cu'red ) misc he Corpus de\l.(',“'\.

Issue ot 4rad based on the tock of cOrroboroAlns evidence.

7(h) Tral Counsel Favled 4o roise the \ssve Hhak insufficent evdence was
Adduwced ot trial. The fuck that the prosecutor ted 3% beshimany and

treated ¢ gg hoshile when she told +he troth and 0sed perjuced {-ts*:m;my

From credechives. Trial consel's Sarlure 3o establish that the dedeckives produced

a false complaint which explans ne medical Signs of abuse Conshibvles

neffeckive counsel. petilimer's drial comeel did LitHe more than Stand locétde hom

While the ’Prosecu{-\lng aHorneY's W.Pu\mk,d the court and the ;;ufors .

_23-
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(1) Durlna ihe Course Of drial Comsel's r*cpresen’ra‘r{ M an irreconcifable
Conkirch of interest dreveloped in Hhe form of a pro s< Mokiom
o "D;sm.u os comsel and appont alkerrate Comscl,(EXHIBITH 26 linc 19.)
(EXBIT #9 pg.3.) The petrhmer also wformed Counsel's Supervisor
ob the canflick in the aHempt to get relie (EKWB(T#‘ZS‘)
The pe.*-l.'{“l.mf\ﬁr alse filed a compland with 4hre Nevado,

Bar Asseciahion (Exh@TH#29.) hs all occured before the pekhimers

ol S Clearly conflict was present, and '+ s iike{y ot Counsel

was 1€55 intecested in pro%reo\:tnﬁ the p&iﬂ"lmer’s ‘inkecest or

e““Pe"\d.'ﬂg the hime NECESSAry bo prepore the best defense.,

The nine ncidents of wdue preydice vidabed +he the pd-.l’ﬂ‘dnefs

Sixbh and foorieenth omendments under the LS. Conshivhon

Yo e‘F{?ec}ivg reprtsmhﬂ} on ot CDUY\SG\

WHEREFORE oased uprm e aloove e pelchone’s
Comichms and  Sermtence must be Nackied!
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(h) Ground eigk{-: TneFfective Coungel on appeal

(a) Counsel Fouled to adequately present Miranda violabions

(b) Fa"tlfd|.{’o present +he Use of peryured testmony though detechve and ¢,
(c) fated to present prosecufor.la,l introsion into the a{-lorney-clltenf celetionship
(d) Codled to present dhe Diskrck court Contaminated the Jury.

() Faded +o adequately present the use of indmissable hearsay |

(f) foiled o present Octwal innocence based om evdence not used at .

SUppor*‘m_CJ Facts: (fel) your story br‘:ePly without ching cases or lowr, ) ¢

The pedvhomer hereby swears, Qvers and states hat the ?o\\ov;mg Is teve ond
Correct 4o My oW petsanal \t-r\ow){p\gc ond ‘be,(ie:P( ord as o any moters Staked

vpom be“c?l I S;ncerc‘\/ believe them to be ‘roe
Further, petitioner wwould 'mcc;rpom‘c herein st fully stated hecein

the Suppov{m::)' Pacts of ali other qrounds of this pehtion in Suppert Yrereof |

B(a) Appeliate counsel omutted +the Fact trat vpon be'mg boardcuffed detechves

did nat inform ¥we petthmer raf he was under arr¢5+, Suspecked n any Cr;rrags'

M;romcicl V\arr('ngs,T\r{Ls proves deher}‘\vcs pmnr\ed 4o isolodt
hove tended moral supperd and that the

or adwised hum of
the pch%lmcr From Qnyone Who Moy

pd'ah‘on-er troly believed thal the debechves were stl\shns ham in Q:h.mj Q

U pon arrest, the po;\:lh.w\v( shovid have been g;vcr\

]'Y\-lss'lﬂ’o' pcrsMs Report:

Miranda, (Batipir #1 95.114% Ins. l0-261) (EXtiBm#2 p.52.)
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Appellate Counsel also faited to enlighten the covrt 4pat doring
;n%ermga}‘wn the pehitoner attempled to end the ‘mkrv]ew. but +he
detechves refused him Hrat right. The petitimer did rot restart the
in“er\;rcw. i+ was the debechve who i Fact osked a question -

(EKH!B[T%‘ q 99(5‘) '20-12,)

9“3) APpellalt Counsel did net prtScM‘ the PI'OStwh-(N\ knowu.ﬂﬂlY used Dtrjurccl

+€5'}~.mm~j theough Detechve katewich, CT was not Subject to a forensic
if\kr\;acw, much tike the proseculor detechive s assumed an inadent 6ccured.
Much ke the pro secutor= de:\ech.veé Pm\}ded T with dehu Is, and insisted

C.T, make a\ltaql-ltms over the dentols (ExHBIT# L pls) US6-1157.) 1€ +he

Jury believed the detechive’s \'€5¥.1wnxf,whcn evidence groves they Should not”

appellatz Comnsel Shovld have adressed 1he 1ssve (EsmBT 12 pg.es lns.1-7.)

Addﬂl‘om\ly‘ appelate Counsel Sated to dicect dwe court 4o ¥ne

Fack that the prosecution Suborned perjury oy forcing CT. 4o Change teshanony
to prove %u'tH' of the pehtimer. (EXHBIT H10 pg(s) 324 Ins 20 - Py-922-1ns.1-4. )

(EXtBIT 110 p3. 333 105,714, ). The prosccvtor, thiough repehtive Clucw'm'mf) '

preciuded the development of Pacts which resotted in False {'e_s\:\manT.
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B(c) Appeliate Gounsel Shoud have presented the (Ssue Hhot the asecon v
Culpable n the ‘nncf{’ec#:nvt assistonce of Counsel placed on the pekitimer
the heaclme 'tor a P 5¢ mohom to d:srv‘\qss reveals '\'naJ Comnsel s hes, lant

ko work with the pe#lh'rmer‘ and the prosecitor arqued in Cor\:Junclv{m qgo:'ﬂSF
the pekihioner (EXHIBIT F13 P9.6 lns,7-20.) At that pont the petihmer believed

he had no Counsel ot all.

R(4) Appellate Counsel Faded to recognize the most basic r.th’ a Criminal
deferdant has and present that issue on direct appedt. Te be tried beforc

an imearkia) Jury, and an imeachal court. The structural error of the

frial court infeching voir dire with Statements of personal opinion

| ) i ' MVQd SU e
‘“Vo\vmﬂ W CHILD MOALESTATION would have requureof the a preme

Court 1o reverse. (E\LHIBH‘#‘ 4 pg. 500 \ns.2-7.)

B(e) Appellake Councel did not cover the issve Hrat Fhe court Qdm:Hed CT's
brother's {'csjr.\mo‘ny without huv'mg hm present at the hear ny to debermune
the rd.qloldi#\f of hig individual recovntotion of CTS hearsiy statermnts,
(ExBITHLS 9.2 ) Appellate counsel Sailed to raise the ($sve That the

Prosecutor discredited C.F's mother's hearsay Stakements tn dGSung).\{ﬂ'\‘

Presented her as o wilness Yo recount hcursqy-('E&HtBiT# \3 pgq. 1570 (ns.16-22.)

prel\a’w_ Counsel also over\ooked the {ss\m tral the Pd:l*%m&r‘ Could not

odequately Ctoss—emm:ne .3 on rearsay Yot conflicked becouse &I was excused

as a wibnesss
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B(£) The perhoner was deprived of evidence that formed the bagis of
his de&nSt(Hna\' detechues’ convinced C.T. 4o fabreate be‘mﬁ abused |
: ‘+k; eds ol evidence does not Support” repeated abuse,or the “Normal
‘15 Norma] ¢ "re_:s{";mxy ond o,naucmmf' (sec exsgittt 24.) CJ, ond
the mother's -}cs’n'mm\, confhicled Gbadt wWhat was c\isdzs:.ec:ii and
The prosceotor dreated CT. wibh hoshlity $r denying being repeated Iy
Obused { s€€ Extia T ¥16 pg- 24 lns. 17~ Pq-922 Ins. H4.) Or ever 5&‘;'“5
the pekibimer's qenlals despbe muthiple Freavent abuse (566 ExmsiTao
Pq.433 1n5.7-19.)
Mpd\mh Counse) should hove presented actual ;nnocance
based on evidence ot intraduced] éw'ms tnal (SeEEtBIT 422 pys)q 23,15, )
Compourded wikh the State demanding 3. alder the testimony and the
iack of an accombe medical obwervation, That Gevers dhe False Complamd,
Appellate comsel's pecfurvance. el below an objechve standard | and|

the omitted issues fave o yeasmable probabilily of Success oh appeal |

The pehihimer was dened his Sudkh amend ment rght fo effachve counsel |

\WHERE FORE boused vpom the almve the pve,{’-l’ﬂ.U‘MI'j&

COY\\/‘\(‘A‘{OY\S and Sentence myst b< vocated
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(T) Ground Nine: Cumolative error on tral and Appeal

Supparh‘ng J{-\Qd—st(‘l‘dl YOUF'S{'UI'\/ brtc}lly \N.tH‘ou'}' C("h'ng Cases or law )

The petchmer would ;nmrpomjrc, herein as i Fully stated +he Supporh
orting

facts of afl other groords of s pertin n Support heceof

As Shown in the 1[oregom3 Jrounds Fhe petibimer’s Convickion
lons

lollowed  Seveca) Constrhyhanal errors. The trial courk made q blagket

rul;nﬁ
l'Esamlur\ﬁ the .ro\;ab'«ii'}y et C.I's ‘brother ard Mether's  recont of hearsay

The trial Court's estrajudicial view of the Pachcular Crime For Which the
pe,(-‘n-h‘ancr Fomd' clurins voir dire was of a Condemn‘ma nature  that lowered
the Shite's boden of groof, To add inpry to 1nsult +he +rial urt denjed
the pehtimer’s right 1o ‘be presumed innoceat by way of °““°‘““”3 Fhe

Jurors to be 'ln%rmed of his Custodial Shtus, withoot refevant rrasen,

The prosecuter’s achens of w;+hhaldin5 evidence requested and
i'nu}hf) "knowk’dsff of the \[.Ideo P€C0rd.ms 'v\;\\*h out Mﬂk;na ks avaitable to

the Pd';{'l'me,r‘ is unacepptable, The prosecutors nterference with the Attomey -

Chent FEla‘n‘mskLp the Grtauemn+ that the paﬁ‘}l})mr‘S own recollechon of the
! P,
events had no real basts N prepanng o defense, or Hat the pehhomer had g

defense ok all ontibeled to the pektinee being represented tncfechvely .
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The pro&ecu+0F led C.T. iMo ‘I'(S{'l.mony that would Cor\v-td' the Pe,}:lh‘a}\er

and Supplred the eypeched responses over Sustaned Ob:J-ed-;on\S. Whea G775

*‘cs*\u;\'\.on\/ Was ‘mdependenl" of Suggcs{-‘ton“'f\nc prosecotor throug repehihive
qm{w{mﬁ demanded CT. alter dhe Yeshmony fo best Sut +he Stake.,
The prosecutor 'kno\,\;mﬂtr aMowed detechve kakowich 4o perjure himsel£ aloot

;H"‘e‘.\ﬂﬁw "‘QChf\i(‘UC’-S Uscd on C.7J. The PrOSCCUI'OT‘ 'ln*roduCcd h&lrsa.\/‘S'l’rq{-cg.lmuy

When T, Could not e Confionfed with Obvieus incensistenics.

Trial Cownse] was de-F;C;cn+ and Conflich ewsted the pe%lh;m&r voved
to dismiss Counsel and Filed obher Complants do which Counsel vefused o File
mokons, Odequakely, nveshgabe The Stale's nformahon, and utterly Failed to digred: §
7. and the physican with Gvailable evidence, Trial Comsel abandored the pehhioner
and Wis defense. Appellatc Counsel failed to present Viable claims on oppmll
while om;-H:mS S'ign'u.wft'canl' arguements for Several Claims presented on direct appeal .
Theee |5 evdence thad the debechves’ Mampulaked CT. into making alleguhons

ol\,er- +he def;lajsiqné ne;’r\'\er Traal or Appellake. Counsel addressed the tssve.

The pd;h-one,r Suffered Connichons never teshfied to Gnd the medical

e\/;o\{,nc,e does not "E)Uppad‘ CJ's %cg’}xmm'\y of a cecent attack, or repem+cc9 .

abuse. The €vidence 1S .mSuF‘};c:tc,h\'. The ends of Justice requre l‘c.\u.h.ffﬁ‘l.ln.
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The detechives’ engaged In interragabion before advising the pehbimen

of s rigu Yo Counsel or Self incrimination Warm‘ng)s when detechve
Demas lied fs the pekhoner aloout bémg sharrested, Yor COOPe,m,l";nE] wn what
the pc;[';‘\—\‘mr\tr %c,h'eved was Q M;a:ftng PRASENS' ;nves‘};gojﬂ\“‘\, Yo Secwre the

M-tro.rda Waiver. The delechives admd Yo not .Inrorm:na the pd;h'me,r of his

arrest or any other formalihes once he was o\dq'mec(’ on the Street,

When the pe{"th;:ner bred 4o invoke his Y"lg\\* Yo S lence, e debeckve ‘9"“‘3‘!‘

hem and resfarted the interview With @ q““"}“m reqwd:"ﬂ His chid:

The delectives Theatened 1§ the perihoner did not Confess, they
woold Sepente Vo Fom Yus famly, 6rd when he dd ke an adassion
the detechves Shated that the Dishrick Abtorney would Punish me even more
for LyinG To Fhem. The shabe of Newda admited the Sokement and violuded
the petitioner's r'tgb\i' do a four4rol. Cumulahive eror Mas denied the Pd;h‘w,r

his Fifth, Sukh ond Fourkeenth omendments, ond T fove Suffered behird popuiar

Opinion resolting ‘n a Senkence that s Crvel ond unjushfed .

\MMR)RE \’;)U-Sec\ ‘\JPUY\ ‘H\ﬁ, aboove, The Qd‘l.ﬁoncr‘s
Compichons ond Sentence Tust be wacoved
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WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that the court grant petitioner relief to which he may be cntitled

in this proceeding.
EXECUTED at Ely State Prison. on the 25 day of the month of September

of the year 2014,
Bordon M LA aim

Signature oFpétttioner

Ely State Prison
Post Office Box 1989
Ely. Ncvada 89301-1989

Signature of Attorney (if any)

Attomney for petitioner

Address

VERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he is the petitioner named in the foregoing
petition and knows the contents thereof: that the pleading is true of his own knowledge, except as to those
matters stated on information and belicf, and as to such matters he believes them to be true.

Rvondm M.\ Mom

Petitiogér LU

Altomey for petitioner
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

1. Brandun M, -\r{qﬂf Sen , hereby certify pursuant to N.R.C.P. 5(b), that on

this 25 day of the month of Seplember , of the ycar 201 Y T muailed a true and

correet copy of the forcgoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS addressed to:

Renee Baker
Respondent prison or jail official

Ely slate Pr.tson, P.0. Box 1999

Ely Nevada  @4301
I Address

Steven B. Wolfson

Attorney General
Heroes’ Memorial Building - District Attorney of County of Conviction
100 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 897104717 200 Lewis Ave 3 Floer
Las Vegas, weyoda SAUSE
" Address

Aramdm M, %ﬁwﬂ
Signature tioner

-33-
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO: N.R.S. 239B.010

[, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE UNDERSIGNED
INDIVIDUAL AND THAT THE ATTACHED DOCUMENT
THAT IS ENTITLED: PETITON FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPYS

, DOES NOT

( PosT CONVICTIN. )

CONTAIN THE SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OF ANY
PERSON, UNDER THE PAINS AND PENALTIES OF
PERJURY, THIS, 25,DAY OF,_September 2014.

SIGNATURE: 4%ond M. %"0@"‘“"\

INMATE NAME PRINTED: Brandon M. Tefferson
INMATE NUMBER: 109405
ADDRESS: ELY STATE PRISON, P.0. BOX 1989, ELY, NV 89301
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108

A It was really soon into the interview, yes. 1 mean,
the interview was only -- |

Q You received a --

A -- 40 minutes-long.

Q Oh, I'm sorry.

A I said, the entire interview was only 44
minutes-long. It was five minutes into it.

Q Right. And that was at page 5, that section?

A Yeah, yeah.

Q You received a telephone call on Detective Demas's

phone while you were interviewing one of the other three
individuals at Sunrise Hospital; isn't that right?

A Yes.

Q And when you spoke to the 9-11 dispatcher, you knew
at that time thgt she had been speaking with Brandoen, yeé?

A Yes.

Q And you instructed the 9-11 dispatcher to tell

Brandon that he was going to the missing person's bureau,

right?
A Yes.
Q And your testimony this morning is that the building

located at 4750 West Oakey is the central detective bureau, as
well as the missing person's bureau, right?
A It was.

Q It was then?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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(EXHIBITHZ)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 52

EVENT #: 100914-2850
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON
Imean, ___ we treated you, did we treat you fairly and everything?
Hey, come on, man, no.
How, how did we treat you unfairly?
| just -
I mean, you're in a difficult position, we're in a difficult position.
It's — I, | just thought that | was coming down here cause my wife got mad at me.
And | was nervous about that.
She did get mad at you.
She did. She was mad at you, dude.

Yeah, Shé. she made the allegation before, we didn't

, you know, we probably — but here's the thing, A — I'm not about to explain
to you on the street, where your neighbors can hear what's going on. You have
privacy —

| understand that.

That would be

thanks guys.

How embarrassing is that. Qut in there, we arrest you, jump on you and say

you're arrested for

hey, when you guys came, um, did they

see you guys take my kids and stuff like that away too?

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ 1SDAWord 07 000074




 (EXHIBITH3) r__

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMEN
PAGE 2 .
N EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON
Q:  Okay, . (Both talking) .

Yeah.

Q: Okay. That, that's what it—it, it doesn’t mean we can't, you know un-arrest you
either as well. We're tryin’ to clear up a, an investigatipn some are made.

A: Okay.

Q: But basically because you're technically in our custody and that you're
handcuffed to a bar, happens to a lot of these. Okay?

A: Okay.

Q: You have the right to remain silent. Anything you say gam be used against you in
a court of law. You have the right to the presence of attorney. If you can't afford
attorney, one will be appointed before and during questioning. Do you
understand these rights?

A Yes.

Okay. Um, alright. Basically earlier today with your—or an

O

argument with your wife?

(Both talking). Not even.
Not even?
Not even.

What was it about.

> 0 » O >

She came to me with a business card for a, a job called Easter Seals. And um

asked me did she want me to throw the card away, and |, | ignored her.

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ ISD/AWord 07 0 O 0 0 7 5




(EXHIBIT $4)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 20
EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON
We have that monster we were talking about earlier. Because there is nobody
who is going to sit here and tell us that didn’t happen, you know that didn't
happen, that didn't happen, that didn't happen when you we have proof of it.
Because if they can sit there and lie to our face and act—show absolutely no

remorse, we know that, that person in—in that chair—

--is not a good person. And they're—they're not—and that's what happens when
we show them their DNA. What is—what is the guy telling me after | show him?
You know, | made a mistake. It's kind—then I'm kind of like, now you're telling
me. |—I know you made a mistake. We had your proof. The guy is telling me

he’s sorry but he's not sorry. He's sorry he got caught.

Aad wiife thabitems. Subjesttells mie iter bstow il tid sus—

Brandon.

Yeah, it's like |—you know what, | . I'm screwed but 'm telling you |
didn't do it.

Brand—

That's my story.

--there’'s no either way that, the fact—here Brandon.

(No Audible Response)

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ 1SD/Waord 07 0 0 0 0 7 6




(EXHIBIT $#4)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 21
EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON

You realized that there are over 280 , you know bleeding
subconscious RoVérents qiﬂﬂ@”t{l’ Body gy Mditaté dedobysh. Okay?

(No Audible Response)

| don't need to see all 280, | can see about 8 of them. ‘Cause that's my job.
Okay?

(No Audible Response)

I—I would be nervous too and concerned. | would but yet at the same time you
35t @ thifik dbott yollr SAUGHTEE. Okay?

(No Audi;)Ie Response)

She’s going to want to understand why this is going on. ‘Cause that's the biggest
thing. Either you're a—you're a good father. "Cause and I'm saying but I'm
saying this with this assurity B&s4uge M 84¢s (e B8N, Like | said, we just got
your sample so | can't sit there and say it's back. What | try to do is give you the
opportunity because the fact that your daughter named you who she loves and
couldn’t say anything bad about you, you know she was brave enough to stand
up and tell me this as smart as she is and descriptive and there’s no way a 5
year old is that descriptive about sex acts. Okay?

(No Audible Response)

She could stand up and do this—this the one person—the one male figure she

loves must in life. And you're telling me that you're going to sit here and say, no

Voluntary Statement-No Affrmation~ 1SDMWord 07 000077




(EXHIBITEY)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
. PAGE 22
EVENT # 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON

I—you know, let me ask you this Brandon. When she tells us that this happened,
is she a liar?

I would—I|-—my—she piss me off with this right here, actually to tell you the truth.
| don’t know where she's getting this. Ever since you know—

You're not answering my question. I'm asking you this—

No, yes—

--Is she a liar?

--Yes, she's a liar.

You're saying you're five year little girl—

Yes.

--is a liar?

-__ with me, yes. With me—

She's lying about this?

- ah, performing orai sex? Yes.

She’s lying about that?

Q:
A
Q:
A
Q:
A
Q:
A:
Q:
A
Q:
A:

She's lying on—from , yes. Yes, | would say me, yes. ‘C'ause I'm--
Brandon, you're aren't even sure you--

| am sure.

You know what's good—it's—it tells me you're so a good person ‘aatise yerire

ot A gBEd ik

Voluntary Statement-No Affimation~ 1SDWord 07 000078




>

2 0 2 0

(EXHIBIT#5)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 27
EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON

.......

No. Not at this point, they're not. They—they are with your wife right now.
So,no but like | said, they're not going to—they’re not going to throw us—you
know, until they know—you have to tell us what's causing it. We know what
happened. Okay?

(No Audible Response)

In other words, once we know what’s causing it, we can figure out what will keep
this from happening again. Until we know what will keep this from happening
again, yaUS !i‘él% atchi 3878 with Yol figng P6# because you make bad
decisions sometimes. So we need to know what's causing those bad decisions
so that you can be around your kids in the future. If we don't know what's
causing those bad decisions we—how can we fix the problem?

RS amytSiE W te wib hy KIGY, iy,

So,-__ we want to know is what's causing this behavior.

|—what—| maybe—maybe um, what—what—me not having money. You know,
| having a beer every now and then. That's about it. That's all | can say.

What goes through you—

--when—when you ask her to come to your room? What goes on?
| don't ask her to come to my room, sir. | mean it's—! mean | give her a little hug,

a little kiss or something like that—

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ ISD/Word 07 | 0 0 0 0 79




(EXH|BIT#6)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 40

EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: BRANDON JEFFERSON
said. This—and then, then the DNA report's gonna come. And it's gonna say
yep, he was truthful about this.
No.

Okay, what do you wanna do about this ? The D. A.'s gonna look

at that and go , wait a minute. You know he, he would—he tries ta, you
know be the martar, and say one thing, and then he's lyin' about the rest?
Ha...how do | know what else he's ly...lying about? You know, are there more
kids whe might be in danger? | mean, you know—

(Unknown Sigh)
--even though this is—it's kinda fucked up, but it was with your daughter? Listen
Brandon--
I'm listenin’.
—-itd be worse or _______ scary if it was a stranger? If you were takin' little kids off
the street? That's their fear. Are you gonna be the guy to hang around the
schools pickin’ up peoples kids? And they wanna make sure you're not that
person? And we work those cases.
| understand.
We work those cases. And | tell ya those people will never have a chance, ever.
Oh man.
But they also can't convince us that they're just a person who made a mistake

either. Where you have that opportunity sittin' in front of you? You have.the

Voluntary Statement-Na Affirmation~ 1SDAWord 07 0 O 0 0 8 0
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(EXHIBITH 7)

prosecutor’s open file policy does not in any way substitute for or diminish the State’s obligation
to turn over Brady material.

There can be little question, therefore, that despite its “open file policy,” the
prosecution has an affirmative duty to seek out the previously discussed Brady material, regardless
of whether such material is in the hands of the prosecutor or in the hands of some other entity

acting on behalf of the State.

DEFENDANT’S SPECIFIC REQUESTS FOR BRADY MATERIAL

I am in receipt of the following discovery: Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department Declaration of Arrest, Event: 100914-2950; Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department Arrest Report, ID# 2508991; Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Incident
Report, Event #100914-2950; Cindy Grace Lamug-Jefferson voluntary Statement dated Septernber
14, 2010; Brandon Jefferson Voluntary Statement dated September 14, 2010; and, Caitlin
Jefferson Voluntary Statement dated September 4, 2010.

The following specific requests ar¢ meant to help assist the State in their duty to
find and turn over the required Material. This request is not in any way intended to be a substitute

for the gencralized dutics described above.

1. Any and all Child Protective Service Records to include any and all notes of
CPS workers or their agents or assistants. This includes notes of social workers and
employees of Child Haven or any other institution where the subject minors may
have had contact with CPS while involved with the case. This also includes all
information on all referrals to any physicians, psychologists, psychiatrists, social
workers or other mental health workers or health care providers.

2. Any and all records and notes of any mental health workers who have had
contact with the subject minor or other family members or anyone clse related to
events in this case,

3. Any and all notes, records, or photographs related to any physical e¢xams
done on the subject minor or anyone else in connection with this case.

4. Any and all records and notes from the victim witness office of the District

Attorney to include any and all records of any monetary assistance given to the
subject minor and his or her relatives or other family members or guardians. This

6
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( EXHIBIT #7)

also includes any benefits received in the way of services or favors or favorable
treatment. This is to include the names of any and all agencies and workers that
were given to any family member, relative or guardian in connection with this case,
or relevant to this case, This includes any services or benefits given to any witness
who is related to this case.

—

5. Any and all notes of all interviews of subject minor and material witnesses in
the case. To include any and all audio and video recordings of such interviews.
This includes any notes of interviews that were not later recorded, such as notes of
patrol officers, or notes of phone calls made to potential witnesses, or attempts to
contact such witnesses. To include any and all contact information known about all
material witnesses in the case, if not otherwise provided in the discovery given.

6. Any information on any criminal history of any material witness in the case,
to include any juvenile record, misdemcanors, or any other information that would
go to the issue of credibility and bias, whether or not the information is admissible
by the rules of evidence,

L= -~ B = S Y S O L

—

7. Any and all information known or which could be known by the diligent
actions of the State of any previous allegations of sexual misconduct made by the
subject minor or any material witness in the case. To include any and all
information or any possible false accusations made by the subject minor or any
material witness in the case. This includes as well, any and all information relating
to sources of sexual knowledge, outside the alleged events, which are known or
which the State should find by a diligent search.

P FC R 8

—_—
wn

8. Any and all information which shows that the defendant did not commit the
crimes alleged.

~ N

9. Any notes of any statements by the defendant, to include any notes of patrol
officers or other agents of the State who have had contact with the defendant, if not
given already in discovery. This includes any and all notes and reports of any
polygraph done by the State, including all of the raw data and graphs, preliminary
reports and printouts from such polygraph(s).

] T -
LR Vo B » ]

10.  All relevant reports of chain of custody. All reports of any destruction of any
evidence in the case.

11. Any inconsistent statements made by the subject minor or any material
witness in the case. This includes any inconsistent statements made to any employee
or representative of the District Attorney’s office.

12, Any and all notes and reports of any expert in the case, to include mental

health workers. This includes any preliminary reports or notes, not included in a
final report.

000082
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Q And you used - it's your digital recorder that you use; is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q  And you said that there would also have been a video recording?

A There might be. The room's automatically always audio and
video recorded, but our DBR recorder doesn’t always work either. That's

why we use an audio recorder just in case.

' Q So there's a video/audio recording system in the room that’s
permanently on kind of thing?
A Yeah. it runs in a loop.
Q Okay. But because that doesn’t always work sometimes -
because that doesn’t always work, you will use your own digital recorder?
A Yes. Yes.
Q  Did you do that in this case?
A Yes.
- Q= OKay: ~Did you eventually have-that-digital recording. capied-00t0.yi. 5
CD's?
A Yes.
.O' And did you eventually have that digital recording of the
interview transcribed into a statement? |
A Yes.
MR. MERBACK: Judge, for purposes of this hearing only by
stipulation of the parties, I'm going to move to admit Stéte's Proposed
Exhibit 1, which is the CD recording of that interview, and State’s Proposed

Exhibit 2, which is the transcript of that interview.

15
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(EXHIBITHg )

have my full discovery yet. | just — just things he said to me, | just — | don't feel
comfortable with him. _

THE COURT: What is it that he has not done?

THE DEFENDANT: Well, I've asked him to subpoena for some —
my work records from my job and he hasn’t done that. I've asked him to make
some phone calls to my family and he hasn't done that. And I've asked for my
full discovery. I've been here for almost 14 months and [ still don't have my full
discovery.

THE COURT: Making calls to family members would be a courtesy.
It's not part of his job duties. There is séme discovery that's recently arrived that
| was going to address with counsel today, but Mr. Cox, as to the discovéry that
you have been provided by the State, has that been shared with Mr. Jefferson?

MR. COX: Judge, there's been lots of visits. As far as any specific
item I'd have to look at it, and sometimes my memory fails but | do have my

discovery generally with me when | visit my client for him to view at any time. |

can telk youl am hesitantto simply give-copies,of-things to.just leave inthe jalle., fan-. oL,

simply because all my clients are generally in the same module, and
unfortunately just recently I've had two cases | had to get off of because people
see each other’s discovery and then, you know, there's allegations made.

So I'd like to make the discovery available. I'm very hesitant to
drop things off bécause | feel sometimes it creates a conflict, but I'll obey the
Court's order on this. ‘

THE COURT: So it's your standard operating procedure to meet
with your client -

MR. COX: Yes.
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34
pants.

Q Okay. You said he took off his pants partway?

A Yes.

Q Where did his pants go down to? How far down did
his pants go when he toock them off partway?

A Somewhere close to his knees.

0 Okay. And then you said he took off your pants
partway?

A Yes.

Q Okay, and how far down did your pants go? -

A All the way down to my shin.

Q Okay. And then what happened?

A He stuck his'penis in my -vagina.

Q Okay. When he put his penis in your vagina, where
was your dad? Was he standing up in the room, was he lying
down on the bed, was he sitting down, or was he doing
something else; do you remember?

A I don't remember.

Q Okay. Do you remember where you were when your dad
put his penis in your vagina?

A I was on the bed.

0 Okay. And where were you -- how were you on the
bed; do you remember?

A I was sitting.

Q What were you sitting on?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC 4 303-798-0890
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A His legs.

Q Whose legs?

A My dad's legs.

Q Okay. So, how was your dad sitting -- or how was
your dad when you were sitting on his legs? What was he
doing?

MR. COX: Judge, objection. Can we approach?
THE COURT: Yes.
(0ff-record bench conference)
MS. FLECK: Judge, can we approach one more time?
THE COURT: Yes.
(0of f-record bench conference)
THE COQURT: The objection was sustained, and Mr.
Merbéck's going to ask a new guestion,
MR. MERBACK: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. MERBACK:

Q So, Caitlin, you Just said that when your dad put
his penis in your vagina, that you were sitting -- you were
sitting on his legs; is that what you just said?

A Yes. '

0 Okay. So, what was your dad doing when you were
sitting on his legs?

A I don't really remember.

Q Okay. Do you remember what his position was? Does

that make sense; what position his body was in?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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A I was sitting.

Q What were you sitting on?

A My dad's legs.

Q Now, when you were —- you said that when you were =~
when your dad put his penis in your vagina, that you were
sitting on his legs; and then when he put his penis in your
butt, you were sitting on his legs. were you facing the same
direction both times, oOr were you facing different directions?

Y Facing different directions.

Q Which direction were YOUu facing when he put his
penis in your Qagina?

A Towards his face.

Q Okay. And then, which direction were you facing
when he put his penis in your butt?

A Towards his feet.

Q when your dad put his penis in your butt and you
were facing towards his feet, could you see what he was doing?

A No.

C pid he do anything else to you that time besides put
his penis in your mouth, and in your vagina, and in your butt?

A No. .

Q Okay. Are there any other times that you can
remember where your dad did scmething to a private part of

your body?
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A ‘ No.

Q Okay. Now, I'm going to use kind of a hard word.
Do you know what the word "specific" means?

A Yes.

Q Okay. What does it mean?

A Like at a certain time.

Q Okay. Do you remember any other specific times when
your dad did something to you?

A Yes.

0 Can you tell us about another specific time?

A When he told me not to tell anyone.

Q Okay. Can you tell us about the time when he told

you not to tell anyone; what he did?

A He stuck his penis in my vagina.

0 On this time, were you —- what_part of the house --
I'm sorry. Was this at the same apartment, the apartment on

Pinto Lane?

A Yes.

0 What part of the apartment was this in?

A The master bedroom.

Q And how did you get to the master bedroom this time?

A He told me to come in there.

Q Did he ever -- strike that. let me -- that wasn't a
very good gquestion for you. Once -- when you came in the

master bedroom this time, was the door open, or was the door

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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were you positioned in a different way? Do you understand
what that word "positioned” means? 1It's kind of a tricky

word. Do you understand what that means?

Yes.

It means like were you in the same spot.

A

0 Okay. What does it mean?
A

Q

So, were you positioned the same way when he put his
penis in your mouth as you were the time before?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Did he do anything else to you besides
putting his penis in your vagina and in your mouth?
A No.
Q Wwhat did he tell you about not telling anyone?
did he say?
A Don't tell anyone.
0 Did he say why you shouldn't tell?
_A No.
Q Was there ever a time -- did you ever cry when any
of these things were happening?
A Yes.
MR. COX: Judge, I object. We've been supplied
another answer the gtate's looking for.
MR. MERBACK: The question is, did you ever cry.
It's not suggesting the answer.

MR. €OX: I asked that the answer be -- the guestion

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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‘and answer be stricken.

THE COURT: The Court sustains the objection and
grants the motion. The question and answer are stricken. The
jury will disregard them. You may‘ask your next question.

MR. MERBACK: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. MERBACK:

Q When your dad was doing these things to you, how did

A Horrible.
Q How else did it feel?
A Disgusting.
0 Did you ever do anything -- when it felt.horrible
and disgusting, did you ever do anything because of that?
A No.
Were you ever upset?
MR. COX: Objection, Your Honor. Same objection as
previously.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. COX: Thank you.
BY MR. MERBACK:
0 How did you feel?
A Horrible.
Q Okay. Did you ever do anything when you felt
horrible?

A

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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0 Do you remember any other specific times that
anything ever happened?

A No.

Q Okay. When these things were going on, Yyou said
that your brother was in the front room playing video games;
is that right?

A Yes. B

Q Did your brother ever say anything to you --— Was
your brother ever concerned about anything while these things
were going on?

MR. COX: Your Honor, again, I think we've supplied
the answer.
MR. MERBACK: Your Honor, may we approach?
THE COURT: That was compound.
(0ff-record bench conference)
THE COURT: The Court sustains the objection as
compound.

BY MR. MERBACK:

Q When all of these things were going on, Caitlin, did
you -- was there ever a time when you cried, or did you never
cry?

A I cried once.

MR. COX: Your Honor, object. I ask that gquestion
and the answer be stricken.

MR. MERBACK: 1It's a different question. 1It's
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Q

is it hard to remember?

A It's hard to remember.
Q When your dad would put his penis either in your
mouth, or in your vagina, oOr in your butt, did you ever -- did

you ever actually see his penis? Did you ever actually look

at it?
A

0

BY MR. MERBACK:

0

looked like at all?

D(EXMBITHO) D)

71
MR. MERBACK: It's not, Your Honor. There‘s -

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule. You may answer.

Can you remember everything that ever happened, 0T

No..

Did you ever see it?

MR. COX: Judge, asked and answered. I object.
THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: I can't remember.

Okay. Can you remember -- do you remember what it

Yes.

Yes.

What did it look like?
Brown.

Anything else?

No.
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with a child, where you're basically trying to extrapolate all
the information they have, without giving them the
information.

Q To avoid leading a child into something?

A Exactly.

MR. SPEED: Objection} Your Honor, leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. MERBACK:

Q What's the purpose behind a forensic interview?

A To avoid leading a child into a false disclosure.

0 Okay. You talked about the purpose of using the
techniques you use in a suspect interview, or to elicit the
truth. Do you remember saying that?

A Yes.

Q What's the purpose of conducting a forensic
interview with a child?

A To elicit the truth.

Q Ié it fair to say that, often, interviews with
suspects versus interviews with children require different
types of approacﬁes?

A Absolutely.

Q You wouldn't approach the five year-old the same way
you would approach an adulf?

A Correct.

0 Have there been times in your career where you have

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0830
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been interviewing a victim or an alleged victim, and you have
used the types of techniqueé that you use in suspect
interviews with an alleged victim?

A All the time.

Q Okay. And why would you do that?

A To elicit the truth.

Q You didn't do that in this -- was -- were any of
those techniques used, however, in the interview in this case
with five year-old Caitlin Jefferson?

A I don't believe so. But like I say, I would have to
go through the interview and see if that specific technique
was used or not.

Q How -- would you characterize the interview with
Caitlin Jefferson as a forensic interview?

MR. SPEED: Objection, Your Honor, leading.

BY MR. MERBACK:

C How would you characterize the interview with
Caitlin Jefferson? '

A As a forensic interview.

THE COURT: The question was withdrawn, and a new
question asked, so the Court need not rule on the objection.
BY MR. MERBACK:

Q Mr. Speed asked you some guestions about the type of
weapons that you and Detective Demas were carrying; is that

correct?
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THE COURT: In looking at NRS 51.385(2), A factor, the
statement was spontaneous, the Court finds that the two statements made
to the mother were spontaneous, that the statement made to Detective
Demas was not. As to the second factor, the B factor, that the child was
subjected to repetitive questioning, the Court finds that the child was not
subjected to repetitive questioning by the mother but was by Detective
Demas.

The next factor, C, the child had a motive to fabricate.
While the mother was upset with the Defendant the child was not. The
child had no motive to fabricate as to any of the statements. The next
factor, D, the child used terminology expected of a child of similar age. The
Court finds that the child did use appropriate age terminology. The next
factor, E, the child was in a stable mental state. The mother so indicated
she didn‘t notice anything mentally abnormal at the time but the statement
was given to the mom. From listening to the statement that was given to
the Detective in reviewing the trénscript thereof, | didn't know any indicia of
an unstable mental state.

The Court, therefore, finds that under the totality of the
circumstances, the statements made to the mother have guarantees of
trustworthiness, that the statement given to Detective Demas is lacking in &
couple of those factors, therefore, the statements to the mother would be
admissible, the statement to Detective Demas would not be unless it comes
in for a different purpose such as rebuttal or to rehabilitate upon an

accusation of recent fabrication or some other evidentiary rule.
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have alibis in our general lives unless it's a very specific matter. There is a
specific timeframe which we don't have here. | didnft realize his work records
was a hanging point, and for that tﬁat's why — another reason why | just didn't get
them. _

THE COURT: Okay. So it doesn't appear that they have any
relevance?

MR. COX: Judge, you know, | don't think I'm showing my hand
here, but, you know, | didn't see it as being relevant, a thing that's really going to
substantively, you know, defend the case in any way. You know, | don't think it's
in dispute he had a job. The State and the State’s witnesses have not made a
specific date or time when these things have said to have taken placé.

MR. MERBACK: He actually indicated in his statement to the police
that he had lost his job. That was part of the reason that he was home when
these events occur is because he had been employed and then he became
unemployed. So | mean that's from his statement, and obviously that's just my
! recollection; but |-recall that.very spegifically.from his statemept he.indicatedthat.|.. ..
he had lost his job and that was making it difficult for him. |

THE COURT: !t appears that the relief sought is not warranted and
the Court, therefore, denies the motion. The Court will ask that the State prepare
the order. We have - |

MR. COX: Judge, | do have an issue with our trial date and | want
to bring it up now rather than calendar call. Myissue is it is a short week and |
have retained Mr. Mark Chambers. | had sent the State a notice of that. We do

have — the State does intend to argue in its case in chief that my client made
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MS. FLECK: Okay. Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: It's kind of like what I talked about
earlier, is there's nobody -- if I'm going to ask the
question, how many of you like violence? How many of you like
rape? How many of you 1ike child molestation? How many --
you know, I'm not going to get people raising their hand in
response to that.

But as Ms. Fleck just clearly covered, it's just an
accusation. And you said you pelieved that you'd be able to
keep an open mind and listen to the -- listen to the testimony
before you came to any conclusion. Would you be able to
deliberate with your fellow jurors toward reaching a verdict?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 245: I believe I said that I
wouldn't be able to keep an Open mind based on the charges.
[Inanudible]. Did I not say that? That's what I thought I
said. .

THE COURT: I think you changed your position kind
of during the questioning, SO that's why I went back over it
to clarify with you. You have not heard one word of
testimony, nor seen one piece of evidence at this point.

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 245: I understand that.

THE COQURT: Are you saying that you're entirely
closed-minded and unable to deliberate?

PROSPECTIVE JUROR NO. 245: No, no. I'm not saying

_that I'm entirely closed-minded, but I'm just saying that I --

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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INDEXOF WITNESSES
STATE'S WITNESSES DIRECT CROSS

Cindy Lamug 4 15
Matthew Demas 31 39

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

STATE'S EXHIBITS IDENTIFIED
1 356
2 35
3 10
. :

26

REDIRECT RECROSS
22
51

ADMITTED
37
37

30
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INDEX
BRANDON JEFFERSON

Case No. 62120
PAGE NO.

Amended Criminal Complaint filed 10/15/10 004-007
Amended Information filed 11/05/10 011-015
Criminal Complaint filed 09/16/10 001-003

Defendant Jeffersong Motion In Limine To Preclude Inadmissible
51.385 Evidence filed 04/13/11 072-083

Defendants Motion To Suppress Unlawfully Obtained Statement
Filed 03/25/11 016-027

Defendants Notice of Expert Witnesses, Per NRS
Filed 10/18/11 129-133

Defendants Proposed Jury Instructions filed 08/08/12....185-189
Discovery Motion filed 03/25/11 052-060
District Court Minutes through 10/23/12 228-264

Ex Parte Motion For Release of CPS/DFS Records
Filed 04/14/11 117-118

Ex Parte Motion For Release of Medical Records
Filed 04/14/11 121-122

Fourth Supplemental Notice of Witnesses And/Or Expert Witnesses
filed 06/27/12 167-173

Information filed 10/26/10 009-010
Ingstructions To The Jury filed 08/08/12 190-214
Judgmeqt of Conviction f£iled 10/30/12 21%9-221
Justice Court Minutes through 10/15/10

Motion In Limine For An Order Preventing The State Fron

Introducing Unlawfully Recorded Oral Communications
Filed 08/06/12 180-184
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A Yes.

Q Do you remember when there was a time your mommy

rold you that your daddy's gone, and it's just going to be you
and your mommy and your brother?
A Yes.

pid your mommy ask her if you could help her out --

-- and be on the same team with her?

Q
A Yes.
Q
A

Yes.

Q Did she tell you that daddy didn't treat her very

A Yes.

Q Did she make a pinky-promise with you?

A Yes.

Q and tell you that you need to tell her all the
secrets?

A Yes.

o) Now, you didn't tell your mom about anybody putting
anything in your bottom, did you -- in your butt, did you?

A I did.

Q You did? Okay. Did you tell your mom about
anything about your dad putting his hands on your tee-tee Or
your butt?

A Yes.

Okay. Do you know who this man is here?
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And we heard from the detective about this
thfee-day, at the most, five-day time framé in which DNA can
be collected. And we actually heard specifically from Dr.
Vergara that really it needs to be less than 72 hours; less
than three days before there can be any kind of a legitimate
chance of collecting DNA.

Now, the defense called Mr. Teague, the ambulance
driver, to come in here, the ambulance -- the paramedic in the
ambulance, to talk about Cindy's statement to him on -- about
the date of September 11th. Remember, he never talked to
Caitlin. This is not something that Caitlin told him.
Detective Demas talked -- Detective Katowich talked directly
to Caitlin, but he never did. He simply obtained this
statement from Cindy, and Cindy had told him about the date of
September 11th, 2010.

So, are we to believe that Caitlin said to her mom,
yeah, mom, the last time it happened was September 11th of
201072 Is that -- is that what we're supposed to believe?

Does that make any sense? What makes sense i1s that Caitlin
told her mother, the last time it happened, you were at work.
And her mom thought about, okay, when's the last day I worked?
September 11th, 2010, so that's what she tells the paramedic.

And even beyond that, September 11th to September
14th is four days. That's beyond the 7Z2-hour time period; the

72-hour window that Dr. Vergara is really required if you're
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Q -- it not? So, it's not just words; you're making a
gesture with it? |

A Yes.

Q Okay. Now, on September 14th, when you called the
police and you talked to the police, you did not tell the
police that there had been an allegation of penetration or --
or I'm sorry, of contact between Brandon Jefferson's penis and
Caitlin's anus, was there?

A No.

MR. COX: Court's indulgence.
BY MR. COX:

Q Néw,'on September 1l4th, is it fair to say the
children were already fluent in Tagalog?

A Yes.

Q Okay. On September 14th, were you speaking to them
in Tagalog or English?

A English.

Q English?

MR. COX: I'd pass the witness, Judge. Thank you,

Cindy.

MR. MERBACK: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. MERBACK: We have no further questions, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: You may step down from the stand. State

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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guilt. And again, moreover, an issue that the defense has pu£
into issue, thch is that there is no bias within this family.
And you know, they have a right now to hear conversations
between the defendant and Cindy because the defense has made
part of the trial that there's so much animosity between Cindy
and the defendant that young Caitlin is willing to make
something like this up about her father. Sé, they've put it
directly at issue in the case.

THE CQOURT: The Court finds that with the
prerecording announcement, that there's no reasonable
expectation of privacy. The motion therefore is denied at
this time. The Court's geoing to ask that the marshal bring in
and seat the jury. We'll be at ease.

MR. SPEED: Will the Court ~-- I'm sorry, Your Honor.
Will -- will the Coﬁrt allow for -- okay.

(Off the record at 1:35 P.M. until 1:41 P.M.}

(Within the presence of the jury panel)

THE MARSHAL: All rise. District Court 2 is now
session. The Honorable Judge Valorie J. Vega presiding.
Please be seated.

.THE COURT: Record shall reflect we're resuming
trial in State vs. Jefferson, in the presence of Mr.
Jefferson, his two counsel, their assistant, the two
prosecuting attorneys are present, and the ladies and

gentlemen of the jury are present as well.
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Case 2:12-cv-00504-GMN -@{’\L : Document 1 ElTédﬁS?ZBIﬁOBe?e L,j of 43
4 1OV

4750

enital/Anal Medieal Exam Fi s: (Refer to dictation and genital drawings)

___Normal exam/normal variant: (i.c. hymenal tags, bumps, ridges): The lack of physical cxam
findings docs not cxclude the possibility of sexual abuse.

2 SNon-spcciﬁc findings: (i.c. swelling, erythema, labial adhesion, lichen sclerosis, molluscum, anal
fissure): these findings may occur in sexually abused children, but may also be {rom other causes,

_Ctvnccrning for ubuse or trauma: (i.c. acute bruising of labin or penis, laceration of posterior
fourchette, bitc marks): these findings have been noted in children with documented sexual abuse and are

consistent with, though not conclusive of, sexual abuse.
’

___Speeific physical findings arc present that indicate ahusef/trauma: (i.c. acuie laceration or
bruising of the hymen, hymenal transection, deep perianal lacerutions): Scxual abusc/contact is very
likely.

3

___ Other: Bleeding, penital warts, vesicles (suspected HSV),

Comments/concerns:

Infection:

___STD testing done. Results are pending, (Note, These tests are performed at the discretion
- of the examiner and arc not required in all pediatric scxual abuse evaluations)

|

!! FATIENT IDENTIICATION
JEFFERSON, CAI:IL N
QIDI910GS8  REG
gnmo 1729 RYSICLaN, PEDIATRIC B SmmS e
003:11/26/00 SY Ton T MR DIQISA0HHS ‘

Sunrlse Horpilal and kec Cur wmﬂ'm”

Child/Adolescent Sexual Abuse/Assault
Forensic Medical Examination Report
Page 3 of 4 SR-1500 {10%)
WHITE - Medicel Record  YELLOW - Law Enforcament  PINK - SCAN
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Case 2:12-cv-00504-GMN -PAL Document 1 Filed 03/26/12 Page 5 of 43

{(ExHigiT#2l) | 1009/%-3950

LABS, X-RAYS, AND EKG
Bedside Tests: Urine dipstick; leukocyles negalive; nitrite negative; protein negative; glucose normal;
ketones negative; urobilinogen nermal; bilirubin negative; blood negative.

PROGRESS AND PROCEDURES
Course of Care: Placed in room 8

20:04. Patient is stable.

20:04. Tolerated videotap colposcopy. Mom bedside

GU. Tanner 1. No lesions of bruising to external genitalia. With gentle retraction of labia majora able to
see mais! introitus, Has adequate hymena! tissue, smooth rim. Has a small hymenal mound asso with
intravaginal ridge. No local reddness, no transection, no vaginal discharge. Negative peringum. Reclal
with good sphincter tone, no lesions or tears.

Exam reviewed with Mom.

CLINICAL IMPRESSION
Vaginilis {Non specific).
SCAN-S.

INSTRUCTIONS
* Drink plenty of flulds.

Warnings: Further evaluation is necessary. -

Warnings: See your physician or return immediatety If your child becomes irritable, difficult to console,
listiess, sleeps more than usual, has a decreased fivid intake, has decreased uringtion; or if other
concerns arise. Likewise, if your child's condilion does not improve as expected, be sure to see your
physician or return to the emergency department.

Follow-up:
Follow up wilh doctor PMD and authorities.

Follow-up with:

Neighborhood Pediatric Clinics, If you do not have a doctor, contact one of the following low-cost
neighbarhood clinics:, KIDS HEALTH: 702-992-6868, 3008 S.Maryland Parkway; LIED CLINIC: 702-383-
3642, 1524 Pinto Lane; HELPING KIDS CLINIC: 702-732-7001, 968 E.Sahara Avenue.

Follow up. Call for the next available appointment,

Understanding of the discharge instructions verbalized by parent.
All diagnostic orders, medications, interventions, and other treatment has been authorized and reviewed by
ihe treating physician. )
(Electronically signed by Theresa Vergara, MD 09/14/2010 20:47)
Any laboratory data incorporated in this document has been entered by the emergency clinician and”

may have been summatized or otherwise modified. The original fufl reportis available in Meditech.
Please refer to PCI for the Parforming site information.

JEFFERSON, CAITUIN.
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(EXHIBIT #22)

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 9
EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: CAITLIN JEFFERSON

Okay. And what about tickles? Who gives you tickles?

My dad.

Where?

At my feet.

Oh. Um and are all those touches okay?

Um...

| can't hear you.

Yeah.

Okay. Do you ever get um touches you don't like or that are strange?
Sometimes my classmates push, pushes me.

Oh, | don't like those touches either. So what happens when you do that, when
they do that?

I told my mom.

Okay. Um, any other touches that you don't like or that are strange to you?
Mm-mm.

| can't hear you.

No.

Okay. Um now um, you got any secrets?

No.

No? Okay. Um, so say you and Brandon are outside, you guys are outside

playing. You guys play games outside?
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 12

EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: CAITLIN JEFFERSON
Is there like a name in another language that you use?
Mm...
Well what do you call it then?
Mm...
Some girls call it like a thingy. Do you want to call it that?
You can call it whatever you want.
Okay.
What do you want to call it?
Thingy.
Okay. What do you call this right here?
Arm.
What do you call this right here?
Belly button.
What do you call this right here?
| Finger.
‘Kay. What do you call this right here?
Mm...

Q:
A:
Q:
A:
Q:
Q:
A
Q:
A:
Q:
A:
Q:
A
Q:
A
Q:
A:
Q:

Well sometimes when 1 talk to girls your age they call it like, like a private area or
a pookie (sic) or a titi (Laugh). Do you want to, what name do you call it?
Private.

What about what's that called?

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ ISD/Word 07 00 0 1 0 7
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 13
EVENT #: 100914-2950

STATEMENT OF: CAITLIN JEFFERSON
Leg.
‘Kay. What do you call this right here?
Um, the back of your head.
And what do you call this right here?
Back.
Okay. What do you call this right here?
Okay. What do you call this right here?
Leg. Back of your leg.
Okay. Now is this private the same as this private?
Mm-hmm.

It's the same exact thing?

No.

A
Q:
A:
Q:
A:
Q:
A
Q:
A
Q:
A:
Q:
A
Q:

Oh. Is there a different name we can use? Like sometimes when | talk to girs
your age they call it like a butt or a booty or a behind. You want to use one of
those? What do you want to use?

Private.

Okay. We'll use that then.

You know you can't get in trouble for anything you say in here. Right? This is a
special room, so you can use whatever word you want. You're not gonna get in

any trouble. You know that?

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ 1ISD/Word 07 0 0 0 1 0 8
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 14
‘ EVENT #: 100914-2950
STATEMENT OF: CAITLIN JEFFERSON

Q: Even if you want to use a Tagalog word.

A | am Tagalog.

Q: | know. So you can use Tagalog words and ___. And that's okay. Okay?

A: Okay.

Q: Okay. When you look at the picture of this girl here, are there parts on her body
that nobody’s supposed to touch?

A Mm-hmm.

Q: | can't hear you.

A: Yeah, some of the parts.

Q: Where are they? Okay. What are those called again?

A: Privates.

Q: Okay. For the purpose of the recording, she pointed at the buit. Okay.
Anywhere else?

A: | don't know.

Q: You don't know? Okay. Well, have you ever had a problem with anybody
touching you in the privates.

A: Nobody touches me at the privates.

Q: Nobody does?

A Mm-mm.

Q: Oh, okay. But! heard something a little different today?

A: Huh?

Voluntary Statement-No Affirnation~ ISDMWord 07 00 0 1 09
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT;

PAGE 15
EVENT #: 100914-2950

STATEMENT OF: CAITLIN JEFFERSON
| heard something different. Um, um do you know what? Why were the police
called today?
Uh... | don't know.
You don't know? Oh. Did you tell somebody that somebody might have touched
your private?
Um...
Huh?
Nobody touched my private.
Oh.
Have you ever had anybody make you touch their privates?
Mm-mm.
Did you tell, did you tell somebody that?
Uh...
‘Cause you know you're not in trouble for anything, right?

Somebody made me touched their private.

Who did?

> 2 » £ 2 0 2 0 0 2 O X

My mom called the police and said like mm my dad made me touch all his
privates.

He did? How did he do that?

(No audible response)

How did he do that?

Voluntary Statement-No Affirmation~ ISD/Word 07 000110
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why a sexual assault victim might have normal physical findings. Dr.
Vergara testified that her examination of C.J. revealed no abnormal
results, but that “normal is normal” with child sex abuse victims, meaning
that a normal examination is typical even though a child has been abused.
Because Jefferson did not object to that particular testimony at trial, we
review it for plain error. Valdez v. State, 124 Nev. 1172, 1190, 196 P.3d
465, 477 (2008). We conclude that the district court did not commit plain
error in allowing the testimony.

NRS 50.345 provides that “[i]jn any prosecution for sexual
assault, expert testimony is not inadmissible to show that the victim’s
behavior or mental or physical condition is consistent with the behavior or
condition of a victim of sexual assault.” Thus, Dr. Vergara’s ‘testimony
that child victims of sexual assault often have normal findings was proper.
This in no way vouched for C.J.'s credibility. See Marvelle v. State, 114
Nev. 921, 931, 966 P.2d 151, 157 (1998) (holding that an expert may not
testify to the veracity of another witness), abrogated on other grounds by
Koerschner v. State, 116 Nev. 1111, 13 P.3d 451 (2000).

Jefferson also argues that it was ihproper for Dr. Vergara to
speculate as to how a sexual assault might occur without physical trauma.
Specifically, she stated: “[I}f I was going to approach a child with my
intentions, I can’t hurt that child. Because if I make that child cry, T will
never have a chance or opportunity to approach that child again. So, the |
imitial encounter with a child and their perpetrator .could be hugging,
kissing, rubbing.” Jefferson objected to this testimony as improper
gpeculation, and the objection was overruled. We conclude that this
testimony was outside the scope of NRS 50.345. It went beyond a

discussion of how C.J.s normal findings were consistent with those of
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(Extism#2.y)

other sexually abused children-and became speculation on the behavior of
perpetrators in general. However, we conclude that given the other
evidence in the case, this was harmless error that did not “substantially
affect[] the jury’s verdict.” Valdez, 124 Nev. at 1189, 196 P.3d at 476.

The district court did not abuse its discretion in admitting the testimony of
C.J.’s mother and brother as to C.J.’s statement that her father abused her

Jefferson also argues that the district: court -abused: its
discretion when it denied his motion in limine to preclude hearsay
testimony from his wife regarding C.J.'s statement to her that her father
was sexually abusing her. Pursuant to NRS 51.385, hearsay evidence
regarding the statement of a child describing sexual conduct is admissible
if “[t]he court finds...that the time, content and circumstances of the
statement provide sufficient circumstantial guarantees of trustworthiness”
and “[t]he child testifies at the proceeding.” NRS 51.385(1)(a)-(b). In
determining the trustworthiness of the statement, the court shall
consider, without limitation, whether: “(a) The statement was
spontaneous; (b) The child was subjected to repetitive questioning; (c) The
child had a motive to fabricate; (d) The child used terminoclogy unexpected
of a child of similar age; and (e) The child was in a stable mental state.”
NRS 51.385(2)(a)-(e).

In this case, C.J.. was not subject to repetitive questioning
Nregarding sexual abuse, but rather made the statement to her mother
after her mother told the children that she might be leaving their father,
and that they should not have any secrets between them. Thus, because
C.J. was the one to raise the issue of sexual abuse and it was spontaneous,
we conclude that the district court did not err in admitting the statement
because there were “sufficient circumstantial guarantees of

trustworthiness.” NRS 51.385(1)(a).

9
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49
A Yes.
Q So, are there places on your body that no one is

supposed to touch?

A Yes.

Q Do you have names for those places on your body?
A Yes.

0 What are the names that you have?

A Vagina, butt, and breast.

Q Vagina, butt, and breast. Are there other names

that you sometimes use for those parts of your body, or are
those the names you always use?

A The names I always uée.

Q When you were younger, were there different names

that you used; do you remember?

A Yes.

0 What was the name you used when you were younger?
A Tee-tee.

0 Tee-tee? What does tee-tee mean?

A Penis.

Q okay. Does it mean anything else?

A No.

Q Okay. So, has anyone ever touched you in those

private\places then, in your vagina, or in your butt, or in
your breasts?

A Yes.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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Motion To Dismiss Counsel And Appoint Alternate Counsel
Filed 10/19/11 134-140

Motion To Preclude Lay Witness Opinion filed 03/25/11 .. 0309-043

Motion To Preclude Use Of The Prejudicial Term Victim
Filed 04/13/11 094-104

Notice of Appeal filed 11/14/12 222-225
Notice of Appeal filed 12/08/12 226-227

Notice of Service and Witnesses Statements Per to 51.385
Filed 10/03/11 126-128

Notice of Witnesses And/Or Expert Witnesses
Filed 04/08/11 061-071

Opposition To Defendants Motion In Limine To Preclude
Inadmissible Evidence filed 04/27/11 084-093

Opposition To Defendants Motion To Preclude Lay Witness Opinion
Filed 04/06/11 044-051

Opposition To Defendants Motion To Preclude Use Of The
Prejudicial Term Victim Filed 04/27/11 105-112

Opposition To Defendants Motion To Suppress Unlawfully Obtained
Statement filed 04/06/11 028-038

Order Denying Defendants Motion To Dismiss Counsel And Appoint
Alternate Counsel filed 11/14/11 141-142

Order Denying Defendants Motion To Suppress, Motion To Precluds
Use Of The Term Victim And Motion For Discovery

Filed 06/16/11 . 113-114
Order Partially Denying Defendants Motion To Preclude 51.38§
Testimony and Order Denying States Oral Motion To Terminatg
Defendants Outside Communication Privileges

Filed 01/17/12 . 153-154
Order Regarding CPS/DFS Records filed 11/28/11 151-152
Order Releasing CPS/DFS Records filed 04/14/11 115-116
Order Releasing Medical Records filed 04/14/11 119-120

Second Amended Information filed 11/16/11 146-150
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13
Q Okay. Do you remember off the top of your head how
old Caitlin was when you saw her?

A Five-and-a-half.

et 18 At

Q And what generally was the complaint regarding
Caitlin?

A Alleged sexual abuse. SCAN, S.

0 So, what was the first thing that you did then as
part of the physical examination on Caitlin?

A So, the patient was placed into the -- well, after
the history -- after the interviewing by the -- both Metro and
the detectives, they guide me as far as the requirements of
what I need to do.

So, for example, if the injury was just hours ago,
they probably want me to do a rape kit, which, in a situation

like this, the initial trauma was more than that. So -- and

the rape kit was not indicated or requested by the detectives.
So, 1 went into the room and did the head-to-toe examination.
and then I proceeded with the genitalia, and it was documented
with either -- 2010; either video or digital photos.

Q Okay. So that -- I want to just touch upon then,
you said that, depending on the time frame -- we get then back
to the time frame, and within that 72 hours that you didn’t do
a sex assault kit. What does that mean?

A Based on the interviews, again, interview by the

detective, basically, the presentation was delayed; meaning

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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the injury occurred with a prolonged period of time béfore
they presented. |

0 So, the disclosure came a number of days after -- or
weeks after the last contact; is that what you're saying?

A Correct, where many times, the exam would be normal.
Again, like I said, like any kind of redness to your lips
after -- heck, after the end of the day, that redness 1is gone.
So, if you get examined when all the redness is gone, well,

it's, gquote, unquote, "a normal examination.” All you have 1is

a history of a child saying, this and this happened. But the
physical e#amination, if I examine that child days later, 1s
- everything has healed up, and redness is gone, and --

Q Okay.

A - basically a normal examination.

0 and I want to go through that a little bit in -- at
the end of me speaking with you. But on just that particular
day with Caitlin, you didn't do a full sexual assault kit
because of the delayed disclosure; is that correct?

A Delayed disclosure and delayed -- and subseguent
delayed presentation to the emergency room.

Q Okay.

A Yes.

Q So, you didn't do a full sexual assault kit; you
just went on to use certain eguipment and do a visual

examination of her genitalia?

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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STATE BAR OF NEVADA

"

‘ (Exnpme2q)

600 East Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104.1563
phone 702.382.2200

roll free §00.254.2797

fax 702.385.2878

November 3, 2011 9456 Double R Bivd, Ste. B
- Reno, NV 89521-5977
phanc 775.329.4100
fx 775.329.0522

Brandon Jefferson, #2508991

Clark County Detention Center www.nvbar.org
330 S. Casino Center Bivd.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

RE: Grievance File #3C11-1536 / Bryan Cox, Esq.
Dear Mr. Jefferson:

The Office of Bar Counsel is in receipt of your comblaint concerning attorney Bryan
Cox, a copy of which has been forwarded to him. He has been directed to respond to this
office in writing.

The time necessary to conduct the investigation and review process cannot be
estimated, as it is dependent upon the complexity and volume of the complaints received
at any given time.

You should recognize that this office cannot and does not give legal advice, does
not have jurisdiction over malpractice claims, and cannot alter or affect in any way the
outcome of private legal matters in court. Our function is to determine whether an attorney
has violated the Rules of Professional Conduct, and if so, to take measures sufficient to
avoid a recurrence.

Sincerely,

e

Phillip Pattee
Assistant Bar Counsel '

PJP/rc
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Electronically Filed

12/22/2015 12:00:24 PM

SUPP
MATTHEW LAY, ESQ. W;.. § i

NGUYEN & LAY

Nevada Bar Number 12249 CLERK OF THE COURT
732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 383-3200

Fax: (702) 675-8174

E-mail; dml@lasvegasdefender.com

Attorney for Petitioner

BRANDON JEFFERSON

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Respondent, )

) Case Number: C-10-268351-1
V. )
)

BRANDON JEFFERSON, ) Dept. Number: v

)
Petitioner. )
)

SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)
COMES NOW the Petitioner, BRANDON JEFFERSON, by and through his court-

appointed attorney of record, MATTHEW LAY, ESQ., and hereby brings this Supplemental
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).
This Supplement is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, and

any oral argument at the time set for hearing this Supplement.

DATED this 22nd day of December, 2015.

NGUYEN & LAY

MATTHEW LAY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar Number 12249
732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 383-3200
Facsimile: (702) 675-8174

Email: dml@lasvegasdefender.com

Attorney for Petitioner
BRANDON JEFFERSON
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STATEMENT OF PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The State of Nevada filed a Complaint on September 16, 2010, alleging five counts of sex
assault on a minor under fourteen, and two counts of lewdness with a minor under fourteen. On
October 15, 2010, the State filed an Amended Complaint adding three counts of lewdness and one
count of sex assault. Pursuant to negotiations, Mr. Jefferson waived his right to a preliminary
hearing, and, on October 15, 2010, the justice court bound him over to the district court. On
October 26, 2010, the State filed an Information alleging two counts of lewdness. When the case
did not resolve, the State filed an Amended Information on November 05, 2010, alleging six
counts of s¢x assault on a minor under fourteen and five counts of lewdness with a minor under
fourteen. Brandon was arraigned and pled not guilty. On November 16, 2011, the State filed a
Second Amended Information. Jurors convicted Mr. Jefferson on Counts I, IX, and X, sex assault
on a minor under fourteen, and Counts II and IV, lewdness with a minor under fourteen. The Court
granted the defense motion to dismiss Count XI. Jurors acquitted Mr. Jefferson of all other counts.
The Court dismissed Count II. On October 30, 2012, the State filed the Judgment of Conviction.
The Court sentenced Mr. Jefferson to thirty-five years to life on Count I; ten years to life on Count
IV, concurrent; thirty-five years to life on Count IX, consecutive to Counts I and IV; and thirty-
five years to life on Count X, concurrent with Count IX, plus fees, restitution and lifetime
supervision. Mr. Jefferson timely filed a Notice of Appeal on November 14, 2012.

On July 29, 2014, the Nevada Supreme Court entered an Order of Affirmance. On
September 09, 2014, the Court issued Remittitur. On October 02, 2014, Mr. Jefferson filed a
proper person, post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus. The undersigned was appointed

to represent Mr. Jefferson on October 28, 2014.
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STATEMENT OF FACTUAL HISTORY

In 2010, Brandon and Cindy Jefferson had been together for ten years and were raising
their five-year-old daughter, C., and seven-year-old son, Brandon Jr., in Las Vegas, Nevada. In
September of 2010, Brandon and Cindy were not getting along. Cindy was angry that Brandon had
lost his job and felt that he wasn’t trying hard enough to find a new position. Cindy worked at a
retail store, and Brandon watched the children while she worked.

On September 14, 2010, Brandon left the apartment. Cindy searched for him. When she
could not locate Brandon, Cindy picked the children up from school and made them dinner. Cindy
told the children that Brandon was being mean, that she was going to leave him, and that it would
just be the three of them. Cindy told the children they could have no secrets from her. Cindy told
C. and Brandon Jr. that the three of them had to be a team, and Cindy made them hook their pinky
fingers with hers in a solemn promise not to keep secrets. About a half-hour later, Cindy claimed
that C. said she had a secret that Brandon had told her to keep from Cindy. Cindy asked about the
secret, and claims that C. said, “Daddy makes me suck his tee-tee.” Cindy screamed, “What?”” and
C. began to cry. Cindy asked C. repeatedly, “are you sure?” When Cindy asked what clse had
happened, she claimed that C. said Brandon puts his penis “down there.” Cindy called 9-1-1.
Cindy admitted that, on the day she spoke to the children, she had already made up her mind that
she would keep custody during the pending separation.

An examination revealed no signs of trauma or other physical findings. When Brand
returned to find his family missing from the apartment, he called the police to file a missing
persons report. Detective found him wandering the neighborhood and immediately arrested him.
After repeatedly denying these allegations in an interview with police, Brandon ultimately

admitted to three acts of touching only after officers began using interrogative techniques and
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triggers to clicit a confession, including promises of leniency and references to Brandon’s ability
to see his children.

At trial, C. ultimately testified that when she was five-years-old, Brandon penctrated her
mouth, vaginal, and anal areas with his penis. C. claimed she was sitting on Brandon’s legs when
some of the penctrations occurred. C. claimed that mouth, vaginal, and anal penetration occurred a
second and third time in the master bedroom, and a fourth time in her bedroom. Brandon Jr. Never
witnessed any assault on his sister, although C. claimed one of the assaults occurred when he was
asleep in the bunk bed over C.’s bed. After an eight-day trial, jurors convicted Brandon of five

counts and acquitted him of five counts.

ARGUMENT

The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution guarantees that, “in all criminal
prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right . . . to have the Assistance of Counsel for his
defense.” U.S. Const. amend. VI. The right to confrontation is incorporated in the Fourteenth

Amendment and, therefore, available in state proceedings. Olden v. Kentucky, 488 U.S. 227, 232,

109 S. Ct. 480, 102 L. Ed. 2d 513 (1988) (per curiam) (citing Pointer v. Texas, 380 U.S. 400

(1965)); see also Cox v. State, 102 Nev. 253, 256, 721 P.2d 358, 360 (1986)). “‘[T]he right to

counsel is the right to the effective assistance of counsel.”” Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S.

668, 686 (1984) (quoting McMann v. Richardson, 397 U.S. 759, 771 n.14 (1970)). The Sixth

Amendment right to counsel attaches when “judicial proceedings have been initiated” against a

defendant. Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 4, 846 P.2d 276, 278 (1993) (citing Brewer v. Williams,

430 U.S. 387, 398 (1977)). Attorneys appointed to represent defendants should be competent. Ex

parte Kramer, 61 Nev. 174, 207, 122 P.2d 862, 876 (1942). The ineffective assistance of counsel

denies a defendant of due process. Id.
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In Nevada, the appropriate vehicle for reviewing whether counsel was effective is a post-

conviction relief proceeding. McKague v. Warden, 112 Nev. 159, 164 n.4, 912 P.2d 255, 258 n.4

(1996). In order to assert a claim for ineffective assistance of counsel, a defendant must prove that

he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-pronged test

cnunciated in Strickland. 466 U.S. at 687; sce State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322,

323 (1993). Under Strickland, the defendant must show that his counsel’s representation fell below

an objective standard of reasonableness, and that, but for counsel’s errors, there is a reasonable
probability that the result of the proceedings would have been different. 466 U.S. at 697. “[A]

rcasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.”

Wiggins v. Smith, 539 U.S. 510, 533 (2003); see Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 137 P.3d 1095,
1102 n.44 (2006). “A court may cvaluate the questions of deficient performance and prejudice in

either order and need not consider both issues if the defendant fails to make a sufficient showing

on onc.” Mcans v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S.

at 689).

“In order to avoid the distorting effects of hindsight,” a reviewing court begins the
evaluation of an ineffective assistance of counsel claim “with a strong presumption that counsel’s
conduct falls within the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” Ennis, 122 Nev. 694,

137 P.3d at 1102 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689). A petitioner must prove the “factual

allegations underlying his ineffective assistance of counsel claim by a preponderance of the

evidence.” Id. at 1012, 103 P.3d at 33. The benchmark for assessing claims of ineffective

[ 191

assistance of counsel 1s ““whether counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the

232

adversarial process that the trial cannot be relied on as having produced a just result.”” Paine v.

State, 110 Nev. 609, 620, 877 P.2d 1025, 1031 (1994) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686).
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Defense counsel has a duty to “make reasonable investigations or to make a reasonable

decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” Love, 109 Nev. At 1138, 865 P.2d at

323 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691).

L. MR. JEFFERSON’S TRIAL AND APPELLATE COUNSEL ACTIVELY
REPRESENTED CONFLICTING INTERESTS THAT ADVERSELY
AFFECTED COUNSEL’S PERFORMANCE.

Mr. Jefferson’s trial and appellate counsel actively represented conflicting interests that
adversely affected counsel’s performance, because Mr. Jefferson filed a bar complaint against his
trial attorney prior to trial. Consequently, Mr. Jefferson trial and appellate counsel represented Mr.
Jefferson despite the existence of a concurrent conflict of interest.

The Sixth Amendment guarantees a criminal defendant the right to conflict-free

representation. Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 3, 846 P.2d 276, 277 (1993) (citing Clark v. State,

108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)). When counsel is burdened by an actual conflict of interest,

“counsel breaches the duty of loyalty, perhaps the most basic of counsel’s duties.” Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 692 (1984). The Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit has noted “an

attorncy is ‘not inclined to seck out and assert his own prior incffectiveness.”” United States v. Del

Muro, 87 F.3d 1078, 1080 (9th Cir. 1996) (quoting Abbamonte v. United States, 160 F.3d 922, 925

(2nd Cir. 1998)).

Similarly, Nevada Rule of Professional Conduct 1.7(a) prohibits lawyers from representing
a client 1f the representation involves a concurrent conflict of interest. Nev. R. Prof. Conduct
1.7(a). Under Rule 1.7(a)(2), a “concurrent conflict of interest” exists if “there is a significant risk
that the representation of one or more clients will be materially limited by the lawyer’s
responsibilities to ... a personal interest of the lawyer.” Nev. R. Prof. Conduct 1.7(a)(2). Pursuant
to Rule 1.7(b)(4), the attorney must also secure the informed consent of each affected client in

writing before engaging in the dual representation. Nev. R. Prof. Conduct 1.7(b)(4).
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Additionally, Rule 1.10(a) provides that, while lawyers are associated in a firm, none of
them shall knowingly represent a client when any one of them practicing alone would be
prohibited from doing so by Rule 1.7, “unless the prohibition is based on a personal interest of the
prohibited lawyer and does not present a significant risk of materially limiting the representation of
the client by the remaining lawyers in the firm.”

Where a defendant claims error based on counsel’s conflict of interest, he must show that
counsel “*actively represented conflicting interests’ and that ‘an actual conflict of interest

adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.”” Leonard v. State, 117 Nev. 53, 63, 17 P.3d 397,

404 (2001) (quoting Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 692 (1984)). ““Conflict of interest

and divided loyalty situations can take many forms, and whether an actual conflict exists must be
cvaluated on the specific facts of cach casec. In general, a conflict exists when an attorney is placed

in a situation conducive to divided loyalties.”” Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 326, 831 P.2d 1376 (1992)

(quoting Smith v. Lockhart, 923 F.2d 1314, 1320 (8th Cir. 1991)). A defendant who establishes an

(139

actual conflict ““need only show that some effect on counsel’s handling of particular aspects of the

trial was likely.”” Del Muro, 87 F.3d at 1078 (quoting United States v. Miskinis, 966 F.2d 1263,

1268 (9th Cir. 1992).
Where counsel faces a conflict of interest, a defendant may continue to be represented by
that attorney if he makes a voluntary, knowing, and understanding waiver of conflict-free

representation. Kabase v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 96 Nev. 471, 473, 611 P.2d 194, 195 (1980).

The United States Supreme Court has stated that a valid waiver of a fundamental constitutional
right ordinarily requires “‘an intentional relinquishment or abandonment of a known right or

privilege.”” Gallego v. State, 117 Nev. 348, 368, 23 P.3d 227, 241 (2001) overruled on other

grounds by Nunnery v. State, 127 Nev. Adv. Rep. 69, *45-*46 n.12, 263 P.3d 235 (2011) (quoting

Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 464 (1938)). Thus, when a criminal defendant offers to waive
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objections to a conflict, the district judge “*should fully explain ... the nature of the conflict, the
disabilities which it may place on counsel in his conduct of the defense, and the nature of the

potential claims which appcllants will be waiving.”” Kabase, 96 Nev. at 473, 611 P.2d at 195-96

(citing United States v. Armedo-Sarmiento, 524 F.2d 591, 593 (2d Cir. 1975), United States v.

Garcia, 517 F.2d 272, 278 (5th Cir. 1975), and Zuck v. Alabama, 588 F.2d 436, 440 (5th Cir.

1979)). However, “[c]ourts should indulge every reasonable presumption against waiver and
should not presume acquiescence in the loss of fundamental rights.” Gallego, 117 Nev. at 368, 23

P.3d at 241 (citing Barker v. Wingo, 407 U.S. 514, 525-26 (1972)).

When a defendant knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily waives her right to conflict-free
representation, the waiver is binding on the defendant throughout trial, on appeal, and in habeas

proceedings. Ryan v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court, 123 Nev. 419, 430, 168 P.3d 703, 711 (2007)

(citing Gomez v. Ahitow, 29 F.3d 1128, 1135-36 (7th Cir. 1994) (holding that where the defendant

knowingly and intelligently watves the right to conflict-free counsel, the waiver precludes claims
of ineffective assistance of counsel based on the conflict)). In Ryan, the Nevada Supreme Court
considered whether the district court abused its discretion when it refused to substitute in counsel
as defendant's counsel of choice. Id. at 421, 168 P.3d at 705. The defendant and her husband were
accused of murdering their roommate, stuffing her body in the trunk of their vehicle, and setting
the vehicle on fire to cover up the alleged crimes. Id. The defendant sought to have an attorney
represent her at trial whose partner already represented her codefendant. Id.

The law firm drafted a conflict-waiver letter, which both defendants signed. Ryan, 123
Nev. at 423, 168 P.3d at 706. The conflict-waiver letter stated, in pertinent part, the following:

(1) neither defendant has implicated the other in the crimes charged; (2) after a

thorough review of discovery and lengthy discussions with multiple counsel,

neither defendant intends to plead guilty or cooperate with the State; (3) a joint

defense agreement has been prepared to be executed by both defendants and both

attorneys; (4) either defendant's decision to cooperate with the State might change
the firm’s ability to continue representation; (5) in the event of a serious conflict or
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disagreement, the firm would be required to withdraw and represent neither
defendant; and (6) the firm’s withdrawal would be ‘inconvenient and potentially
adverse to each [defendant],” but the defendants understood that the ‘present
benefits of dual representation outweigh this contingent problem.’

The district court held several hearings on the defendant’s motion for substitution. Ryan,
123 Nev. at 423, 168 P.3d at 706. Additionally, the district court appointed advisory counsel to
speak with the defendant about the ramifications of dual representation. Id. Morcover, the district
court canvassed both defendants regarding the ramifications of dual representation. Id. at 424, 168
P.3d at 706. Ultimately, however, the district court ruled that there was “an actual or serious
potential conflict inherent in the dual representation, and issued a written order denying [the
defendant’s] request for substitution of counsel.” Id. at 425, 168 P.3d at 707. Consequently, the
defendant filed a petition for a writ of mandamus challenging the district court’s order denying the
defendant’s motion to substitute counsel. Id. at 421, 168 P.3d at 705.

The Nevada Supreme Court reasoned that a district court “has broad discretion to balance a
non-indigent criminal defendant’s right to choose her own counsel against the administration of
justice.” Ryan, 123 Nev. at 428, 168 P.3d at 709. Therefore, the Supreme Court concluded that a
district court must honor a criminal defendant’s voluntary, knowing, and intelligent waiver of
conflict-free representation so long as the conflicted representation will not interfere with the
administration of justice. Id. at 422-23, 168 P.3d at 705. Additionally, the Nevada Supreme Court
concluded that before engaging in dual representation, the attorney must advise the criminal
defendant of his right to consult with independent counsel to review the potential conflicts of
interest posed by the representation. Id. at 422, 168 P.3d at 705. And, if the defendant chooses not
to seek independent counsel, then the defendant must expressly waive his right to do so before the
defendant’s waiver of conflict-free representation can be valid. Id. Ultimately, the Court granted

the defendant’s petition, and issued a writ directing the district court to canvass both defendants to

9
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determine whether they knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily waived their right to conflict-free
representation. Id. at 421, 168 P.3d at 705.

In Middleton v. Warden, 120 Nev. 664, 664, 98 P.3d 694, 695 (2004), the Nevada Supreme

Court considered whether a district court erred in denying a defendant’s post-conviction petition
for a writ of habeas corpus. The defendant was convicted of two counts of first-degree murder,
sentenced to death. Id. at 665, 98 P.3d at 695. The Court affirmed the defendant's murder
convictions and death sentences on direct appeal. Id. The defendant filed a post-conviction habeas
corpus petition in the district court. Id. The district court appointed public defenders to represent
the defendant. 1d. Later, the district court removed the public defenders as the defendant’s counsel
due to a perceived conflict of interest. Id. The district court subsequently appointed private
attorneys to represent the defendant. Id. The district court denied the defendant’s post-conviction
petition for a writ of habeas corpus. Id. The defendant sought review of the district court’s order
denying his petition. Id. at 664, 98 P.3d at 695. Onc of the private attorncys appointed by the
district court represented the defendant on appeal to the Court. Id. at 665, 98 P.3d at 695.

The Nevada Supreme Court found that the defendant’s appointed private attorney had
“repeatedly violated [the Nevada Supreme Court’s] orders and procedural deadlines,” and “the

work product he ultimately submitted was wholly substandard and unacceptable.” Middleton, 120

Nev. at 665, 98 P.3d at 695. Therefore, the Court removed the appointed private attorney as
counsel, vacated the district court order denying the defendant’s habeas corpus petition, and
remanded with an instruction to the district court to appoint new post-conviction counsel to
represent the defendant. Id. at 669, 98 P.3d at 698. More importantly, however, in remanding the
case to the district court, the Nevada Supreme Court noted, “[b]ecause the [public defender]

represented [the defendant] in his direct appeal and because post-conviction claims respecting that

10
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representation may again be presented below, the [public defender] should not be appointed as [the
defendant’s] new post-conviction counsel.” Id. at 665 n.3, 98 P.3d at 695 n.3.

In United States v. Del Muro, 87 F.3d 1078, 1080 (9th Cir. 1996), the United States Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit considered whether a federal district court erroneously denied a
defendant’s request for the appointment of substitute counsel. The defendant charged under federal
law with falsely claiming to be a United States citizen. Id. A jury found the defendant guilty, and
he was sentenced to a term of imprisonment. Id. The defendant filed a motion for new trial,
claiming trial counsel had rendered ineffective assistance by failing to interview or subpoena
witnesses suggested by the defendant. Id. The defendant requested that the federal district court
appoint substitute counsel to present the motion on his behalf. Id. The federal district court denied
the defendant’s request. Id. The federal district court held an evidentiary hearing on the motion at
which it reviewed declarations and heard live testimony of the potential witnesses. Id. The federal
district court required trial counsel to examine the potential trial witness who testified, and argue
that counsel’s own failure to investigate and call this witness and two others prejudiced the
defendant’s casc. Id. The federal district court denied the motion on the ground that the witness’
testimony would not have affected the outcome of the trial. Id. On appeal, the defendant argued
that the federal district court created an inherent conflict of interest by forcing trial counsel to
prove his own ineffectiveness, and thereby deprived the defendant of his Sixth Amendment right
to effective assistance of counsel. 1d.

The Ninth Circuit found that “[t]here was an actual, irreconcilable conflict between [the
defendant] and his trial counsel at the hearing on the motion for new trial.” Del Muro, 87 F.3d at
1080. Specifically, the Court found that, “[w]hen [the defendant’s] allegedly incompetent trial
attorney was compelled to produce new evidence and examine witnesses to prove his services to

the defendant were ineffective, he was burdened with a strong disincentive to engage in vigorous

11
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argument and examination, or to communicate candidly with his client.” Id. Thus, this conflict was
“likely to affect counsel's performance.” Id. Therefore, the Ninth Circuit vacated the sentence and
remanded the casc to the federal district court to conduct a hearing on the defendant’s motion for a
new trial with the defendant represented by appointed substitute counsel. Id. at 1081.

Here, Mr. Jefferson’s trial and appellate counsel were incffective, because counsel actively
represented a concurrent conflict of interest that affected their performance. Specifically, attorney
Bryan Cox of the Clark County Public Defender’s office represented Mr. Jefferson throughout the
proceedings in the district court. Similarly, attorney Audrey Conway, also of the Clark County
Public Defender’s office, represented Mr. Jefferson during the appellate stages of the instant case.
As this Court is well aware, the appropriate vehicle for reviewing claims of ineffective assistance
of counsel is a timely post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus. This is the only means of
assigning error to the ineffective assistance of both trial and appellate counsel. However, in this
case, Mr. Cox actively represented a conflicting interest, because he represented Mr. Jefferson
despite the fact that Mr. Jefferson filed a complaint with the Nevada State Bar on October 18,
2011, during the course of that representation. See Exhibit A, “Letter from State Bar of Nevada to
Brandon Jefferson,” March 11, 2015, 2. The conflict should be imputed to Ms. Conway, because
she and Mr. Cox both work for the public defender.

Additionally, in the instant matter, Mr. Jefferson never made a voluntary, knowing, or
understanding waiver of his right to conflict-free representation. Unlike Ryan, in which this Court
acknowledged a defendant’s ability to waive the right to conflict-free counsel, Mr. Cox never
drafted a conflict waiver letter, nor did Mr. Jefferson ever sign such a waiver. Furthermore, unlike
Ryan, the district court never held a hearing regarding a waiver. Additionally, unlike Ryan, the
district court never appointed advisory counsel to speak with Mr. Jefferson about the ramifications

of his counsel’s active conflict of interest. Moreover, unlike Ryan, the district court never

12
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canvasscd Mr. Jefferson regarding the ramifications of a waiver of his right to conflict-free
representation.

Here, the district court failed to explain the nature of the conflict to the defendant.
Moreover, the district court failed to explain the disabilities that the conflict placed on counsel in
his conduct of the defense. Furthermore, the district court failed to explain the nature of the
potential claims that Mr. Jefferson would be waiving. Instead, Mr. Jefferson asserts that he never
discussed the disqualification issuc with Mr. Cox, or that the representation was barred by existing
case law.

“[1]n certain limited instances, a defendant is relieved of the responsibility of establishing

the prejudicial effect of his counsel’s actions.” Clark v. State, 108 Nev. 326, 326, 831 P.2d 1376,
1376 (1992). A presumption of prejudice arises when an actual conflict of interest adversely

affects counsel’s performance. Nika v. State, 120 Nev. 600, 97 P.3d 1140 (2004) (citing Clark, 108

Nev. at 326, 831 P.2d at 1376); sce also Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 692 (1984)

(“Given the obligation of counsel to avoid conflicts of interest and the ability of trial courts to
make carly inquiry 1n certain situations likely to give rise to conflicts, ... it is reasonable for the
criminal justice system to maintain a fairly rigid rule of presumed prejudice for conflicts of

interest.”); Coleman, 109 Nev. at 3-4, 846 P.2d at 277-278 (citing Holloway v. Arkansas, 435 U.S.

475 (1978) and Clark, 108 Nev. at 326, 831 P.2d at 1376 (1992)). ““To hold otherwise would

engage a reviewing court in unreliable and misguided speculation as to the amount of prejudice
suffered by a particular defendant. An accused’s constitutional right to effective representation of

counsel 1s too precious to allow such imprecise calculations.” Coleman, 109 Nev. at 3, 846 P.2d at

277 (quoting United States v. Alvarez, 580 F.2d 1251, 1259 (5th Cir. 1978)).

Prejudice may be presumed where counsel’s actions are improper per se. Jones v. State,

110 Nev. 730, 738, 877 P.2d 1052, 1057 (1994).

13
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In the instant matter, Mr. Jefferson need not establish the prejudicial effect of counsels’

representation, because, under the Nevada Supreme Court’s holding in Jones, Mr. Cox’s active

conflict of interest 18 improper per se. Specifically, in the instant matter, Mr. Cox represented Mr.
Jefterson after Mr. Jefferson filed a bar complaint. The public defender’s office continued to
represent at the appellate stages through Ms. Conway. Post-conviction is the vehicle by which a
court measures the question of whether counsel rendered ineffective assistance. Therefore,
counsel’s active conflict of interest amounts to prejudice per se, and Mr. Jefferson should be
relieved of his burden of demonstrating any prejudice resulting from Mr. Jefferson’s conflict of
interest.

In the instant matter, Mr. Jefferson was prejudiced by counsels’ ineffective assistance,
because he filed a bar complaint against Mr. Cox prior to trial in this case. Therefore, the existence
of the bar complaint is prima facie evidence of counsel’s ineffective assistance.

I1. MR. JEFFERSON IS ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING,
BECAUSE HIS CLAIMS ARE SUPPORTED BY FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
THAT, IF TRUE, WOULD ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF, AND HIS CLAIMS
ARE NOT BELIED BY THE RECORD.

A petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if he raises claims supported by sufficient
factual allegations that, if true, would entitle him to relief and that are not belied by the record.

Toston v. State, 127 Nev. Adv. Rep. 87, 267 P.3d 795, 799 (2011) (citing Hargrove v. State, 100

Nev. 498, 502-03, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984)).

Here, Mr. Jefferson is entitled to an evidentiary hearing because, as demonstrated above,
his claims arc supported by sufficient factual allegations that, if true, entitle him to relief, and his
claims are not belied by the record. Therefore, this court should order an evidentiary hearing

pursuant to Toston.

14
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III.THE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF TRIAL COUNSEL’S ERRORS VIOLATED MR.
JEFFERSON’S RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL.

“‘The cumulative effect of errors may violate a defendant’s constitutional right to a fair

trial even though errors are harmless individually.””' Maestas v. State, 128 Nev. Adv. Rep. 12, 275

P.3d 74, 90 (2012) (quoting Hernandez v. State, 118 Nev. 513, 535, 50 P.3d 1100, 1115 (2002)).

When evaluating a claim of cumulative error, an appellate court considers the following factors:

(199

(1) whether the 1ssue of guilt 18 close, (2) the quantity and character of the error, and (3) the

gravity of the crime charged.”” Valdez v. State, 124 Nev. 1172, 1195, 196 P.3d 465, 481 (2008)

(quoting Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17, 992 P.2d 845, 854-55 (2000)).

Here, as is evident from his pro se post-conviction petition and the instant Supplemental
Petition, Mr. Jefferson was further prejudiced by the cumulative impact of trial and appellate

counsel’s ineffective assistance.

: According to the Nevada Supreme Court, this is the cumulative error standard that the

Nevada Supreme Court applies on direct appeal from a judgment of conviction. McConnell v.
State, 125 Nev. Adv. Rep. 24, 212 P.3d 307, 318 n.17 (2009). However, in McConnell, the Nevada
Supreme Court acknowledged that “some courts have taken an approach similar to cumulative
crror in addressing incffective-assistance claims, holding that multiple deficiencies in counsel’s
performance may be cumulated for purposes of the prejudice prong of the Strickland test when the
individual deficiencies otherwise would not meet the prejudice prong.” Id. Ultimately, however,
the McConnell Court noted that, “[a]ssuming that multiple claims of constitutionally deficient
counsel may be cumulated to demonstrate prejudice,” the petitioner still was not entitled to relief.
Id.

15
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CONCLUSION

After consideration of Mr. Jefferson’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and this
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus, Mr. Jefferson respectfully requests that this
Court grant his post-conviction petition. Specifically, this Court should vacate the previous
Jjudgment of conviction and sct this case for a new trial free of the extremely prejudicial
constitutional violations that occurred in Mr. Jefferson’s trial as a result of counsel’s ineffective
assistance. Alternatively, this court should conduct an evidentiary hearing to allow meaningful
examination of trial counsel regarding their ineffective representation of Mr. Jefferson.

DATED this 22nd day of December, 20135.

NGUYEN & LAY

MATTHEW LAY, ESQ.

Necvada Bar Number 12249

732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 383-3200
Facsimile: (702) 675-8174

Email: dml@lasvegasdefender.com
ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER
BRANDON JEFFERSON
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I certify that service of the foregoing SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF

HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION) was made this 22nd day of December, 2015, by

electronic filing to:

CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Email address: pdmotions(@clarkccountyda.com

MATTHEW LAY, ESQ.

Necvada Bar Number 12249
Nguyen & Lay

732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 383-3200
Facsimile: (702) 675-8174

Email: dml@lasvegasdefender.com
ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER
BRANDON JEFFERSON
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

The undersigned hereby declares that on December 22, 2015, a true and correct copy of the

forcgoing SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (POST-

CONVICTION) was sent via United States First Class mail to the following:

Brandon Jefferson, 1094051

Ely State Prison
P.O. Box 1989
Ely, Nevada 89301

NGUYEN & LAY

MATTHEW LAY, ESQ.

Nguyen & Lay

Necvada Bar Number 12249

732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 383-3200
Facsimile: (702) 675-8174

Email: dml@lasvegasdefender.com
ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER
BRANDON JEFFERSON
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EXHIBIT A



STATE BAR OF NEVADA

March 11, 2015

Brandon Jefferson, #1094051
Ely State Prison |
PO Box 1989
Ely, NV 89301
RE: Grievance File #5C11-1536 / Bryan Cox, Esq.
Dear Mr. Jefferson:

Per your request, here is a copy of your original grievance.

- Sincerely,

Phillip J. Pattee
Assistant Bar Counsel

PJP/rc

Enclosure

600 East Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104-1563
phaac 702.382.2200

wll free 800.254.2797

fax 702.385.2878

9456 Double R Blvd., Ste. B

Reno, NV 89521-5977

phane 775.329.4100
fax 775.329.0522

www.nvbar.org
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TO \N.HoMEVGR CANM RELP:

HELLo | Croop DAy [ EVeENING, My NAME 15 BRANDON M. JEFFERSON
A BoeN AND RBatseD LAS VEGAN. T AM CURRENTLY BEING WELD
AT CLARS CauNT‘y PeTENTION CENTER OoN 5SoME VERy SERIOUS
ALLEGATIONS. T AN BEING REPRESEMTED By THE (LaRK CounTy
pUBLIC TEFENDER S OFFICE, BuT T. AM HAVING A BT of
AN T SSvE WiTH My APpoiNTED COuNSEL MR. BRyAN Cox. As ALwAys
WHEN T HAVE A “CONTACT VSIT Wil HHM HE gufﬁez"uc«m.y L
NERBALLY ABUSES ME OR TGNSRES MY ouTLooKk. TBUT Topay OCTORER I
2611 VIsT HE ToLp ME ™ peopLe LIKE you BeELoNa M WELL NOT™ prisoN. ”
THS HueT T DoNT know (F HE MEANT THAT BECAUSE of THE NATURE
OF My CRIME OR Simply BECAUSE OF My AFRICAN AMERICAN HERITAGE, .
TVE SENT A LETTER TO THE _NEVADA BAR AS wELL FuED My owN o
HANDWEITTEN AMoTlon For HIS ’DlSMlsskl_’ HoweveR T otiLl FEEL. SiNGLEd

ovt. PLEAST WELP AME 1N kMyWP«/ PoSSIBLE. GoD BLESS.
ACCUSED of SEXVAL ASSAULT [ LEWDNES S W/ Minvo R UMDER. Fouzrgen,
“ RESTPECTFuLLy | o

BranmoN M. JeFFgRsoN
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Case No. C-10- 2693511

AOR L.a)u Electronically Filed
f 06/29/2016 11:56:58 AM

0f NEVADA IN AND FoR THE COUNTY OF CLARK

BRANDGN M. JE FFERSON )
| )
oelient, NOTICE OF APPEAL
VS, ]
THE StATE OF NEVADA %
Respondent, )

d3A303Y

Dept No. |V

TN THE ETGHTH JUDTCIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STRTE

Q@«Z‘-*‘W

CLERK OF THE COURT

Notice 1s hereby given that BRANDON M. JEFFERSON, Apellant
above named, hereby appeals to The NEVADA SUPREME CourT from the Order
Dmy?n_a petitioner’s Weik of Habeas Corpus,

Entered In +his achion on the 16™ day of Tuwe, 2016,

BRANDON M. JEFFER®N
NDoC # 106G 4051

Ely State Prison

P, Bex 1484
Ely, Nevada 9936l - 1994
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MATL

T, DRANDON M. TEFFERSON, hereby (.erf‘lafy pursuant to Rule 5(b)
of Hhe NRCP, that ¢n +his 20T day of TJUNE, 20i6, T Served a true and

Correct Copy of the above enhtled NOTICE OF APPCAL Postage oad and

adeessed as Follows:

Py -
CTGHT 1 TUDICTAL DISTRICK Courr STEVEN B. WOLF&N, C.C. DA,

200 Lewrs Avenue qrd Fapr 200 Lewis Ave 4 Fleor

Las vegas, Nv Q1SS
Las vegas, v 84155 -1160 j

S'tai\ah:rc Atarden M Gefpingm

’Pr;nk name BRANDON M JEHFERON CADEET|

Ely Shate Pr]cim
Ely, Nevada, @a301 -1964
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239 B.030

1, BRANDON M. TEFFERSON, Nooc i 1084051 Cerhfy that T am +he

Undersigned Individuad  and ot the aHoched document enthitled NOTICE
OF APPEAL  docs not Cantwin the Social Secunty Numbere of ony pecsns,
under the pau‘uns ainel penalﬁes of per;\ury. DATED ThIs Z2¢TH day of JuNE,

Wle.

Seenpturg: Brortn M. Jebhm

TNMATE PRENTED NAME © DRANOON M. JE€FERSON

INMATE NDoc # 1044051

INMATE ADRESS ! ELY STAME PRLGN
P.0. Box 1304
Ely, Meada 4301
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ZRIAVIER VTS .
1 k FCL CLERK OF THE COURT
' STEVEN B. WOLFSON
2 i Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
3 || JAMES R. SWEETIN
Deputy District Attorney
4 | Nevada Bar #005144
200 Lewis Avenue
5 | Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500
6 f' Attorney for Plaintiff
7 DISTRICT COURT
8 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
9
10 THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
11
-vs- CASE NO: 10C268351
12
BRANDON JEFFERSON, DEPT NO: IV
13 || #2508991
14 Defendant.
15
6 “ FINDINGS OF FACT. CONCLUSIONS OF
17 LAW AND ORDER
DATE OF HEARING: MAY 19, 2016
18 TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.
19 THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable KERRY EARLEY,
20 [ District Judge, on the 19th day of May, 2016; the Petitioner not being present, represented by
21 || his counsel MATTHEW D. LAY, ESQ.; the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B.
22 || WOLFSON, Clark County District Attorney, by and through BERNARD E. ZADROWSKI,
23 || Chief Deputy District Attorney; and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs,
24 || transcripts, documents on file herein, and without arguments of counsel; now therefore, the
25 || Court makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law:
26 || /
27 (| /
28 || //

Electronically Filed
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FINDINGS OF FACT
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
On November 5, 2010, the State filed an Amended Information charging Brandon
Jefferson as follows: Counts 1, 3,5, 7,9, and 10: Sexual Assault with a Minor Under the Age
of 14 (Category A Felony — NRS 200.364; 200.366); Counts 2,4, 6, 8, and 11: Lewdness with
a Child Under the Age of 14 (Category A Felony — NRS 201.230). That same day, Jefferson

pleaded “not guilty.”
On March 25, 2011, Jefferson filed a “Motion to Suppress Unlawfully Obtained

O 00 ~1 O L A W N

Statement” in which he argued that he did not knowingly and voluntarily waive his Miranda'

[
o

rights and that his confession to police was coerced. The State opposed the Motion on April
11 || 6,2011. On June 2, 2011, the Court held a Jackson v. Denno? hearing, during which the Court
12 || received several exhibits and testimony from Detective Matthew Demas. After entertaining
13 || argument from counsel, the Court verbally denied Jefferson’s Motion. A written order
14 || followed thereafter on June 16, 2011.

15 Meanwhile, on April 13, 2011, Jefferson also filed a Motion in Limine to Preclude
16 || Inadmissible 51.385 Evidence, in which he argued that the child victim’s statements to other
17 || people regarding sexual abuse were hearsay and that admission of the statements would violate

18 || the Confrontation Clause. The State opposed the Motion on April 27, 2011, reasoning that 1t

19 || was premature because the availability of the child victim, as well as other witnesses, was not
20 || yet confirmed. The Court héld an evidentiary hearing on the matter, thereafter, it decided that
71 || statements the victim made to her mother were admissible, but statements made to Detective
22 || Demas were not, barring additional developments. A written order denying in part and
23 || granting in part Jefferson’s Motion was then filed on January 17, 2012.

24 On October 19, 2011, Jefferson filed in a proper person a Motion to Dismiss Counsel
25 || in which he expressed dissatisfaction with counsel’s performance, particularly counsel’s
26 || alleged disregard of Jefferson’s strategy suggestions. Jefferson advised the Court that his
27 || issues with counsel were: 1) counsel had not given Jefferson his full discovery; 2) counsel had

28

| Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 86 S. Ct. 1602 (1966).
2378 U.S. 368, 84 S. Ct. 1774 (1964).
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not made phone calls to Jefferson’s family members as Jefferson asked; and 3) counsel failed
to obtain Jefferson’s work records. After a discussion, the Court verbally denied the Motion.
A written order then followed on November 1, 2011.

On November 16, 2011, the State filed a Second Amended Information which included
the same substantive charges and minor grammatical/factual corrections.

On July 16, 2012, the State filed a Motion in Limine to Preclude Improper Testimony
from Defendant’s Expert Witness. Primarily, the Motion argued that defense expert Dr.

Chambers could not argue about Jefferson’s psychiatric state during his interview with Dr.

O 00 ~N1 O W A W N

T Chambers, as the State would not have a fair opportunity to rebut the “state of mind” evidence.

o
o

Alternatively, the State requested a psychiatric evaluation of Defendant. Defense counsel then
11 ll informed the Court, on July 26, 2012, that it did not intend to present such evidence.
12 {| Accordingly, the Court denied the State’s Motion as moot.

13 Jury selection began on July 30, 2012. On August 1, 2012, the jury was sworn and
14 || Jefferson’s jury trial began. A week later, the jury retired to deliberate. Two hours later, the
15 || jury found Jefferson guilty of Counts 1, 2, 4, 9, and 10, and not guilty of Counts 3, 5, 6, 7, and
16 || 82

17 On October 23, 2012, Jefferson appeared with counsel for a sentencing hearing. At the

18 || outset, the parties discussed whether Counts 1 and 2 merged, and the State informed the Court
19 || that it was not opposed to dismissing Count 2. The Court then adjudicated Jefferson guilty
20 || pursuant to the jury’s verdict and entertained argument from the State and defense counsel.
291 || The Court then sentenced Jefferson to a $25 Administrative Assessment Fee, $150 DNA
22 || Analysis Fee, and incarceration in the Nevada Department of Corrections as follows: Count
23 || 1 — Life with parole eligibility after 35 years; Count 4 — Life with parole eligibility after 10

24 || years, to run concurrent with Count 1; Count 9 — Life with parole eligibility after 35 years, to

25 || run consecutive with Counts 1 and 4; and Count 10 — Life with parole eligibility after 35 years,
26 |l to run concurrent with Counts 1, 4, and 9, with 769 days’ credit for time served. The Court
27 || also ordered Jefferson to pay $7,427.20 in restitution, and held that if he were released from
28

3 The State voluntarily dismissed Count 11 on August 7, 2012, and the relevant jury instructions and verdict form were
amended accordingly. \

3
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1 {{ prison, Jefferson would be required to register as a sex offender pursuant to NRS Chapter

2 || 179D, and would be subject to lifetime supervision pursuant to NRS 179.460.

3 The Court filed a Judgment of Conviction on October 30, 2012, and Jefferson filed a

4 || Notice of Appeal on November 14, 2012. In a lengthy unpublished order, the Nevada Supreme

5 || Court affirmed Jefferson’s Convictions and Sentence, reasoning that none of his 11

6 || contentions of error were meritorious. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 (Order of Affirmance,

7 “ July 29, 2014). In particular, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that the Court did not err by

8 || denying Jefferson’s Motion to Suppress Unlawfully Obtained Statement because Jefferson

9 I was properly read his Miranda rights, the discussion with detectives was appropriate and not
10 || coercive, and the detectives’ allegedly “deceptive interrogation techniques,” were neither
11 || coercive nor likely to produce a false confession. Id. at 3-4. The Supreme Court further
12 || rejected Jefferson’s allegations of prosecutorial misconduct and held that the Court did not
13 || abuse its discretion by admitting evidence of jail phone calls between Jefferson and his wife,
14 || admitting testimony from the victim’s mother and brother about the sexual abuse, or declining
15 || to give Jefferson’s proposed jury instructions. Id. at 5-10; 13-14. Finally, the Supreme Court
16 || held that sufficient evidencé supported the jury’s verdict because “the issue of guilt was not
17 || close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.” Id. at 11-12, 16. Thereafter,
18 || remittitur issued on August 26, 2014.
19 On October 2, 2014, Jefferson filed, in proper person, a timely Post-Conviction Petition
20 || for Writ of Habeas Corpus. Shortly thereafter, the State filed a Motion to Appoint Counsel,
21 || reasoning that that it was in everyone’s best interest to appoint counsel to assist Jefferson in
22 || post-conviction matters. The Court granted the Motion and Attorney Matthew Lay confirmed
23 || as counsel on October 28, 2014. That same day, the Court set a briefing schedule.
24 On December 22, 2015, Jefferson filed, with the assistance of counsel, a Supplemental
25 || Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. On April 5, 2016, the State filed its Response to both the
26 I original Petition and the Supplemental Petition. On May 19, 2016, the Court denied Jefferson’s
27 || Petition and Supplemental Petition.
28 | I

4
000149




o——
s

PETITION ARGUMENTS
JEFFERSON’S GROUNDS 1 AND 2 REGARDING HIS CONFESSION TO
DETECTIVES ARE BARRED BY THE LAW-OF-THE-CASE DOCTRINE

Py
.

“Under the law of the case doctrine, issues previously determined by [the Nevada
Supreme Court] on appeal may not be reargued as a basis for habeas relief.” Pellegrini v.
State, 117 Nev. 860, 888,34 P.3d 519, 538 (2001). See also Dictor v. Crgative Mgmt. Servs.,
LLC, 126 Nev., Adv. Op. 4,223 P.3d 332, 334 (2010) (“The law-of-the-case doctrine provides

that when an appellate court decides a principle or rule of law, that decision governs the same

O 00 ~1 O W AW N e

issues in subsequence proceedings in that case.”). Here, this Court finds that Jefferson’s first

Pt
o

and second arguments in his Pro-Per Petition regarding admission of his incriminating
11 || statements to the detectives were already raised and thoroughly briefed in his direct appeal.
12 || Compare Petition at 5-7 with Jefferson’s Opening Appellate Brief (“AOB™) at 6-15. The
13 || Nevada Supreme Court rejected his argument, reasoning that “the circumstances show

14 || Jefferson voluntarily waived Miranda,” Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 4 n.1, and that

15 || “substantial evidence supported the district court’s conclusion that Jefferson’s confession was
16 || voluntary.” Id. at 3.
17 Thus, because the Nevada Supreme Court already considered and rejected Jefferson’s

18 || argument regérding Miranda, as well as his related argument regarding coercion, this Court

19 || finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing those issue in his Petition
20 || for a Writ of Habeas Corpus. As such, Grounds 1 and 2 are denied.

21 | . JEFFERSON’S ARGUMENTS REGARDING  PROSECUTORIAL
22 MISCONDUCT ARE WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE
23 In Ground 3, Jefferson contends that the State committed prosecutorial misconduct in
24 || four instances. This Court finds that his contention, namely, that the State “[iJmpermissably
25 | led CJ’s testimony,” Petition at 10, is barred by the law of the case because the Nevada
26 || Supreme Court already rejected his “contentions of prosecutorial misconduct.” Jefferson v.
27 || State, No. 62120 at 6 n.2; AOB 21-22. Jefferson raised this exact issue in his opening brief
28 I and it was rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court.
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In addition, this Court finds that all of the Jefferson’s arguments regarding prosecutorial

misconduct are waived and must be dismissed pursuant to NRS 34.810, which provides:

The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds
for the petition could have been: (1) Presented to the trial court;
(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a 1Pnor petition for writ of habeas
corpus or post conviction relief; or (3) Raised in any other
proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure relief from his
conviction and sentence, unless the court finds both cause for the
failure to present the grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

(Emphasis added); see also Great Basin Water Network v. State Eng’r, 126 Nev., Adv. Op.
20, 234 P.3d 912, 916 (2010) (““[S]hall’ is a term of command; it is imperative or mandatory,
not permissive or directory.”); Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-647, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001)

(“A court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have
been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present
the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.””). Indeed,
the Nevada Supreme Court has held that all “claims that are appropriate!* for a direct appeal
must be pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent
proceedings.” Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994), overruled
‘on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999). Accordingly, this

Court finds that Jefferson’s arguments regarding prosecutorial misconduct should have been
raised, if at all, on direct appeal, and his failure to do so precludes review because his
arguments are considered waived. Id.; NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2). Further, this Court finds that
because Jefferson fails to offer any good cause to excuse his failure to raise these particular
arguments on direct appeal, Ground 3 is denied.
III. JEFFERSON’S ALLEGATIONS OF EVIDENTIARY ERROR ARE ALSO
WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE
In Ground 4, Jefferson argues that the Court abused its discretion by “tainting the jury,”
admitting admissible hearsay, and permitting jurors to learn that Jefferson was incarcerated.

Petition at 13-15.

4 Claims of ineffective assistance of counsel must be raised in the first instance in post-conviction proceedings. Pellegrini,
117 Nev. at 882, 34 P.3d at 534. Other non-frivolous, properly preserved contentions of error are appropriate for appeal.

6
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1 C: Jefferson alleges that the jury venire was tainted after the Court made, in reference to
2 || the difficult nature of the charges involved in this case, a broad statement to the effect that no
3 || one likes violence or sexual offenses. Petition at 13. In context, the purpose of the statement
4 || was not to voice a “professional opinion” on the matter, but to clarify that a juror is not
5 || disqualified simply because he or she has understandable negative feclings about violence and
6 || sexual offenses. This Court finds that because Jefferson could have raised this issue on direct
7 || appeal but failed to do so, it is waived and must be dismissed. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2).
8 Jefferson’s second argument focuses on testimony from CJ’s mother and brother
9 || regarding CJ’s statements to them about the sexual abuse perpetrated by Jefferson. Jefferson
10 || previously raised this issue in his direct appeal, AOB 37-41, and the Nevada Supreme Court
11 || rejected the argument as meritless. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 9-10. As such, this Court
12 || finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing this issue in the instant
13 || Petition. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538.
14 The third and final argument in this section alleges that jurors wrongfully learned of
15 | Jefferson’s incarceration because of admission of phone calls between Jefferson and his wife,
16 || the victim’s mother. Petition at 15. Jefferson previously raised this issue on direct appeal,
17 || AOB 27-30, and while the Nevada Supreme Court held that portions of the calls were more
18 || prejudicial than probative, it held that any error in admitting the calls was harmless. Jefferson
19 || v. State, No. 62120 at 6-7. In so holding, the Supreme Court focused on the use of
20 || inflammatory language and the clear anguish in Jefferson’s wife’s voice. Id. It did not,
21 || however, give credence to Jefferson’s arguments that the phone calls erroneously permitted
22 |l jurors to learn that he was incarcerated. Id. As such, this Court finds that this argument is
23 || without merit because the Nevada Supreme Court found no error in the admission of the calls
24 || and any argument that his incarceration status undermined his presumption of innocence was
25 || undermined by the trial judge’s repeated verbal and written instructions that Jefferson was
26 || innocent until proven guilty. Glover v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of Nev., 125 Nev. 691, 719,
27 (| 220 P.3d 684, 703 (2009) (Courts presume that juries will follow instructions). Further, this
28 || Court finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing this issue in the
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instant Petiﬁon. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538. As such, Ground 4 is denied.

[ v—

2 || IV. JEFFERSON’S ARGUMENTS REGARDING DOUBLE JEOPARDY AND/OR
3 REDUNDANCY ARE WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE
4 In Ground 5, Jefferson argues that he was wrongfully convicted and sentenced in
5 || violation of Double Jeopardy and/or Nevada’s redundancy doctrine because the evidence of at
6 || trial was non-specific. Petition at 16.
7 This Court finds that this argument is waived because Jefferson could have raised it on
8 || direct appeal but failed to do so. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877
9 || P.2dat1059.

10 Further, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument also fails because of the law-of-the-

11 || case-doctrine as the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Jefferson’s Judgment of Conviction in

12 || its entirety because evidence supporting the jury’s verdict was “overwhelming.” Jefferson v.

13 || State, No. 62120 at 16; see also id. at 12 (“[A] rational trier of fact could have found Jefferson
14 | guilty of three counts of sexual assault and one count of lewdness beyond a reasonable

15 {| doubt.”). Moreover, while Jefferson claims that the evidence was “non-specific,” the Nevada

16 || Supreme Court found that “CJ testified with specificity as to four separate occasions of sexual
17 || abuse.” Id.at 11. Thus, this Court finds that Jefferson cannot reargue this issue in the instant
18 || Petition. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538. As such, Ground 5 is denied.

19 | V. JEFFERSON CANNOT REARGUE SUFFICIENCY OF THE EVIDENCE

20 In Ground 6, Jefferson alleges insufficient evidence largely because “CJ’s testimony
21 || was without independent details.” Petition 17. This Court finds that this argument is without
22 || merit because the Nevada Supreme Court has “repeatedly held that the testimony of a sexual
23 || assault victim alone is sufficient to uphold a conviction.” LaPierre v. State, 108 Nev. 528,
24 || 531, 836 P.2d 56, 58 (1992); see also Gaxiola v. State, 121 Nev. 633, 648, 119 P.3d 1225,
25 || 1232 (2005). Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument also fails because the

26 || Nevada Supreme Court rejected the same argument on appeal, reasoning that “the issue of
27 || guilt was not close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.” See Jefferson v.

28 || State, No. 62120 at 11-12; 16; see also Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538 (“[I]ssues
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previously determined . . . on appeal may not be reargued as a basis for habeas relief.”). Thus,
Ground 6 is denied.
VI. JEFFERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF TRIAL COUNSEL

In Jefferson’s Ground 7 and the subsequent Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction), Jefferson raises multiple grounds of ineffective assistance of trial
counsel. |

A. A Rigorous Two-Prong Test Applies To Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel

Claims

“[T]he purpose of the effective assistance guarantée of the Sixth Amendment is not to-

improve the quality of legal representation . . . [but] simply to ensure that criminal defendants

receive a fair trial.” Cullen v. Pinholster,  U.S. , 131 S. Ct. 1388, 1403 (2012)

(internal quotation marks and citation omitted); see also Jackson v. Warden. Nev. State Prison,
91 Nev. 430, 432, 537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975) (“Effective counsel does not mean errorless
counsel”). To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, a defendant must prove
that he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong
test of Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S..668, 686-87, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2063-64 (1984). See
_&s_b State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993). Under this test, the

defendant must show first, that his counsel’s representation fell below an objective standard
of reasonableness, and second, but for counsel’s errors, there is a reasonable probability that
the result of the proceedings would have been different. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694,
104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068. This Court need not consider both prongs, however if a defendant

makes an insufficient showing on either one. Molina v. State, 120 Nev. 185, 190, 87 P.3d 533,
537 (2004).

“The benchmark for judging any claim of ineffectiveness must be whether counsel’s
conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot

be relied on as having produced a just result.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686, 104 S. Ct. at 2052.

Indeed, the question is whether an attorney’s representations amounted to incompetence under

prevailing professional norms, “not whether it deviated from best practices or most common
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l custom.” Harrington v. Richter, 562 U.S. 86, 105, 131 S. Ct. 770, 788 (2011); see also
|1 Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065 (“There are countless ways to provide effective

—r
———————

assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a
particular client in the same way.”). Accordingly, the role of a court in considering alleged
ineffective assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to
determine whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed

to render reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708,

711 (1978). In doing so, courts begin with the presumption of effectiveness and the defendant

O 00 N1 N W A W N

bears the burden of proving, by a preponderance of the evidence, that counsel was ineffective.

Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011-1012, 103 P.3d 25, 32-33 (2004) (holding “that a habeas

[u——
o

11 || corpus petitioner must prove the disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-
12 || assistance claim by a preponderance of the evidence.”).

13 Further, even if counsel’s performance was deficient, “it is not enough to show that the
14 || errors had some conceivable effect on the outcome of the proceeding.” Harrington, 562 U.S.
15 || at 104, 131 S. Ct. at 787 (quotation and citation omitted). Instead, the defendant must
16 || demonstrate that but for counsel’s incompetence the results of the proceeding would have been

17 || different:
In assessing prejudice under Strickland, the question is not

18 whether a court can be certain counsel’s performance had no effect
on the outcome or whether it is possible a reasonable doubt might

19 I have been established if counsel acted differently. Instead,
’ Strickland asks whether it is reasonably likely the results would

20 have been different. This does not require a showing that
counsel’s actions more likely than not altered the outcome, but the
21 difference between Strickland’s prejudice standard and a more-
probable-than-not standard is slight and matters only in the rarest
22 case. The likelihood of a different result must be substantial, not
’ just conceivable.

24 || Id. at 111-12, 131 S. Ct. at 791-92 (internal quotation marks and citations omitted). All told,
25 || “[sJurmounting Strickland’s high bar is never an easy task.” Padilla v. Kentucky, 559 U.S.

26 || 356,371,130 S. Ct. 1473, 1485 (2010). “A petitioner for post-conviction relief cannot rely on
27 1| conclusory claims for relief.” Colwell v. State, 118 Nev. 807, 812, 59 P.3d 463, 467 (2002).

28 || Instead, the petition must set forth specific factual allegations that are not belied by the record,
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1 || andif true, would entitle the petitioner to relief. See NRS 34.735; Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev.

2 || 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). For the foregoing reasons, this Court finds that none of

3 || Jefferson’s contentions of error, including his arguments in the Supplemental Petition, satisfy

4 “ this standard.

5 GROUND 7(A) — Jefferson faults counsel for failing to file a Motion in Limine to prohibit

6 || Dr. Vergara from testifying outside her area of expertise. Petition at 21. He also states, in

7 || general, that counsel was unwilling to “develop a working relationship with the petitioner and

8 || prepare for trial.” Id.

9 This Court finds that Jefferson’s first argument fails because motion practice is a
10 || strategic matter that is virtually unchallengeable. Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825

P.2d 593, 596 (1992) (“Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.”); Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 603, 817 P.2d

1169, 1171 (1991) (“[T]his court will not second-guess an attorney’s tactical decisions where
they relate to trial strategy and are within the attorney's discretion. This remains so even if
better tactics appear, in retrospect, to have been available.”). Moreover, this Court finds that
Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision not to file the
Motion in Limine, especially given the Nevada Supreme Court’s holding that any errors with

regard to Dr. Vergara were harmless. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 8-9; see also Molina,

120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538 (holding that petitioners must demonstrate how they were
prejudiced by alleged errors).

| Further, this Court finds that Jefferson’s other claims fail because “[a] petitioner for
post-conviction relief cannot rely on conclusory claims for relief.” Colwell, 118 Nev. at 812,
59 P.3d at 467; see also NRS 34.735; Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding

that a petition must set forth specific factual allegations that are not belied by the record, and

if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief). Further, the Sixth Amendment does not guarantee
a “meaningful relationship” between a defendant and his counsel, only that counsel be |

effective. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 13,103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983).
I/
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1 As such, this Court finds that this claim is also nothing more than a conclusory claim

2 || for relief without any supporting facts. As such, this Court denies this claim.

3 GROUND 7(B) - Jefferson alleges trial counsel was ineffective for moving to omit CJ’s

4 || statement to police and that defense counsel “misinterpreted” NRS 51.385. Both of these

5 || arguments apparently relate to the April 13, 2011, Motion in which counsel moved, on

6 |{| Jefferson’s behalf, to preclude alleged testimonial statements CJ made to her mother and law

7 || enforcement regarding the sexual abuse. In support of his argument, Jefferson cites to portions

8 “ of of CJ’s voluntary statement to law enforcement to support his contention that law

9 || enforcement forced CJ to “fabricate allegations to effect an arrest.” Petition at 21. This Court
10 (| finds that Jefferson’s contentions fail because they boil down to strategic decisions.
11 Jefferson citeé to only 5 pages out of the total 29 page voluntary statement CJ gave to
12 || police. However, aread of the entire statement reveals that after the initial denial by the 5 year-
13 || old victim, once detectives revealed that they were aware of CJ’s disclosure to her mother, CJ
14 || immediately proceeded to disclose the sexual abuse perpetrated by Jefferson. See Ex. 1, C¥’s
15 | Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court; see also Evidentiary Hearing
16 || -Transcript, December 8, 2011, pp. 31-54. CJ disclosed to detectives that Jefferson made her
17 || perform oral sex on Jefferson and that “liquid” came out of his penis, Jefferson made CJ touch
18 || his penis, also that Jefferson put his privates in her privates and that she cried because it hurt.
19 'ﬁ See Ex. 1, CJ’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court. Thus, this
20 “ Court finds that defense counsel made the strategic decision to fight the admission of these
21 || statements and was successful.> Defense counsel did not misinterpret NRS 51.385 and never
22 || improperly shifted the burden. Instead, this Court finds that defense counsel made the strategic
23 | decision to oppose the admission of the CJ’s disclosure to detectives. Davis, 107 Nev. at 603,
724 || 817 P.2d at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596. Moreover, this Court finds that
25 || Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision. Had the
26 |l statement been used, the jury would have heard that this 5 year-old victim initially stated
27
28 o v s avaiaby: Ses Graer Doty Derpine Jferson's oton to Procude 31 365 Testimony and Orde

Denying State’s Oral Motion to Terminate Jefferson’s Outside Privileges, filed Jan. 17, 2012.
12
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nobody touched her private areas, but upon being told that detectives already knew what CJ
had told her mother, CJ went into detail about the sexual abuse committed against CJ. As such,
this Court denies this claim.

GROUND 7(C) — Jefferson alleges trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object
and/or move for a new jury panel and/or failing to move for a mistrial based on the District

Court’s question during jury voir dire. Jefferson argues that trial counsel should have objected

| and/or moved for a new jury panel and/or moved for a mistrial when the Court asked the panel,

“How many of you like child molestation? I am not going to get people raising their hands to
that.” However, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument fails.

In context, the purpose of the statement was not to voice any sort of opinion on the
matter, but to clarify that a juror is not disqualified simply because he or she has
understandable negative feelings about violence and sexual offenses. While the State
individually questioned Prospective Juror No. 245, she indicated, “I have a real problem with
the charges.” Trial Transcript (“TT”) July 30, 2012, p. 126, 23-24. She went on to indicate,
“[IIn my mind, that’s one of the worst charges. I mean, anything else, I could probably look at
it openly, but not when children are involved.” Id. at p. 127, 8-11. As a result, the prosecutor
asked anybody that had strong feelings should raise his or her hand so that she could discuss

| this issue with the prospective juror(s). 1d. at p. 128, 2-7. The prosecutor then asked a series

of questions to Prospective Juror No. 245 regarding the presumption of innocence. Id. at p.128
lines 15-25, pp. 129-30. It was in this context that the Court stated to Prospective Juror No.

245;

It’s kind of like what I talked about earlier, is there’s nobody -- if
I’m going to ask the q11(1estion, how many of you like violence?
How many of you like rape? How many of you like child
molestation? How many -- you know, I’m not going to get people
raising their hand in response to that.
But as Ms. Fleck just clearly covered, it’s just an accusation. And
i/_ou said you believed you’'d be able to keep an open mind and
isten to the — listen to the testimony before you came to any
conclusions. Would you be able to deliberate with your fellow
jurors toward reaching a verdict?

//
/f

13

000158




ok 2o

I think you changed your position kind of during the questioning,
so that’s why I went back over it to clarify with you. You have not
heard one word of testimony, nor seen one piece of evidence at
this point.

Aok ok ok

Are you saying that you’re entirely close-minded and unable to
deliberate?

Id. at p. 131, lines 2-12.
Thus, in this context, the Court was merely establishing that at this stage in the

proceeding, the criminal charges were only an accusation and that the relevant inquiry was

O 00 N1 N b R W N e

whether the potential juror could keep an open mind while listening to the evidence. Contrary

ju—
()

to Jefferson’s assertion, this Court finds that this statement was not prejudicial. It was

11 || understandable that none of the prospective jurors would like violence or child molestation,

12 || but that was not the relevant inquiry and the Court was emphasizing this to Prospective Juror
13 || No. 245.

14 Because there was no wrongdoing by the Court, this Court finds that any objection by
15 || counsel and/or any request for a new jury panel and/or moving for a mistrial by defense counsel

16 || would have been futile. See Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006)

17 || (Counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to make futile objections, file futile motions,
18 || or for failing to make futile arguments.). Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson does not
19 || demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision not to raise this issue. As such, this
20 || Court denies this claim.

21 GROUND 7(D) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to

22 || impeach CJ with a prior inconsistent statement. This argument is related to supra Ground 7(B).
23 || This Court finds that Jefferson’s contention fails because this again boils down to a strategic
24 || decision.. Defense counsel did not elicit that when 5 year-old CJ initially sat down with two |
25 || detectives, she stated nobody had touched her privates. This was because then the State would
26 || have been able to elicit the rest of the statement where CJ disclosed to detectives that Jefferson
27 || made her perform oral sex on Jefferson and that “liquid” came out of his penis, Jefferson made

28 || CJtouch his penis, also that Jefferson put his privates in her privates and that she cried because

' 14
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1 “ it hurt. See Ex. 1, CJ’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court.

2 Thus, this Court find that defense counsel made the strategic decision to not attempt to

3 || impeach the 5 year-old victim which very well may have backfired with the jury and would

4 || have opened the door for the State to introduce the entirety of CJ’s statement. See Davis, 107

5 || Nev. at 603, 817 P.2d at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596. Moreover, this

6 I Court finds that Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision.

7 || As such, this Court denies this claim.

8 GROUﬁD 7(E) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to

9 || confront Dr. Vergara regarding not conducting a sexual assault kit. Specifically, Dr. Vergara
10 ‘i testified that a sexual assault examination should be done no later than 72 hours after the
11 || trauma, in fact “the sooner the better” or “probably even sooner” than 72 hours. TT, Aug. 2,
12 || 2012, p. 7, 23-25; p. 8; p. 9, 1-3. Jefferson references an EMT report (which would have been
13 || taken the day CJ went to the hospital on September 14, 2010) where medical personnel
14 || indicated that Jefferson last assaulted CJ on Septembér 11, 2010. However, this Court finds
15 " that defense counsel had no basis to “confront” Dr. Vergara for not conducting a sexual
16 || examination kit.
17 A reading of CJ’s entire statement to police reveals that CJ disclosed that the last time
18 || Jefferson made CJ perform oral sex on him or that Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ was “a week
19 || and 2 days ago.”‘S_gg Ex. 1, CJ’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the
20 || Court. Thus, there would have been no reason for Dr. Vergara to perform a sexual assault kit
21 || onClJ given that the last time Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ was well outside of the 72 hours.
22 || This information is also corroborated by CJ’s mother’s statement to detectives who never told
23 || law enforcement that CJ had been assaulted as recently as September 11, 2010. See Ex. 1, CJ’s
24 || mom’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court. Additionally, CI’s and
25 || CJ’s mother’s testimony do not support this contention. TT, Aug. 2, 2012, pp. 41-78; TT, Aug.
26 || 3, 2012, pp. 10-45. Further, Detective Demas testified that CJ disclosed that the last time she
27 || had been sexually abused had been “approximately seven or eight days, so over the five-day
28 |l period.” TT, Aug. 6, 2012, p. 44, 11-16. Based on that information, Detective Demas advised
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against doing a sexual assault kit. Id. at 17-25. Defense counsel successfully moved for
inclusion of the report writer’s testimony regarding the statement in question. TT, Aug. 8,
2012, pp. 27-35.

Based on all the witness’ statements and testimony, this Court finds that defense
counsel had no basis to confront Dr. Vergara for not doing a sexual assault kit on CJ. Any such
attempt would have been futile. Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. Moreover, this Court
finds that Jefferson has failed to demonstrate how he was prejudiced by this. Any attempt to
confront Dr. Vergara would have been successfully objected to. As such, this Court denies this
claim.

GROUND 7(F) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to move
for a continuance to “investigate” jail calls admitted into evidence. A defendant who contends
his attorney was ineffective because he did not adequately investigate must show how a better

investigation would have rendered a more favorable outcome probable. Molina, 120 Nev. at

192, 87 P.3d at 538. Jefferson sets forth nothing more than a bare allegation that other jail calls
would have somehow shown that CJ’s mother was on his side and this would have put the
State in an “awkward position.” Petition at 23.

On August 6, 2012, defense counsel attempted to preclude admission of all of the jail
calls by filing a Motion in Limine for an Order Preventing the State from Introducing
Unlawfully Recorded Oral Communications. Thus, this Court finds that defense counsel made
the strategic decision to attempt to preclude admission of ail of the jail calls by arguing that
there was an expectation of privacy at the time the calls were made. As such, this Court finds
that defense counsel cannot be faulted for the strategic decision to attempt to keep out all jail
calls because if they had been successful, Jefferson’s argument would be moot as counsel
would have successfully precluded admission of all jail calls. Davis, 107 Nev. at 603, 817 P.2d
at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596.

Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate how he was prejudiced
by not being able to introduce this alleged information. For the aforementioned reasons, this

Court denies this claim.
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GROUND 7(G) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
challenge the lewdness conviction because the only evidence presented to support this
conviction was Jefferson’s confession to detectives. Because this issue was raised on appeal
by and it failed, this Court finds that any effort by trial counsel to attempt to challenge the
lewdness count would have been futile as the Nevada Supreme Court found that there was
sufficient evidence to support the jury’s verdict. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 11-12; see
also Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. Indeed, the Nevada Supreme Court found that

the “issue of guilt was not close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.”

Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 16.

Further, the jury heard more than just Jefferson’s confession. The jury also heard CJ’s
own testimony about 4 separate occasions of sexual abuse—three in Jefferson’s bedroom and
one in her own bedroom. CJ testified that on each of the three occasions in the master bedroom,
Jefferson put his penis in her mouth, vagina, and anus and on the fourth occasion, in her
bedroom, Jefferson put his penis in her mouth and vagina. Further, the jury heard from CJ’s
mother about CJ’s initial disclosure, also about an instance when Jefferson seemed eager for
CJ’s mother to go to bed and for CJ to stay up with Jefferson—CJ’s mother later found a sad,
disoriented CJ standing in a dark bedroom (consistent with CJ’s testimony of sexual abuse).
The jury also heard from CJ’s brother who testified how Jefferson would take CJ into his
bedroom while their mother was at work and on 1 occasion, heard CJ crying from the master
bedroom—again, this was consistent with CJ’s testimony regarding the abuse. The jury also
heard jail calls, Jefferson’s letters to CI’s mother after his arrest, and the 911 call Jefferson
made the day that he was arrested. All of these things corroborated CJ’s testimony of sexual
abuse. Thus, this Court finds that the jury did not solely rely on Jefferson’s confession and
Jefferson’s argument is belied by the record. Further, this Court finds that any argument by
defense counsel would have been futile. As such, Jefferson’s this claim is denied.

GROUND 7(H) - Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to raise
sufficiency of the evidence at trial. Jefferson raises multiple other issues within this ground as

well: the fact that the State “led” CJ’s testimony, the State used perjured testimony from
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detectives, trial counsel failed to establish that detectives produced a false complaint and that

2 || trial counsel did nothing more than stand beside him “while the prosecuting attorneys
3 || manipulated the court and the jurors.” Petition at 23.
4 First, to the extent Jefferson argues that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to raise
5 || the issue of sufficiency of the evidence, Jefferson neglects to say exactly what counsel should
6 || have done to raise this issue. This issue was raised on appeal and was unsuccessful, as such,
7 |l this Court finds that any attempt by trial counsel to raise this issue would have been futile as
8 “ it would have been denied. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 11-12 (Order of Affirmance finding
9 | that there was sufficient evidence to support all Jefferson’s convictions); see also Ennis, 122
10 || Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103.
11 Second, the remainder of Jefferson’s issues are either not cognizable in their current
12 || form as permissible claims in a post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus or are not

13 || sufficiently articulated as claims of ineffective assistance of counsel. Jefferson takes issue with
14 || the State allegedly leading the victim during their examination of CJ and/or with using perjured
15 || testimony from law enforcement; however, this Court finds such substantive claims are
16 || deemed waived. These argument are waived because Jefferson could have raised them on

17 || direct appeal but failed to do so. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877
18 || P.2d at 1059.

19 In the form of ineffective assistance of counsel claims, this Court finds that Jefferson’s
20 || claim is a non-specific bare allegations that does not support his claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev.
21 || at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. A close reading of CJ’s testimony reveals that defense counsel
22 || objected repeatedly throughout her examination on the basis of “leading” or that the answer
23 || was suggested in the question. Also, appellate counsel raised this issue on appeal. See AOB at
24 || 21-22.% Jefferson fails to set forth exactly what more trial counsel should have done that would
25 || have changed the outcome of his case. In terms of Jefferson’s allegation that the State used
26 || perjured testimony from defectives, this Court finds that this is a bare allegation that does not
27 i warrant relief.

28

¢ To the extent Jefferson raised the issue of the State leading CJ on direct appeal as prosecutorial misconduct, this issue
could be barred by law-of-the-case. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538.
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Third, Jefferson claims that counsel failed to establish that “detectives produced a false
complaint, which explains no medical signs of abuse;” this Court finds that this claim should
have been raised, if at all, on direct appeal and is now waived. To the extent Jefferson claims
this is ineffective assistance of counsel, this Court finds that the claim is bare and lacking any
specific facts or argument. Again, the Nevada Supreme Court found overwhelming evidence
of guilt. Further, there was no need for law enforcement or the State to produce “medical signs
of abuse” to prove an allegation of sexual abuse. LaPierre, 108 Nev. at 531, 836 P.2d at 58;
see also Gaxiola, 121 Nev. at 648, 119 P.3d at 1232 (The Nevada Supreme Court has

“repeatedly held that the testimony of a sexual assault victim alone is sufficient to uphold a
conviction.”). Thus, this Court finds that Jefferson errs in arguing that the State needed to set
forth medical signs of abuse before prosecuting this case.

Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced
by counsel’s decisions set forth in Ground 7(H). As such, based on the foregoing, this claim is
denied.

GROUND 7(I) — Jefferson alleges that he was prejudiced by the Court’s failure to
remove trial counsel from representing Jefferson based on a conflict of interest. Specifically,
Jefferson argues that because he filed a bar complaint agéinst trial counsel prior to trial that
this created a conflict of interest. This argument is more thoroughly briefed in Jefferson’s
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

The Sixth Amendment guarantees a criminal defendant the right to conflict-free
representation. Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 3, 846 P.2d 286, 277 (1993) (citing Clark v.
State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)). In order to demonstrate an error based on a

conflict of interest, a defendant must show that counsel “‘actively represented conflicting
interests’ and that ‘an actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.’”

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 692 (quoting Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335, 348, 100 S. Ct. 1708

(1980)). A lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation involves a concurrent
conflict of interest. Nev. R. Prof’l Conduct 1.7(a). A concurrent conflict of exists if there is a

significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be materially limited by a
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personal interest of the lawyer. See Nev. R. Prof’] Conduct 1.7(a)(2).

Here, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to show how trial counsel was limited by a
“personal interest.” Jefferson sets forth only that because he filed a bar complaint, this
automatically created a conflict and that unless Jefferson waived this conflict, trial counsel
could not continue to represent him. However, Jefferson fails to cite to any authority that an
unsubstantiated bar complaint, along with other complaints about representation, creates an
actual conflict that required any sort of waiver by Jefferson.

Further, this Court finds that Jefferson has not shown error based on a conflict of interest
because he has not shown that counsel ““actively represented conflicting interests’ and that “an
actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.’” Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 692 (quoting Cuyler, 446 U.S. at 348, 100 S. Ct. 1708). Instead, Jefferson cites to authority
which is either not relevant to Jefferson’s case or position in an attempt to convince this Court
that there was an actual conflict in Jefferson’s case that required him to waive such a conflict.

Here, Jefferson submitted a bar complaint received by the Nevada State Bar where the
Bar apparently reéeived it on October 18, 2011. Jefferson stated in the complaint that he was
“having a bit of an issue” with his attorney. Exhibit A attached to Supplemental Petition. “A
bit of an issue” is not an actual conflict. Jefferson goes on to say that when his attorney visited
him, he “either ‘lightly’ verbally abuses him or ignores his outlook.” Id. Jefferson then alleges
that trial counsel told him on October 11, 2011, that “people like [Jefferson] belong in hell not
prison.” Id. Jefferson then went on to speculate why trial counsel allegedly made this comment,
it could be due either to the serious charges Jefferson was facing of sexually assaulting his 5
year-old daughter or because Jefferson is African-American. Id. Notably, in Jefferson’s
Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel filed on October 19, 2011,
Jefferson never stated this at all. Even if the Motion was drafted prior to October 11, 2011, at
thé hearing for Jefferson’s Motion, which post-dated the alleged bar complaint, Jefferson never
once raised this issue. TT, Nov. 1, 2011, p.3.

//
/
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Instead, Jefferson took the opportunity he had to alert the Court as to the issues with
trial counsel to raise three issues regarding why he wanted new counsel: 1) trial counsel failed
to subpoena employment records; 2) trial counsel failed to call Jefferson’s family members;
and he failed to provide Jefferson with the full discovery in the case. Id. Yet, Jefferson expects
this Court to believe that trial counsel made the statement, “people like [Jefferson] belong in
hell not prison,” yet he never once mentioned this to the Court when he had the chance.

Further, in his own exhibits to his instant Petition, Jefferson attached two letters he
allegedly sent to Clark County Public Defender Phil Kohn. However, again, he never raised
this statement in the letters to Kohn. Instead, Jefferson raises issues regarding trial strategy.
The letters to Kohn are dated March 28, 2012, and May 22, 2012—well after the alleged
statement was made.

Jefferson never filed any sort of motion with the Court nor did he ever raise the issue.
Again, Jefferson expects this Court to believe that trial counsel made this statement when he
never raised it with the Court nor with Kohn. There is no indication that trial counsel was even
aware that Jefferson allegedly sent these letters to Kohn.

At the hearing on Jefferson’s Motion, trial counsel stated that despite Jefferson filing
his Motion, he wanted “what’s best for [Jefferson].” TT, Nov. 1, 2011, p.2. Further, the Nevada

Supreme Court held that Jefferson’s conflict with counsel was “minimal” and easily resolved.

Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 15. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson has not shown error

“e

based on a conflict of interest because he has not shown that counsel “‘actively represented
conflicting interests’ and that ‘an actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s
performance.’” Thus, this Court denies this claim.
VII. JEFFERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE
COUNSEL
For claims of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, the prejudice prong is slightly
different. Jefferson must demonstrate that the omitted issue would have a reasonable

probability of success on appeal. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114
(1997); Lara v. State, 120 Nev. 177, 184, 87 P.3d 528, 532 (2004). Appellate counsel is not
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required to raise every non-frivolous issue on appeal. Jones v. Bames, 463 U.S. 745, 751-54,

103 S. Ct. 3308, 3312-14 (1983). After all, appellate counsel may well be more effective by

not raising every conceivable issue on appeal. Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784 P.2d 951,
953 (1989).

GROUND 8(A) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to

adequately present “Miranda violations.” Petition at 25. However, Jefferson fails to set forth
exactly what it is that appellate counsel should have raised. Jefferson alleges that appellate

counsel should have raised other alleged issues related to Jefferson’s confession such as that

he was never read his Miranda rights. However, contrary to Jefferson’s claim, Detectives did

[a—
o

give Jefferson his Miranda rights prior to questioning him, thus, Jefferson’s claim is belied by
11 || the record. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 3.
12 Appellate counsel is not required to raise every non-frivolous issue on appeal. Jones,

13 || 463 U.S. at 751-54, 103 S. Ct. at 3312-14. Because Jefferson was read his Miranda rights, this

14 || Court finds that trial counsel and then appellate counsel raised the issue they thought was best
15 [ inrelation to the confession. Moreover, appellate counsel did raise the issue that Jefferson did
" 16 || not properly waive his Miranda rights; however, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that

17 || this argument lacked merit. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 4, fn.1. Thus, this Court finds that

18 || any claim that Jefferson did not understand he was in police custody would have been
19 || unsuccessful. Again, appellate counsel raised the best issue given the facts surrounding
20 || Jefferson’s confession and this Court finds that counsel cannot be faulted for not raising every
21 || colorable argument Jefferson believes appellate counsel should have raised. Further, this Court
22 | finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable
23 |[| probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, [12 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev.
24 || at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

25 GROUND 8(B) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to

26 || present that the State knowingly used perjured testimony through Detective Katowich.

27 " Jefferson cites to two pages of Katowich’s testimony wherein he testified that CJ in fact did

28 || have a forensic interview. This Court finds that Jefferson’s allegation is bare and does not
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warrant relief. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue
would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923
P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

Jefferson also argues that appellate counsel failed to “direct the court to the fact that the
prosecution suborned perjury by forcing CJ to change testimony to prove guilt of the
petitioner.” Petition at 26. This Court finds that appellate counsel cannot be faulted for not
raising a meritless, unsubstantiated allegation. Appellate counsel did raise the issue of
prosecutorial misconduct alleging that the State had impermissibly, repeatedly led CJ and
“supplied the preferred answers.” See AOB at 21-22. This Court finds that Jefferson fails to
set forth what more appellate counsel should have raised. Moreover, this Court finds that
Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability
of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 37
P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

GROUND 8(C) - Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
adequately present the issue of the denial of his pro se Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint
Alternate Counsel. Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel should have elaborated in the
argument that the State also made argument during the hearing on Jefferson’s Motion and was
“culpable in the ineffective assistance of counsel.” Petition at 27.

This Court finds that Jefferson’s argument is meritless and belied by the record. The
State did not argue during this hearing. Upon review of the transcript related to Jefferson’s
Motion, there is 1 paragraph in the 6 pages of argument (the remainder of the transcript does
not pertain to Jefferson’s Motion) attributable to the State. TT, Nov. 1, 2011, p.6 at 12-17. The
State did not take a position or argue in regards to Jefferson’s Motion. Leading up to the State’s
statement, Jefferson had indicated to the Court that he wanted to terminate Mr. Cox because
he failed to get employment records and failed to make phone calls to Jefferson’s family. Id.
at p.3. Mr. Cox indicated that he did not think the employment records were relevant to
Jefferson’s defense in the case. Id. at pp.5-6. This was especially true in light of the fact that

there was no specific time period pled in the charging document. Id. at p.6. As a result of this
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exchange, the State simply advised the Court that Jefferson had stated in his statement to police
that he had lost his job. Id. Thus, Jefferson’s complaint that he wanted the Court to dismiss
defense counsel because counsel failed to get Jefferson’s employment records was nonsensical
as the employment records were not relevant to Jefferson’s defense as Jefferson, by his own
admission, was unemployed when he sexually abused his daughter.

The Court finds that this was a non-issue and appellate counsel cannot be faulted for
failing to raise a meritless issue. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate
that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey,
112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim
is denied.

GROUND 8(D) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
present the issue raised supra Ground 7(C)—Jefferson alleges “structural error” in regards to
the Court’s statement to the jury panel. This Court finds that appellate counsel did not raise
this issue because it was a non-issue with no probability of success on appeal. See supra
Ground 7(C). This was a non-issue and appellate counsel cannot be faulted for failing to raise
a meritless issue. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998,
923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

GROUND 8(E) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
present the issues: (1) CJ’s brother testified without being at the evidentiary heanng to
determine the reliability of his statements; (2) the State “discredited” CJ’s mother’s hearsay
statement, yet used her as a witness; and (3) Jefferson was precluded from “adequately” cross-
examining CJ on hearsay that conflicted because CJ was excused as a witness. All of
Jefferson’s arguments fail.

First, Jefferson seems to be arguing that CJ’s brother should not have been able to testify
about CJ’s disclosure to their mother. These statements relate to Jefferson’s Motion to
Preclude Inadmissible 51.385 Evidence, see supra Ground 7(B). This Court finds that

Jefferson’s argument is belied by the record as appellate counsel did raise this claim. Hargrove,
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“ 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225; see also AOB at 39-41. As such, this claim is denied.

I

Jefferson’s second argument within this Ground is a meritless, non-issue. As such, this
Court finds that appellate counsel cannot be faulted for not raising the issue that the State, in
Jefferson’s opinion, “discredited” CJ’s mother’s hearsay statement, yet used her as a witness.
During defense closing, defense counsel specifically made an allegation that CJ’s mother lied
about the last time that Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ and that the “story changed.” TT, Aug.
8, 2012, p.93. This was in regards to why Dr. Vergara did not perform a sexual examination

kit. In response to this, during rebuttal, the State argued, in relevant part:

Detective Demas specifically told the doctor not to collect the
DNA because the last abuse was beyond the minimum three to, at
the max, five-day time frame. [CJ’s brother] had said it’d been
more than two weeks since he last saw his dad take his sister into
the bedroom, and the detective learned from [CJ] during that
interview that it’d been over a week since the last abuse occurred. .

And we heard from the detective about this three-day, at the most,
five-day time frame in which DNA can be collected. And we
actually heard specifically from Dr. Vergara that really it needs to
be less than 72 hours; less than three days before there can be any
kind of legitimate chance of collecting DNA.

Now, the defense called Mr. Teague, the ambulance driver, to
come in here, the ambulance -- the paramedic in the ambulance, to
talk about [CJ’s mother’s] statement to him on -- about the date of
September 11'". Remember, he never talked to EEJA This is not
something that [CJ] told him. Detective Demas talked -- Detective
Katowich talked directly to [CJ], but [Mr. Teague] never did. He
simply obtained the statement from Cindy, and Cindy had told him
about the date of September 11%, 2010.

So, are we to believe that [CJ] said to her mom, yeah, mom the last
time it happened? Is that — is that what we’re .supgosed to believe?
Does that make sense? What makes sense is that ﬁﬂ told her
mother, the last time it happened, you were at work. her mom
thought about, okay, when’s the last day I worked? September
11% 2010, so that’s when she tells the paramedic.

TT, Aug. 8, 2012, p. 111.

Thus, the Court finds that the State never discredited CJ’s mother. Rather, the State
argued that it made no sense that this 5 year-old victim told her mom a specific date when
telling her about the sexual abuse. Rather, it made sense that CJ’s mother assumed this was

the date, based on the manner in which CJ disclosed. Nothing within the State’s argument
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“discredited” CJ’s mother. Further, this Court finds that it is up to the State how to present its

case, not the defendant. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson could not have raised the issue

that the State, allegedly, “discredited” CJ’s mother, “yet presented her as a witness to recount

I hearsay.” This Court finds that this non-issue would have had no chance of success on appeal.

Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have
had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998,923 P.2d at 1114;
Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

Third, Jefferson alleges that he was precluded from “adequately” cross-examining CJ

O 00 N1 N b W e

on hearsay that conflicted because CJ was excused as a witness. This Court finds that this is a

p—
o

non-specific bare allegation. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. This Court finds that
11 || Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability
12 || of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87
13 || P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

14 GROUND §(D)— Jefferson alleges substantive claims that are waived and must be dismissed
15 || pursuant to NRS 34.810. See also Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 882, 34 P.3d at 534. Jefferson also

16 | alleges that appellate counsel should have presented actual innocence based on CJ’s statement

17 " to police, see supra Ground 7(B); a bare allegation that the State demanded CJ alter her

18 || testimony; and the lack of an accurate medical observation, see supra Ground 7(H).

19 The United States Supreme Court has held that in order for a defendant to succeed based
20 || ona claim of actual innocence, he must prove that ““it is more likely than not that no reasonable
21 || juror would have convicted him in light of the new evidence’ presented in habeas
22 || proceedings.” Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 538, 560, 118 S. Ct. 1489, 1503 (1998)
23 || (quoting Schiup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 327, 115 S. Ct. 851, 867 (1995)). Procedui'ally barred
24 || claims may be considered on the merits, only if the claim of actual innocence is sufficient to |’
25 || bring the petitioner within the narrow class of cases implicating a fundamental miscarriage of
26 || justice. Schlup, 513 U.S.at314 115 S. Ct. at 861). This Court finds that Jefferson fails to set
27 ll forth any new evidence that would have made it more likely than not that no reasonable juror

28 | would have convicted him. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that
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the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112
Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532.

Appellate counsel did raise the issue of sufficiency of the evidence. Within this
argument, appellaté counsel raised issues regarding alleged inconsistenciés in witness
statements, the lack of physical evidence, the alleged unreliébility of Jefferson’s confession,
and the fact that CJ never testified as to the any acts of lewdness. The Nevada Supreme Court
could have agreed and reversed Jefferson’s convictions, but it did not. As such, this Court finds
that Jéfferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable
probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev.
at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied. |
VIII. JEFFERSON IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34.770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. Itreads:

1. The judge or justice, upon review of the retumn, answer and
all supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A petitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2. If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he shall

dismiss the petition without a hearing.

3. If the judge or justice determines that an evidenti
hearing is required, he shall grant the writ and shall set a date for
the hearing.

 The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without

expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev. |
l! 1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002).

| However, a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing only if his petition is supported by
specific factual allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual
allegations are repelled by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605

“ In the instant case, this Court finds that Jefferson’s arguments are waived and/or barred
by the law of the case and/or meritless. To the extent he raises issues that the Court could

address on the merits, this Court finds that his arguments are nevertheless belied by the record
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1 || orinsufficient to warrant relief. As such, this Court finds that there is no need to expand the
2 |l record to resolve Jefferson’s Petition, his request for an evidentiary hearing is denied.
3 | IX. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT WARRANT REVERSAL
4 The Nevada Supreme Court has not endorsed application of its direct appeal cumulative
5 || error standard to the post-conviction Strickland context. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243,
6 || 259,212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009). Nor should cumulative error apply on post-conviction review.
7 || Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134, 1275 S.
8 || Ct. 980 (2007) (*“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of errors,
9 || none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”)
10 Nevertheless, even if cumulative error review is available, such a finding in the context
11 || of a Strickland claim is extraordinarily rare. See, e.g., Harris by & Through Ramseyer v.
12 || Wood, 64 F.3d 1432, 1438 (9th Cir. 1995). After all, “[sjurmounting Strickland’s high bar is
13 || neveran easy task,” Padilla, 559 U.S. at 371,130 S. Ct. at 1485, and there can be no cumulative
14 || error where the defendant fails to demonstrate any single violation of Strickland. See, e.g.,
15 || Athey v. State, 106 Nev. 520, 526, 797 P.2d 956 (1990) (“[B]ecause we find no error . . . the
16 || doctrine does not apply here.”); United States v. Sypher, 684 F.3d 622, 628 (6th Cir. 2012)
17 || (“Where, as here, no individual ruling has been shown to be erroneous, there is no ‘error’ to
18 || consider, and the cumulative error doctrine does not warrant reversal”); Turner v. Quarterman,
19 || 481 F.3d 292, 301 (5th Cir. 2007) (“where individual allegations of error are not of
20 || constitutional stature or are not errors, there is nothing to cumulate.”) (internal quotation marks
21 || omitted).
22 Here, this Court finds that Jefferson has not demonstrated that any of his claims
93 || warrants relief, and as such, there is nothing to cumulate. Therefore, Jefferson’s cumulative
24 || error claim is denied.
25 || /
26 || //
27 || /
28 F' I/
28
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ORDER

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post-Conviction

Relief shall be, and is, denied.
DATED this. ! j day of June, 2016.

D}STRIC}/J.UDGE

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

]
BY'ISZ“.‘?/’ lé

{ BERNARD E. ZATN:
\ Chief Deputy District Attorney
A\Ngvada Bar #006545

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE

o\

MATTHEW I I{g
732 S. SIXTH ET #102

LAS VEGA V 89101
Nevada Bar No. 'BW 4

hjc/OM:SVU
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Electronically Filed
08/04/2016

s SHonin

CLERK OF THE COURT

NEO
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
BRANDON JEFFERSON,
Case No: C-10-268351-1
Petitioner,
Dept No: IV
VS.
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF
Respondent, FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND
ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on August 3, 2016, the court entered a decision or order in this matter, a
true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, you
must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three (33) days after the date this notice is

mailed to you. This notice was mailed on August 4, 2016.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE COURT

/s/ Chaunte Pleasant
Chaunte Pleasant, Deputy Clerk

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that on this 4 day of August 2016. I placed a copy of this Notice of Entry in:

M The bin(s) located in the Regional Justice Center of:
Clark County District Attorney’s Office
Attorney General’s Office — Appellate Division-

M The United States mail addressed as follows:

Brandon Jefferson # 1094051 Matthew Lay, Esq.
P.O. Box 1989 732 South Sixth Street, Suite 102
Ely, NV 89301 Las Vegas, NV 89101

/s/ Chaunte Pleasant

Chaunte Pleasant, Deputy Clerk
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Electronically Filed

FAINTE TR A S 08/03/2016 07:52:25 AM
ORIGINAL .&

CLERK OF THE COURT
FCL

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

JAMES R. SWEETIN

Depug District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005144

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-vs- CASE NO: 10C268351

#B%%NSQ%?N JEFFERSON, DEPT NO: v

Defendant.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: MAY 19, 2016
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

THIS CAUSE having come on for hearing before the Honorable KERRY EARLEY,

District Judge, on the 19th day of May, 2016; the Petitioner not being present, represented by
his counsel MATTHEW D. LAY, ESQ.; the Respondent being represented by STEVEN B.
WOLFSON, Clark County District Attorney, by and through BERNARD E. ZADROWSKI,
Chief Deputy District Attorney; and the Court having considered the matter, including briefs,
transcripts, documents on file herein, and without arguments of counsel; now therefore, the
Court makes the following findings of fact and conclusions of law:

i

I

"
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FINDINGS OF FACT
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

On November 5, 2010, the State filed an Amended Information charging Brandon
Jefferson as follows: Counts 1, 3,5, 7,9, and 10: Sexual Assault with a Minor Under the Age
of 14 (Category A Felony — NRS 200.364; 200.366); Counts 2,4, 6, 8, and 11: Lewdness with
a Child Under the Age of 14 (Category A Felony — NRS 201.230). That same day, Jefferson
pleaded “not guilty.”

On March 25, 2011, Jefferson filed a “Motion to Suppress Unlawfully Obtained
Statement” in which he argued that he did not knowingly and voluntarily waive his Miranda'

rights and that his confession to police was coerced. The State opposed the Motion on April
6,2011. On June 2, 2011, the Court held a Jackson v. Denno? hearing, during which the Court
received several exhibits and testimony from Detective Matthew Demas. After entertaining
argument from counsel, the Court verbally denied Jefferson’s Motion. A written order
followed thereafter on June 16, 2011.

Meanwhile, on April 13, 2011, Jefferson also filed a Motion in Limine to Preclude
Inadmissible 51.385 Evidence, in which he argued that the child victim’s statements to other
people regarding sexual abuse were hearsay and that admission of the statements would violate
the Confrontation Clause. The State opposed the Motion on April 27, 2011, reasoning that it
was premature because the gvailability of the child victim, as well as other witnesses, was not
yet confirmed. The Court held an evidentiary hearing on the matter, thereafter, it decided that
statements the victim made to her mother were admissible, but statements made to Detective
Demas were not, barring additional developments. A written order denying in part and
granting in part Jefferson’s Motion was then filed on January 17, 2012.

On October 19, 2011, Jefferson filed in a proper person a Motion to Dismiss Counsel
in which he expressed dissatisfaction with counsel’s performance, particularly counsel’s
alleged disregard of Jefferson’s strategy suggestions. Jefferson advised the Court that his

issues with counsel were: 1) counsel had not given Jefferson his full discovery; 2) counsel had

! Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 86 S. Ct. 1602 {1956).
2378 U.S. 368, 84 S. Ct. 1774 (1964).
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not made phone calls to Jefferson’s family members as Jefferson asked; and 3) counsel failed
to obtain Jefferson’s work records. After a discussion, the Court verbally denied the Motion.
A written order then followed on November 1, 2011.

On November 16, 2011, the State filed a Second Amended Information which included
the same substantive charges and minor grammatical/factual corrections.

On July 16, 2012, the State filed a Motion in Limine to Preclude Improper Testimony
from Defendant’s Expert Witness. Primarily, the Motion argued that defense expert Dr.
Chambers could not argue about Jefferson’s psychiatric state during his interview with Dr.
Chambers, as the State would not have a fair opportunity to rebut the “state of mind” evidence.
Alternatively, the State requested a psychiatric evaluation of Defendant. Defense counsel then
informed the Court, on July 26, 2012, that it did not intend to present' such evidence.
Accordingly, the Court denied the State’s Motion as moot.

Jury selection began on July 30, 2012. On August 1, 2012, the jury was sworn and
Jefferson’s jury trial began. A week later, the jury retired to deliberate. Two hours later, the
jury found Jefferson guilty of Counts 1, 2, 4, 9, and 10, and not guilty of Counts 3, 5, 6, 7, and
83

On October 23, 2012, Jefferson appeared with counsel for a sentencing hearing. At the
outset, the parties discussed whether Counts 1 and 2 merged, and the State informed the Court
that it was not opposed to dismissing Count 2. The Court then adjudicated Jefferson guilty
pursuant to the jury’s verdict and entertained argument from the State and defense counsel.
The Court then sentenced Jefferson to a $25 Administrative Assessment Fee, $150 DNA
Analysis Fee, and incarceration in the Nevada Department of Corrections as follows: Count
1 — Life with parole eligibility after 35 years; Count 4 — Life with parole eligibility after 10
years, to run concurrent with Count 1; Count 9 — Life with parole eligibility after 35 years, to
run consecutive with Counts 1 and 4; and Count 10 - Life with parole eligibility after 35 years,
to run concurrent with Counts 1, 4, and 9, with 769 days’ credit for time served. The Court

also ordered Jefferson to pay $7,427.20 in restitution, and held that if he were released from

3 The State voluntarily dismissed Count 11 on August 7, 2012, and the relevant jury instructions and verdict form were
amended accordingly.

3
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prison, Jefferson would be required to register as a sex offender pursuant to NRS Chapter
179D, and would be subject to lifetime supervision pursuant to NRS 179.460.

The Court filed a Judgment of Conviction on October 30, 2012, and Jefferson filed a
Notice of Appeal on November 14,2012. In a lengthy unpublished order, the Nevada Supreme
Court affirmed Jefferson’s Convictions and Sentence, reasoning that none of his 11

contentions of error were meritorious. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 (Order of Affirmance,

July 29, 2014). In particular, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled that the Court did not err by
denying Jefferson’s Motion to Suppress Unlawfully Obtained Statement because Jefferson
was properly read his Miranda rights, the discussion with detectives was appropriate and not
coercive, and the detectives’ allegedly “deceptive interrogation techniques,” were neither
coercive nor likely to produce a false confession. Id. at 3-4. The Supreme Court further
rejected Jefferson’s allegations of prosecutorial misconduct and held that the Court did not
abuse its discretion by admitting evidence of jail phone calls between Jefferson and his wife,
admitting testimony from the victim’s mother and brother about the sexual abuse, or declining
to give Jefferson’s proposed jury instructions. Id. at 5-10; 13-14. Finally, the Supreme Court
held that sufficient evidencé supported the jury’s verdict because “the issue of guilt was not
close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.” Id. at 11-12, 16. Thereafter,
remittitur issued on August 26, 2014.

On October 2, 2014, Jefferson filed, in proper person, a timely Post-Conviction Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus. Shortly thereafter, the State filed a Motion to Appoint Counsel,
reasoning that that it was in everyone’s best interest to appoint counsel to assist Jefferson in
post-conviction matters. The Court granted the Motion and Attomey Matthew Lay confirmed
as counsel on October 28, 2014. That same day, the Court set a briefing schedule.

On December 22, 2015, Jefferson filed, with the assistance of counsel, a Supplemental
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. On April 5, 2016, the State filed its Response to both the
original Petition and the Supplemental Petition. On May 19, 2016, the Court denied Jefferson’s

Petition and Supplemental Petition.
/i
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PETITION ARGUMENTS
L JEFFERSON’S GROUNDS 1 AND 2 REGARDING HIS CONFESSION TO
DETECTIVES ARE BARRED BY THE LAW-OF-THE-CASE DOCTRINE
“Under the law of the case doctrine, issues previously determined by [the Nevada
Supreme Court] on appeal may not be reargued as a basis for habeas relief.” Pellegrini v.
State, 117 Nev. 860, 888, 34 P.3d 519, 538 (2001). See also Dictor v. Crgative Mgmt. Servs.,

LLC, 126 Nev., Adv. Op. 4,223 P.3d 332, 334 (2010) (“The law-of-the-case doctrine provides

that when an appellate court decides a principle or rule of law, that decision governs the same

issues in subsequence proceedings in that case.”). Here, this Court finds that Jefferson’s first
and second arguments in his Pro-Per Petition regarding admission of his incriminating
statements to the detectives were already raised and thoroughly briefed in his direct appeal.
Compare Petition at 5-7 with Jefferson’s Opening Appellate Brief (“AOB”) at 6-15. The
Nevada Supreme Court rejected his argument, reasoning that “the circumstances show

Jefferson voluntarily waived Miranda,” Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 4 n.1, and that

“substantial evidence supported the district court’s conclusion that Jefferson’s confession was
voluntary.” Id. at 3.

Thus, because the Nevada Supreme Court already considered and rejected Jefferson’s
argument regérding Miranda, as well as his related argument regarding coercion, this Court
finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing those issue in his Petition
for a Writ of Habeas Corpus. As such, Grounds 1 and 2 are denied.

O. JEFFERSON’S ARGUMENTS REGARDING  PROSECUTORIAL

MISCONDUCT ARE WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE

In Ground 3, Jefferson contends that the State committed prosecutorial misconduct in
four instances. This Court finds that his contention, namely, that the State “[iJmpermissably
led CJ’s testimony,” Petition at 10, is barred by the law of the case because the Nevada
Supreme Court already rejected his “contentions of prosecutorial misconduct.” Jefferson v.
State, No. 62120 at 6 n.2; AOB 21-22. Jefferson raised this exact issue in his opening brief
and it was rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court.
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In addition, this Court finds that all of the Jefferson’s arguments regarding prosecutorial

misconduct are waived and must be dismissed pursuant to NRS 34.810, which provides:
The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds
for the petition could have been: (1) Presented to the trial court;
(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for writ of habeas
corpus or post conviction relief; or (3) Raised in any other
proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure relief from his
conviction and sentence, unless the court finds both cause for the
failure to present the grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

(Emphasis added); see also Great Basin Water Network v. State Eng’r, 126 Nev., Adv. Op.
20,234 P.3d 912,916 (2010) (““[S]hall’ isa term of command; it is imperative or mandatory,
not permissive or directory.”); Evans v. State, 117 Nev. 609, 646-647, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001)

(“A court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have
been presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present
the claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.”). Indeed,
the Nevada Supreme Court has held that all “claims that are appropriate! for a direct appeal
must be pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent
proceedings.” Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994), overruled

‘on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999). Accordingly, this

Court finds that Jefferson’s arguments regarding prosecutorial misconduct should have been
raised, if at all, on direct appeal, and his failure to do so precludes review because his
arguments are considered waived. Id.; NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2). Further, this Court finds that
because Jefferson fails to offer any good cause to excuse his failure to raise these particular
arguments on direct appeal, Ground 3 is denied.
III. JEFFERSON’S ALLEGATIONS OF EVIDENTIARY ERROR ARE ALSO
WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE
In Ground 4, Jefferson argues that the Court abused its discretion by “tainting the jury,”
admitting admissible hearsay, and permitting jurors to learn that Jefferson was incarcerated.

Petition at 13-15.

4 Claims of ineffective assistance of counsef must be raised in the first instance in post-conviction proceedipgs. Pellegrini,
117 Nev. at 882, 34 P.3d at 534. Other non-frivolous, properly preserved contentions of error are appropriate for appeal.

6
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1 Jefferson alleges that the jury venire was tainted after the Court made, in reference to
2 || the difficult nature of the charges involved in this case, a broad statement to the effect that no
3 ll one likes violence or sexual offenses. Petition at 13. In context, the purpose of the statement
4 || was not to voice a “professional opinion” on the matter, but to clarify that a juror is not
5 #i disqualified simply because he or she has understandable negative feelings about violence and
6 || sexual offenses. This Court finds that because Jefferson could have raised this issue on direct
7 || appeal but failed to do so, it is waived and must be dismissed. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2).
8 Jefferson’s second argument focuses on testimony from CJ’s mother and brother
9 |l regarding CJ’s statements to them about the sexual abuse perpetrated by Jefferson. Jefferson
10 || previously raised this issue in his direct appeal, AOB 37-41, and the Nevada Supreme Court
11 || rejected the argument as meritless. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 9-10. As such, this Court
12 {| finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing this issue in the instant
13 || Petition. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538.
14 The third and final argument in this section alleges that jurors wrongfully learned of
15 | Jefferson’s incarceration because of admission of phone calls between Jefferson and his wife,
16 || the victim’s mother. Petition at 15. Jefferson previously raised this issue on direct appeal,
17 || AOB 27-30, and while the Nevada Supreme Court held that portions of the calls were more
18 Il prejudicial than probative, it held that any error in admitting the calls was harmless. Jefferson
19 || v. State, No. 62120 at 6-7. In so holding, the Supreme Court focused on the use of
20 || inflammatory language and the clear anguish in Jefferson’s wife’s voice. Id. It did not,
21 || however, give credence to Jefferson’s arguments that the phone calls erroneously permitted
22 || jurors to learn that he was incarcerated. Id. As such, this Court finds that this argument is
23 || without merit because the Nevada Supreme Court found no error in the admission of the calls
24 || and any argument that his incarceration status undermined his presumption of innocence was
25 || undermined by the trial judge’s repeated verbal and written instructions that Jefferson was
26 || innocent until proven guilty. Glover v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of Nev., 125 Nev. 691, 719,
27 || 220 P.3d 684, 703 (2009) (Courts presume that juries will follow instructions). Further, this
28 || Court finds that the law-of-the-case doctrine bars Jefferson from rearguing this issue in the
7
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instant Peﬁﬁon. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538. As such, Ground 4 is denied.
IV. JEFFERSON’S ARGUMENTS REGARDING DOUBLE JEOPARDY AND/OR

REDUNDANCY ARE WAIVED AND BARRED BY THE LAW OF THE CASE

In Ground 5, Jefferson argues that he was wrongfully convicted and sentenced in
violation of Double Jeopardy and/or Nevada’s redundancy doctrine because the evidence of at
trial was non-specific. Petition at 16.

This Court finds that this argument is waived because Jefferson could have raised it on
direct appeal but failed to do so. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877
P.2d at 1059.

Further, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument also fails because of the law-of-the-

case-doctrine as the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Jefferson’s Judgment of Conviction in
its entirety because evidence supporting the jury’s verdict was “overwhelming.” Jefferson v.

State, No. 62120 at 16; see also id. at 12 (“[A] rational trier of fact could have found Jefferson

guilty of three counts of sexual assault and one count of lewdness beyond a reasonable
doubt.”). Moreover, while Jefferson claims that the evidence was “non-specific,” the Nevada
Supreme Court found that “C]J testified with specificity as to four separate occasions of sexual
abuse.” Id. at 11. Thus, this Court finds that Jefferson cannot reargue this issue in the instant
Petition. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538. As such, Ground 5 is denied.
V. JEFFERSON CANNOT REARGUE SUFFICIENCY OF THE EVIDENCE

In Ground 6, Jefferson alleges insufficient evidence largely because “CJ’s testimony
was without independent details.” Petition 17. This Court finds that this argument is without
merit because the Nevada Supreme Court has “repeatedly held that the testimony of a sexual
assault victim alone is sufficient to uphold a conviction.” LaPierre v. State, 108 Nev. 528,
531, 836 P.2d 56, 58 (1992); see also Gaxiola v. State, 121 Nev. 633, 648, 119 P.3d 1225,
1232 (2005). Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument also fails because the

Nevada Supreme Court rejected the same argument on appeal, reasoning that “the issue of
guilt was not close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.” See Jefferson v.
State, No. 62120 at 11-12; 16; see also Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538 (“[I]ssues
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previously determined . . . on appeal may not be reargued as a basis for habeas relief.”). Thus,
Ground 6 is denied.
VL. JEFFERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF TRIAL COUNSEL

In Jefferson’s Ground 7 and the subsequent Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus (Post-Conviction), Jefferson raises multiple grounds of ineffective assistance of trial
counsel. |

A. A Rigorous Two-Prong Test Applies To Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel

Claims

“[T]he purpose of the effective assistance guarantée of the Sixth Amendment is not to-

improve the quality of legal representation . . . [but] simply to ensure that criminal defendants

receive a fair trial.” Cullen v. Pinholster US. __,_, 131 S.Ct 1388, 1403 (2012)

Jackson v. Warden, Nev. State Prison,
91 Nev. 430, 432, 537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975) (“Effective counsel does not mean errorless

(internal quotation marks and citation omitted); see also

counsel”). To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, a defendant must prove
that he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong
test of Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S..668, 686-87, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2063-64 (1984). See
also State v. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993). Under this test, the

defendant must show first, that his counsel’s representation fell below an objective standard

of reasonableness, and second, but for counsel’s errors, there is a reasonable probability that
the result of the proceedings would have been different. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694,
104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068. This Court need not consider both prongs, however if a defendant
makes an insufficient showing on either one. Molina v. State, 120 Nev. 185, 190, 87 P.3d 533,
537 (2004).

“The benchmark for judging any claim of ineffectiveness must be whether counsel’s
conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process that the trial cannot

be relied on as having produced a just result.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686, 104 S. Ct. at 2052.

Indeed, the question is whether an attorney’s representations amounted to incompetence under

prevailing professional norms, “not whether it deviated from best practices or most common
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custom.” Harrington v. Richter, 562 U.S. 86, 105, 131 S. Ct. 770, 788 (2011); see also

1
2 || Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065 (“There are countless ways to provide effective
3 || assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a
4 || particular client in the same way.”). Accordingly, the role of a court in considering alleged
5 || ineffective assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to
6 || determine whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed
7 || to render reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671,675, 584 P.2d 708,
8 || 711(1978). In doing so, courts begin with the presumption of effectiveness and the defendant
9 || bears the burden of proving, by a preponderance of the evidence, that counsel was ineffective.
10 || Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011-1012, 103 P.3d 25, 32-33 (2004) (holding “that a habeas
11 || corpus petitioner must prove the disputed factual allegations underlying his ineffective-
12 || assistance claim by a preponderance of the evidence.”).
13 “ Further, even if counsel’s performance was deficient, “it is not enough to show that the
14 || errors had some conceivable effect on the outcome of the proceeding.” Harrington, 562 U.S.
15 || at 104, 131 S. Ct. at 787 (quotation and citation omitted). Instead, the defendant must
16 || demonstrate that but for counsel’s incompetence the results of the proceeding would have been
17 || different:
In assessing prejudice under Strickland, the question is not
18 whether a court can be certain counsel’s performance had no effect
on the outcome or whether it is possible a reasonable doubt might
19 have been established if counsel acted differently. Instead,
Strickland asks whether it is reasonably likely the results would
20 have been different. This does not require a showing that
counsel’s actions more likely than not altered the outcome, but the
21 difference between Strickland’s prejudice standard and a more-
probable-than-not standard is slight and matters only in the rarest
22 case. The likelihood of a different result must be substantial, not
just conceivable.
23
24 || Id. at 111-12, 131 S. Ct. at 791-92 (internal quotation marks and citations omitted). All told,
25 || “[slurmounting Strickland’s high bar is never an easy task.” Padilla v. Kentucky, 559 U.S.
26 | 356,371,130 S. Ct. 1473, 1485 (2010). “A petitioner for post-conviction relief cannot rely on
27 |l conclusory claims for relief.” Colwell v. State, 118 Nev. 807, 812, 59 P.3d 463, 467 (2002).
28 || Instead, the petition must set forth specific factual allegations that are not belied by the record,

10
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and if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief. See NRS 34.735; Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev.
498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). For the foregoing reasons, this Court finds that none of
Jefferson’s contentions of error, including his arguments in the Supplemental Petition, satisfy
this standard.

GROUND 7(A) — Jefferson faults counsel for failing to file a Motion in Limine to prohibit
Dr. Vergara from testifying outside her area of expertise. Petition at 21. He also states, in
general, that counsel was unwilling to “develop a working relationship with the petitioner and
prepare for trial.” Id.

This Court finds that Jefferson’s first argument fails because motion practice is a

strategic matter that is virtually unchallengeable. Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825

P.2d 593, 596 (1992) (“Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.”); Davis v. State, 107 Nev. 600, 603, 817 P.2d

1169, 1171 (1991) (“[T]his court will not second-guess an attorney’s tactical decisions where
they relate to trial strategy and are within the attorney's discretion. This remains so even if
better tactics appear, in retrospect, to have been available.”). Moreover, this Court finds that
Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision not to file the
Motion in Limine, especially given the Nevada Supreme Court’s holding that any errors with

regard to Dr. Vergara were harmless. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 8-9; see also Molina,

120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538 (holding that petitioners must demonstrate how they were
prejudiced by alleged errors).

Further, this Court finds that Jefferson’s other claims fail because “[a] petitioner for
post-conviction relief cannot rely on conclusory claims for relief.” Colwell, 118 Nev. at 812,
59 P.3d at 467; see also NRS 34.735; Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding
that a petition must set forth specific factual allegations that are not belied by the record, and

if true, would entitle the petitioner to relief). Further, the Sixth Amendment does not guarantee
a “meaningful relationship” between a defendant and his counsel, only that counsel be |
effective. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 13, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983).
"

11
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1 As such, this Court finds that this claim is also nothing more than a conclusory claim

2 || for relief without any supporting facts. As such, this Court denies this claim.

3 GROUND 7(B) — Jefferson alleges trial counsel was ineffective for moving to omit CJ’s

4 || statement to police and that defense counsel “misinterpreted” NRS 51.385. Both of these

5 || arguments apparently relate to the April 13, 2011, Motion in which counsel moved, on

6 || Jefferson’s behalf, to preclude alleged testimonial statements CJ made to her mother and law

7 || enforcement regarding the sexual abuse. In support of his argument, Jefferson cites to portions

8 || of of CJ’s voluntary statement to law enforcement to support his contention that law

9 || enforcement forced CJ to “fabricate allegations to effect an arrest.” Petition at 21. This Court
10 || finds that Jefferson’s contentions fail because they boil down to strategic decisions.
11 Jefferson citeé to only 5 pages out of the total 29 page voluntary statement CJ gave to
12 || police. However, a read of the entire statement reveals that after the initial denial by the 5 year-
13 || old victim, once detectives revealed that they were aware of CJ’s disclosure to her mother, CJ
14 || immediately proceeded to disclose the sexual abuse perpetrated by Jefferson. See Ex. 1, CJ’s
15 || Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court; see also Evidentiary Hearing
16 | -Transcript, December 8, 2011, pp. 31-54. CJ disclosed to detectives that Jefferson made her
17 || perform oral sex on Jefferson and that “liquid” came out of his penis, Jefferson made CJ touch
18 || his penis, also that Jefferson put his privates in her privates and that she cried because it hurt.
19 || See Ex. 1, CIs Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court. Thus, this
20 {| Court finds that defense counsel made the strategic decision to fight the admission of these
71 || statements and was successful.’ Defense counsel did not misinterpret NRS 51.385 and never
22 || improperly shifted the burden. Instead, this Court finds that defense counsel made the strategic
23 || decision to oppose the admission of the CJ’s disclosure to detectives. Davis, 107 Nev. at 603,
24 || 817 P.2d at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596. Moreover, this Court finds that
25 || Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision. Had the
26 || statement been used, the jury would have heard that this 5 year-old victim initially stated
27
O e e e et Panily Dosvin Jaesor’s Moo o Breghude 31 365 Testmony and Order

Denying State’s Oral Motion to Terminate Jefferson’s Outside Privileges, filed Jan. 17, 2012,
12
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nobody touched her private areas, but upon being told that detectives already knew what CJ
| had told her mother, CJ went into detail about the sexual abuse committed against CJ. As such,
this Court denies this claim.

GROUND 7(C) - Jefferson alleges trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object
and/or move for a new jury panel and/or failing to move for a mistrial based on the District
Court’s question during jury voir dire. Jefferson argues that trial counsel should have objected

and/or moved for a new jury panel and/or moved for a mistrial when the Court asked the panel,

“How many of you like child molestation? I am not going to get people raising their hands to
that.” However, this Court finds that Jefferson’s argument fails.

In context, the purpose of the statement was not to voice any sort of opinion on the
matter, but to clarify that a juror is not disqualified simply because he or she has
understandable negative feclings about violence and sexual offenses. While the State
individually questioned Prospective Juror No. 245, she indicated, “I have a real problem with
the charges.” Trial Transcript (“TT”) July 30, 2012, p. 126, 23-24. She went on to indicate,
“[T]n my mind, that’s one of the worst charges. I mean, anything else, I could probably look at
it openly, but not when children are involved.” Id. at p. 127, 8-11. As a result, the prosecutor
asked anybody that had strong feelings should raise his or her hand so that she could discuss
this issue with the prospective juror(s). Id. at p. 128, 2-7. The prosecutor then asked a series
of questions to Prospective Juror No. 245 regarding the presumption of innocence. Id. at p.128
lines 15-25, pp. 129-30. It was in this context that the Court stated to Prospective Juror No.

245;

. It’s kind of like what I talked about earlier, is there’s nobody -- if
I’'m going to ask the qll(Jestion, how many of you like violence?
How many of you like rape? How many of you like child
molestation? How many -- you know, I’'m not going to get people
raising their hand in response to that.

But as Ms. Fleck just clearly covered, it’s just an accusation. And
/ou said you believed you’d be able to keep an open mind and
isten to the — listen to the testimony before you came to any
conclusions. Would you be able to deliberate with your fellow

Jjurors toward reaching a verdict?

/I
| 1

13
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I think you changed gour position kind of during the questioning,
so that’s why I went back over it to clarify with you. You have not
heard one word of testimony, nor seen one piece of evidence at
this point.

ok ok

Are you saying that you’re entirely close-minded and unable to
deliberate?

Id. atp. 131, lines 2-12.
Thus, in this context, the Court was merely establishing that at this stage in the

proceeding, the criminal charges were only an accusation and that the relevant inquiry was
whether the potential juror could keep an open mind while listening to the evidence. Contrary
to Jefferson’s assertion, this Court finds that this statement was not prejudicial. It was
understandable that none of the prospective jurors would like violence or child molestation,
but that was not the relevant inquiry and the Court was emphasizing this to Prospective Juror
No. 245.

Because there was no wrongdoing by the Court, this Court finds that any objection by
counsel and/or any request for a new jury panel and/or moving for a mistrial by defense counsel
would have been futile. See Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006)

(Counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to make futile objections, file futile motions,
or for failing to make futile arguments.). Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson does not
demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision not to raise this issue. As such, this
Court denies this claim.

GROUND 7(D) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
impeach CJ with a prior inconsistent statement. This argument is related to supra Ground 7(B).
This Court finds that Jefferson’s contention fails because this again boils down to a strategic
decision.. Defense counsel did not elicit that when 5 year-old CJ initially sat down with two ‘
detectives, she stated nobody had touched her privates. This was because then the State would
have been able to elicit the rest of the statement where CJ disclosed to detectives that Jefferson
made her perform oral sex on Jefferson and that “liquid” came out of his penis, Jefferson made

ClJ touch his penis, also that Jefferson put his privates in her privates and that she cried because

14
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it hurt. See Ex. 1, CJ’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court.

Thus, this Court find that defense counsel made the strategic decision to not attempt to
impeach the 5 year-old victim which very well may have backfired with the jury and would
have opened the door for the State to introduce the entirety of CJ’s statement. See Davis, 107
Nev. at 603, 817 P.2d at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596. Moreover, this

Court finds that Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced by counsel’s decision.

As such, this Court denies this claim.

GROM 7(E) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
confront Dr. Vergara regarding not conducting a sexual assault kit. Specifically, Dr. Vergara
testified that a sexual assault examination should be done no later than 72 hours after the
trauma, in fact “the sooner the better” or “probably even sooner” than 72 hours. TT, Aug. 2,
2012, p. 7, 23-25; p. 8; p. 9, 1-3. Jefferson references an EMT report (which would have been
taken the day CJ went to the hospital on September 14, 2010) where medical personnel
indicated that Jefferson last assaulted CJ on Septembér 11, 2010. However, this Court finds
that defense counsel had no basis to “confront” Dr. Vergara for not conducting a sexual
examination kit.

A reading of CJ’s entire statement to police reveals that CJ disclosed that the last time
Jefferson made CJ perform oral sex on him or that Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ was “a week
and 2 days ago.”‘§g§ Ex. 1, CJ’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the
Court. Thus, there would have been no reason for Dr. Vergara to perform a sexual assault kit
on CJ given that the last time Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ was well outside of the 72 hours.
This information is also corroborated by CJ’s mother’s statement to detectives who never told
law enforcement that CJ had been assaulted as recently as September 11, 2010. See Ex. 1, CJ’s
mom’s Statement to LVMPD, filed December 8, 2011, with the Court. Additionally, CI’s and
CJ’s mother’s testimony do not support this contention. TT, Aug. 2, 2012, pp. 41-78; TT, Aug.
3, 2012, pp. 10-45. Further, Detective Demas testified that CJ disclosed that the last time she
had been sexually abused had been “approximately seven or eight days, so over the five-day

period.” TT, Aug. 6, 2012, p. 44, 11-16. Based on that information, Detective Demas advised

15
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against doing a sexual assault kit. Id. at 17-25. Defense counsel successfully moved for
inclusion of the report writer’s testimony regarding the statement in question. TT, Aug. 8,
2012, pp. 27-35.

Based on all the witness’ statements and testimony, this Court finds that defense
counsel had no basis to confront Dr. Vergara for not doing a sexual assault kit on CJ. Any such
attempt would have been futile. Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. Moreover, this Court
finds that Jefferson has failed to demonstrate how he was prejudiced by this. Any attempt to
confront Dr. Vergara would have been successfully objected to. As such, this Court denies this
claim.

GROUND 7(F) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to move
for a continuance to “investigate™ jail calls admitted into evidence. A defendant who contends
his attorney was ineffective because he did not adequately investigate must show how a better

investigation would have rendered a more favorable outcome probable. Molina, 120 Nev. at

192, 87 P.3d at 538. Jefferson sets forth nothing more than a bare allegation that other jail calls
would have somehow shown that CJ’s mother was on his side and this would have put the
State in an “awkward position.” Petition at 23.

On August 6, 2012, defense counsel attempted to preclude admission of all of the jail
calls by filing a Motion in Limine for an Order Preventing the State from Introducing
Unlawfully Recorded Oral Communications. Thus, this Court finds that defense counsel made
the strategic decision to attempt to preclude admission of all of the jail calls by arguing that
there was an expectation of privacy at the time the calls were made. As such, this Court finds
that defense counsel cannot be faulted for the strategic decision to attempt to keep out all jail
calls because if they had been successful, Jefferson’s argument would be moot as counsel
would have successfully precluded admission of all jail calls. Davis, 107 Nev. at 603, 817 P.2d
at 1171; Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596.

Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate how he was prejudiced

by not being able to introduce this alleged information. For the aforementioned reasons, this

Court denies this claim.
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GROUND 7(G) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to
challenge the lewdness conviction because the only evidence presented to support this
conviction was Jefferson’s confession to detectives. Because this issue was raised on appeal
by and it failed, this Court finds that any effort by trial counsel to attempt to challenge the
lewdness count would have been futile as the Nevada Supreme Court found that there was
sufficient evidence to support the jury’s verdict. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 11-12; see
also Ennis, 122 Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103. Indeed, the Nevada Supreme Court found that

the “issue of guilt was not close given the overwhelming evidence presented by the State.”
Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 16.

Further, the jury heard more than just Jefferson’s confession. The jury also heard CJ’s
own testimony about 4 separate occasions of sexual abuse—three in Jefferson’s bedroom and
one in her own bedroom. CJ testified that on each of the three occasions in the master bedroom,
Jefferson put his penis in he; mouth, vagina, and anus and on the fourth occasion, in her
bedroom, Jefferson put his penis in her mouth and vagina. Further, the jury heard from CJ’s
mother about CJ’s initial disclosure, also about an instance when Jefferson seemed eager for
CJ’s mother to go to bed and for CJ to stay up with Jefferson—CJ’s mother later found a sad,
disoriented CJ standing in a dark bedroom (consistent with CJ)’s testimony of sexual abuse).
The jury also heard from CJ’s brother who testified how Jefferson would take CJ into his
bedroom while their mother was at work and on 1 occasion, heard CJ crying from the master
bedroom—again, this was consistent with CJ’s testimony regarding the abuse. The jury also
heard jail calls, Jefferson’s letters to CJ’s mother after his arrest, and the 911 call Jefferson
made the day that he was arrested. All of these things corroborated CJ’s testimony of sexual
abuse. Thus, this Court finds that the jury did not solely rely on Jefferson’s confession and
Jefferson’s argument is belied by the record. Further, this Court finds that any argument by
defense counsel would have been futile. As such, Jefferson’s this claim is denied.

GROUND 7(H) — Jefferson alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to raise
sufficiency of the evidence at trial. Jefferson raises multiple other issues within this ground as

well: the fact that the State “led” CJ’s testimony, the State used perjured testimony from
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1 || detectives, trial counsel failed to establish that detectives produced a false complaint and that

2 || trial counsel did nothing more than stand beside him “while the prosecuting attorneys

3 || manipulated the court and the jurors.” Petition at 23.

4 First, to the extent Jefferson argues that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to raise

5 || the issue of sufficiency of the evidence, Jefferson neglects to say exactly what counsel should

6 || have done to raise this issue. This issue was raised on appeal and was unsuccessful, as such,

7 || this Court finds that any attempt by trial counsel to raise this issue would have been futile as

8 || it would have been denied. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 11-12 (Order of Affirmance finding

9 | that there was sufficient evidence to support all Jefferson’s convictions); see also Ennis, 122
10 || Nev. at 706, 137 P.3d at 1103.
11 Second, the remainder of Jefferson’s issues are either not cognizable in their current
12 || form as permissible claims in a post-conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus or are not
13 || sufficiently articulated as claims of ineffective assistance of counsel. Jefferson takes issue with
14 | the State allegedly leading the victim during their examination of CJ and/or with using perjured
15 || testimony from law enforcement; however, this Court finds such substantive claims are
16 || deemed waived. These argument are waived because Jefferson could have raised them on
17 || direct appeal but failed to do so. See NRS 34.810(1)(b)(2); Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752, 877
18 || P.2d at 1059.
19 In the form of ineffective assistance of counsel claims, this Court finds that Jefferson’s
20 || claim is a non-specific bare allegations that does not support his claims. Hargrove, 100 Nev.
21 | at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. A close reading of CJ’s testimony reveals that defense counsel
22 || objected repeatedly throughout her examination on the basis of “leading”™ or that the answer
23 || was suggested in the question. Also, appellate counsel raised this issue on appeal. See AOB at
24 || 21-22.% Jefferson fails to set forth exactly what more trial counsel should have done that would
25 |i have changed the outcome of his case. In terms of Jefferson’s allegation that the State used
26 | perjured testimony from détectives, this Court finds that this is a bare allegation that does not
27 || warrant relief.
28 6 To the extent Jefferson raised the issue of the State leading CJ on direct appeal as prosecutorial misconduct, this issue

could be barred by law-of-the-case. Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 888, 34 P.3d at 538.
18
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Third, Jefferson claims that counsel failed to establish that “detectives produced a false
complaint, which explains no medical signs of abuse;” this Court finds that this claim should
have been raised, if at all, on direct appeal and is now waived. To the extent Jefferson claims
this is ineffective assistance of counsel, this Court finds that the claim is bare and lacking any
specific facts or argument. Again, the Nevada Supreme Court found overwhelming evidence
of guilt. Further, there was no need for law enforcement or the State to produce “medical signs
of abuse” to prove an allegation of sexual abuse. LaPierre, 108 Nev. at 531, 836 P.2d at 58;
Gaxiola, 121 Nev. at 648, 119 P.3d at 1232 (The Nevada Supreme Court has

“repeatedly held that the testimony of a sexual assault victim alone is sufficient to uphold a

see also

conviction.”). Thus, this Court finds that Jefferson errs in arguing that the State needed to set
forth medical signs of abuse before prosecuting this case.

Moreover, this Court finds that Jefferson does not demonstrate how he was prejudiced
by counsel’s decisions set forth in Ground 7(H). As such, based on the foregoing, this claim is
denied.

GROUND 7(I) — Jefferson alleges that he was prejudiced by the Court’s failure to
remove trial counsel from representing Jefferson based on a conflict of interest. Specifically,
Jefferson argues that because he filed a bar complaint agéinst trial counsel prior to trial that
this created a conflict of interest. This argument is more thoroughly briefed in Jefferson’s
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus.

The Sixth Amendment guarantees a criminal defendant the right to conflict-free
representation. Coleman v. State, 109 Nev. 1, 3, 846 P.2d 286, 277 (1993) (citing Clark v.
State, 108 Nev. 324, 831 P.2d 1374 (1992)). In order to demonstrate an error based on a

conflict of interest, a defendant must show that counsel “‘actively represented conflicting

interests’ and that “an actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.’”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 692 (quoting Cuyler v. Sullivan, 446 U.S. 335, 348, 100 S. Ct. 1708
(1980)). A lawyer shall not represent a client if the representation involves a concurrent
conflict of interest. Nev. R. Prof’] Conduct 1.7(a). A concurrent conflict of exists if there is a

significant risk that the representation of one or more clients will be materially limited by a
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personal interest of the lawyer. See Nev. R. Prof’l Conduct 1.7(a)(2).

Here, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to show how trial counsel was limited by a
“personal interest.” Jefferson sets forth only that because he filed a bar complaint, this
automatically created a conflict and that unless Jefferson waived this conflict, trial counsel
could not continue to represent him. However, Jefferson fails to cite to any authority that an
unsubstantiated bar complaint, along with other complaints about representation, creates an
actual conflict that required any sort of waiver by Jefferson.

Further, this Court finds that Jefferson has not shown error based on a conflict of interest

1 (113

because he has not shown that counsel “‘actively represented conflicting interests’ and that ‘an
actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s performance.’” Strickland, 466 U.S.
at 692 (quoting Cuyler, 446 U.S. at 348, 100 S. Ct. 1708). Instead, Jefferson cites to authority
which is either not relevant to Jefferson’s case or position in an attempt to convince this Court
that there was an actual conflict in Jefferson’s case that required him to waive such a conflict.
Here, Jefferson submitted a bar complaint received by the Nevada State Bar where the
Bar apparently reéeived it on October 18, 2011. Jefferson stated in the complaint that he was
“having a bit of an issue” with his attorney. Exhibit A attached to Supplemental Petition. “A
bit of an issue” is not an actual conflict. Jefferson goes on to say that when his attorney visited
him, he “either ‘lightly’ verbally abuses him or ignores his outlook.” Id. Jefferson then alleges
that trial counsel told him on October 11, 2011, that “people like [Jefferson] belong in hell not
prison.” Id. Jefferson then went on to speculate why trial counsel allegedly made this comment,
it could be due either to the serious charges Jefferson was facing of sexually assaulting his 5
year-old daughter or because Jefferson is African-American. Id. Notably, in Jefferson’s
Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel filed on October 19, 2011,
Jefferson never stated this at all. Even if the Motion was drafted prior to October 11, 2011, at
tﬁe hearing for Jefferson’s Motion, which post-dated the alleged bar complaint, Jefferson never
once raised this issue. TT, Nov. 1, 2011, p.3.
i
/]

20

000195




o 0 N N A W -

[ Y O o T S e S S T T )
BN U REBRNBREEBES 3 &a& R 0 = 5

Instead, Jefferson took the opportunity he had to alert the Court as to the issues with
trial counsel to raise three issues regarding why he wanted new counsel: 1) trial counsel failed
to subpoena employment records; 2) trial counsel failed to call Jefferson’s family members;
and he failed to provide Jefferson with the full discovery in the case. Id. Yet, Jefferson expects
this Court to believe that trial counsel made the statement, “people like [Jefferson] belong in
hell not prison,” yet he never once mentioned this to the Court when he had the chance.

Further, in his own exhibits to his instant Petition, Jefferson attached two letters he
allegedly sent to Clark County Public Defender Phil Kohn. However, again, he never raised
this statement in the letters to Kohn. Instead, Jefferson raises issues regarding trial strategy.
The letters to Kohn are dated March 28, 2012, and May 22, 2012—well after the alleged
statement was made.

Jefferson never filed any sort of motion with the Court nor did he ever raise the issue.
Again, Jefferson expects this Court to believe that trial counsel made this statement when he
never raised it with the Court nor with Kohn. There is no indication that trial counsel was even
aware that Jefferson allegedly sent these letters to Kohn.

At the hearing on Jefferson’s Motion, trial counsel stated that despite Jefferson filing
his Motion, he wanted “what’s best for [Jefferson].” TT, Nov. 1, 2011, p.2. Further, the Nevada
Supreme Court held that Jefferson’s conflict with counsel was “minimal” and easily resolved.

Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 15. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson has not shown error

based on a conflict of interest because he has not shown that counsel “‘actively represented
conflicting interests’ and that ‘an actual conflict of interest adversely affected his lawyer’s
performance.’” Thus, this Court denies this claim.
VII. JEFFERSON RECEIVED EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE
COUNSEL
For claims of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, the prejudice prong is slightly
different. Jefferson must demonstrate that the omitted issue would have a reasonable
probability of success on appeal. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114
(1997); Lara v. State, 120 Nev. 177, 184, 87 P.3d 528, 532 (2004). Appellate counsel is not
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required to raise every non-frivolous issue on appeal. Jones v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-54,
103 S. Ct. 3308, 3312-14 (1983). After all, appellate counsel may well be more effective by
not raising every conceivable issue on appeal. Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784 P.2d 951,
953 (1989).

GROUND 8(A) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to

adequately present “Miranda violations.” Petition at 25. However, Jefferson fails to set forth

exactly what it is that appellate counsel should have raised. Jefferson alleges that appellate
counsel should have raised other alleged issues related to Jefferson’s confession such as that
he was never read his Miranda rights. However, contrary to Jefferson’s claim, Detectives did
give Jefferson his Miranda rights prior to questioning him, thus, Jefferson’s claim is belied by
the record. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 3.

Appellate counsel is not required to raise every non-frivolous issue on appeal. Jones,
463 U.S. at 751-54, 103 S. Ct. at 3312-14. Because Jefferson was read his Miranda rights, this
Court finds that trial counsel and then appellate counsel raised the issue they thought was best

in relation to the confession. Moreover, appellate counsel did raise the issue that Jefferson did

not properly waive his Miranda rights; however, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that

this argument lacked merit. Jefferson v. State, No. 62120 at 4, fn.1. Thus, this Court finds that

any claim that Jefferson did not understand he was in police custody would have been
unsuccessful. Again, appellate counsel raised the best issue given the facts surrounding
Jefferson’s confession and this Court finds that counsel cannot be faulted for not raising every

colorable argument Jefferson believes appellate counsel should have raised. Further, this Court

finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable

probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev.
at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

GROUND 8(B) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
present that the State knowingly used perjured testimony through Detective Katowich.
Jefferson cites to two pages of Katowich’s testimony wherein he testified that CJ in fact did

have a forensic interview. This Court finds that Jefferson’s allegation is bare and does not |
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warrant relief. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue
would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923
P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

Jefferson also argues that appellate counsel failed to “direct the court to the fact that the
prosecution suborned perjury by forcing CJ to change testimony to prove guilt of the
petitioner.” Petition at 26. This Court finds that appellate counsel cannot be faulted for not
raising a meritless, unsubstantiated allegation. Appellate counsel did raise the issue of
prosecutorial misconduct alleging that the State had impermissibly, repeatedly led CJ and
“supplied the preferred answers.” See AOB at 21-22. This Court finds that Jefferson fails to
set forth what more appellate counsel should have raised. Moreover, this Court finds that
Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability
of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87
P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.

GROUND 8(C) - Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
adequately present the issue of the denial of his pro se Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint
Alternate Counsel. Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel should have elaborated in the
argument that the State also made argument during the hearing on Jefferson’s Motion and was
“culpable in the ineffective assistance of counsel.” Petition at 27.

This Court finds that Jefferson’s argument is meritless and belied by the record. The
State did not argue during this hearing. Upon review of the transcript related to Jefferson’s
Motion, there is 1 paragraph in the 6 pages of argument (the remainder of the transcript does
not pertain to Jefferson’s Motion) attributable to the State. TT, Nov. 1,2011, p.6 at 12-17. The
State did not take a position or argue in regards to Jefferson’s Motion. Leading up to the State’s
statement, Jefferson had indicated to the Court that he wanted to terminate Mr. Cox because
he failed to get employment records and failed to make phone calls to Jefferson’s family. Id.
at p.3. Mr. Cox indicated that he did not think the employment records were relevant to
Jefferson’s defense in the case. Id. at pp.5-6. This was especially true in light of the fact that
there was no specific time period pled in the charging document. Id. at p.6. As a result of this
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1| exchange, the State simply advised the Court that Jefferson had stated in his statement to police
2 || that he had lost his job. Id, Thus, Jefferson’s complaint that he wanted the Court to dismiss
3 || defense counsel because counsel failed to get Jefferson’s employment records was nonsensical
4 || as the employment records were not relevant to Jefferson’s defense as Jefferson, by his own
5 || admission, was unemployed when he sexually abused his daughter.
6 The Court finds that this was a non-issue and appellate counsel cannot be faulted for
7 || failing to raise a meritless issue. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate
8 |l that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey,
9 || 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim
10 || is denied.
11 | GROUND 8(D) — Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
12 || present the issue raised supra Ground 7(C)—Jefferson alleges “structural error” in regards to
13 || the Court’s statement to the jury panel. This Court finds that appellate counsel did not raise
14 || this issue because it was a non-issue with no probability of success on appeal. See supra
15 | Ground 7(C). This was a non-issue and appellate counsel cannot be faulted for failing to raise
16 | a meritless issue. Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted
17 |{ issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998,
18 || 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.
19 GROUND 8(E) - Jefferson alleges that appellate counsel was ineffective for failing to
20 || present the issues: (1) CJ’s brother testified without being at the evidentiary hearing to
21 || determine the reliability of his statements; (2) the State “discredited” CJ’s mother’s hearsay
22 | statement, yet used her as a witness; and (3) Jefferson was precluded from “adequately” cross-
23 || examining CJ on hearsay that conflicted because CJ was excused as a witness. All of
24 | Jefferson’s arguments fail.
25 First, Jefferson seems to be arguing that CJ’s brother should not have been able to testify
26 || about CJ’s disclosure to their mother. These statements relate to Jefferson’s Motion to
' 27 || Preclude Inadmissible 51.385 Evidence, see supra Ground 7(B). This Court finds that
28 || Jefferson’s argument is belied by the record as appellate counsel did raise this claim. Hargrove,
24
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100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225; see also AOB at 39-41. As such, this claim is denied.

Jefferson’s second argument within this Ground is a meritless, non-issue. As such, this
Court finds that appellate counsel cannot be faulted for not raising the issue that the State, in
Jefferson’s opinion, “discredited” CJ’s mother’s hearsay statement, yet used her as a witness.
During defense closing, defense counsel specifically made an allegation that CJ’s mother lied
about the last time that Jefferson sexually assaulted CJ and that the “story changed.” TT, Aug.
8, 2012, p.93. This was in regards to why Dr. Vergara did not perform a sexual examination

kit. In response to this, during rebuttal, the State argued, in relevant part:

Detective Demas specifically told the doctor not to collect the
DNA because the last abuse was beyond the minimum three to, at
the max, five-day time frame. [CJ’s brother] had said it’d been
more than two weeks since he last saw his dad take his sister into
the bedroom, and the detective learned from [CJ] during that
interview that it’d been over a week since the last abuse occurred. .

And we heard from the detective about this three-day, at the most,
five-day time frame in which DNA can be coilected. And we
actually heard sgeciﬁcally from Dr. Vergara that really it needs to
be less than 72 hours; less than three days before there can be any
kind of legitimate chance of collecting DNA.

Now, the defense called Mr. Teague, the ambulance driver, to
come in here, the ambulance -- the paramedic in the ambulance, to
talk about [CJ’s mother’s] statement to him on -- about the date of
September 11'". Remember, he never talked to EEJ . This is not
something that [CJ] told him. Detective Demas talked -- Detective
Katowich talked directly to [CJ], but [Mr. Teague] never did. He
simply obtained the statement from Cindy, and Cindy bad told him
about the date of September 11, 2010.

So, are we to believe that [CJ] said to her mom, yeah, mom the last
time it happened? Is that - is that what we’re §u;t>€osed to believe?
Does that make sense? What makes sense is that ﬁ.g told her
mother, the last time it happened, you were at work. her mom
thought about, okay, when’s the last day I worked? September
11" 2010, so that’s when she tells the paramedic.

TT, Aug. 8, 2012, p. 111.

Thus, the Court finds that the State never discredited CJ’s mother. Rather, the State
argued that it made no sense that this 5 year-old victim told her mom a specific date when
telling her about the sexual abuse. Rather, it made sense that CJ’s mother assumed this was

the date, based on the manner in which CJ disclosed. Nothing within the State’s argument
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“discredited” CJ’s mother. Further, this Court finds that it is up to the State how to present its
case, not the defendant. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson could not have raised the issue
that the State, allegedly, “discredited” CJ’s mother, “yet presented her as a witness to recount
hearsay.” This Court finds that this non-issue would have had no chance of success on appeal.
Further, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have
had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998,923 P.2dat 1114;
Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.
Third, Jefferson alleges that he was precluded from “adequately” cross-examining CJ
on hearsay that conflicted because CJ was excused as a witness. This Court finds that this is a
non-specific bare allegation. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225. This Court finds that
Jefferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability
of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87
P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied.
GROUND 8(D)- Jefferson alleges substantive claims that are waived and must be dismissed
pursuant to NRS 34.810. See also Pellegrini, 117 Nev. at 882, 34 P.3d at 534. Jefferson also

alleges that appellate counsel should have presented actual innocence based on CJ’s statement
to police, see supra Ground 7(B); a bare allegation that the State demanded CIJ alter her
testimony; and the lack of an accurate medical observation, see supra Ground 7(H).

The United States Supreme Court has held that in order for a defendant to succeed based
on a claim of actual innocence, he must prove that it is more likely than not that no reasonable
juror would have convicted him in light of the new evidence’ presented in habeas
proceedings.” Calderon v. Thompson, 523 U.S. 538, 560, 118 S. Ct. 1489, 1503 (1998)
(quoting Schlup v. Delo, 513 U.S. 298, 327, 115 S. Ct. 851, 867 (1995)). Procedufally barred
claims may be considered on the merits, only if the claim of actual innocence is sufficient to |
bring the petitioner within the narrow class of cases implicating a fundamental miscarriage of
justice. Schlup, 513 U.S. at 314 115 S. Ct. at 861). This Court finds that Jefferson fails to set
forth any new evidence that would have made it more likely than not that no reasonable juror

would have convicted him. As such, this Court finds that Jefferson fails to demonstrate that
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the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112
Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev. at 184, 87 P.3d at 532.

Appellate counsel did raise the issue of sufficiency of the evidence. Within this
argument, appellaté counsel raised issues regarding alleged inconsistenciés in witness
statements, the lack of physical evidence, the alleged unreliébility of Jefferson’s confession,
and the fact that CJ never testified as to the any acts of lewdness. The Nevada Supreme Court
could have agreed and reversed Jefferson’s convictions, but it did not. As such, this Court finds
that J éfferson fails to demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable
probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114; Lara, 120 Nev.
at 184, 87 P.3d at 532. As such, this claim is denied. A
VIII. JEFFERSON IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34,770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. It reads:

1.  The judge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and
all supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A petitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2. If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he shall

dismiss the petition without a hearing.
3. If the judge or justice determines that an evidentiary
hearing is required, he shall grant the writ and shall set a date for
the hearing.
 The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.
1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002).

However, a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing only if his petition is supported by

specific factual allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual
allegations are repelled by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605
In the instant case, this Court finds that Jefferson’s arguments are waived and/or barred

by the law of the case and/or meritless. To the extent he raises issues that the Court could

address on the merits, this Court finds that his arguments are nevertheless belied by the record
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1 || orinsufficient to warrant relief. As such, this Court finds that there is no need to expand the
2 " record to resolve Jefferson’s Petition, his request for an evidentiary hearing is denied.
3 | IX. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT WARRANT REVERSAL
4 The Nevada Supreme Court has not endorsed application of its direct appeal cumulative
5 || error standard to the post-conviction Strickland context. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243,
6 || 259,212 P.3d 307,318 (2009). Nor should cumulative error apply on post-conviction review.
7 || Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134, 1275 S.
8 || Ct. 980 (2007) (“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of errors,
9 || none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”)
10 Nevertheless, even if cumulative error review is available, such a finding in the context
11 || of a Strickland claim is extraordinarily rare. See, e.g., Harris by & Through Ramseyer v.
12 || Wood, 64 F.3d 1432, 1438 (9th Cir. 1995). After all, “[sjurmounting Strickland’s high bar is
13 || neveran easy task,” Padilla, 559 U.S. at 371,130 S. Ct. at 1485, and there can be no cumulative
14 || error where the defendant fails to demonstrate any single violation of Strickland. See, e.g.,
15 || Athey v. State, 106 Nev. 520, 526, 797 P.2d 956 (1990) (“[B]ecause we find no error . . . the
16 || doctrine does not apply here.”); United States v. Sypher, 684 F.3d 622, 628 (6th Cir. 2012)
17 || (“Where, as here, no individual ruling has been shown to be erroneous, there is no *error’ to
18 || consider, and the cumulative error doctrine does not warrant reversal™); Turner v. Quarterman,
19 || 481 F.3d 292, 301 (5th Cir. 2007) (“where individual allegations of error are not of
20 || constitutional stature or are not errors, there is nothing to cumulate.”) (internal quotation marks
21 || omitted).
22 Here, this Court finds tha; Jefferson has not demonstrated that any of his claims
23 || warrants relief, and as such, there is nothing to cumulate. Therefore, Jefferson’s cumulative
24 || error claim is denied.
25 ||
26 || /
27 | /7
28 ||
28
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Petition for Post-Conviction
Relief shall be, and is, denied.
DATED this day of June, 2016.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

i Chyef Deputy Dlstrlct Attorney
N¢gvada Bar #006545

BY

hjc/OM:SVU
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BRANDON JEFFERSON,
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VS. DEPT. NO.: IV

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

R T T I I N I

Respondent.

NOTICE OF APPEAL
Notice 1s hereby given that BRANDON JEFFERSON, Appellant above named, by and
through his court-appointed attorney of record, MATTHEW LAY, ESQ., of NGUYEN & LAY,
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C-10-268351-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES May 19, 2016
C-10-268351-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Brandon Jefferson
May 19, 2016 11:00 AM Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
HEARD BY: Earley, Kerry COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 16B

COURT CLERK: Skye Endresen

REPORTER: Dana J. Tavaglione

PARTIES
PRESENT: Lay, D. Matthew Attorney for Deft.
Zadrowski, Bernard B. Attorney for State
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Deft. not present, in Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC). Mr. Lay advised he filed a
supplement and requested an evidentiary hearing be set. Counsel submitted. Mr. Zadrowski noted
Court will rule with no oral arguments by either counsel. COURT STATED FINDINGS and
ORDERED, Petition and Supplement DENIED; State to prepare the order to form and content.

NDC

CLERK'S NOTE: A copy of this Minute Order was distributed to:
Brandon Jefferson #1094051

Ely State Prison

P.O. Box 1989
Ely, Nevada 89301 -se5/19/16
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, MAY 19, 2010

wle wle ala wle ala
EAY EAY ~» EAY ~»

THE MARSHAL: Your Honor, we can do
page 25, Case C-268351, State of Nevada vs. Brandon
Jefferson.

THE COURT: oOkay. This 1is Defendant's
Pro Per Petition for writ of Habeas Corpus.

Good morning.

MR. LAY: Good morning, Your Honor.
Matt Lay, appearing on behalf of Mr. Jefferson.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LAY: He's 1ncarcerated in the
Department of Corrections.

THE COURT: He 1is.

MR. LAY: I don't believe he's with us this
morning.

THE COURT: He 1is not.

MR. LAY: I did file a Supplement. I'm
presuming the Court has 1t.

THE COURT: Yes, I have it. Filed
12/22/20157

MR. LAY: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LAY: Our request 1s for an evidentiary

000209
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hearing. Unless the Court has any specific
questions on the petition, I'm prepared to submit
this morning.

MR. ZADROWSKI: The State will submit.

THE COURT: I did this earlier. oOkay. I
did note that you had requested an evidentiary
hearing. All right. I'm ready to rule. I worked
hard. Okay?

MR. LAY: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. okay. The
Defendant's Pro Per Petition for writ of Habeas
corpus --

MR. ZADROWSKI: Oh, I'm sorry, Your Honor.

would Your Honor please make note i1n the
record, make note and put 1t 1n the minute order
that Your Honor 1s ruling with no oral argument by
either counsel.

My concern 1s, because he wasn't brought
down, that that has to be part of the record.

THE COURT: Okay. That's fine.

MR. ZADROWSKI: That's fine.

THE COURT: Do you want to bring him down?

MR. LAY: I don't --

THE COURT: I don't think --

MR. LAY: We don't typically bring down
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defendants for the argument portion. If there's an
evidentiary hearing, of course.

THE COURT: He has to be.

MR. ZADROWSKI: Understood.

THE COURT: All right. But thank you for
doing that. Okay.

The Court finds that, pursuant to
NRS 34.770 and the State, in the case of
"Marshall vs. State" that no evidentiary hearing 1is
necessary on this petition, as i1t can be resolved
without expanding the record.

As to Defendant's Grounds 1 and 2, 1n
support of his position, the Court finds that, as
the Nevada Supreme Court has already considered and
rejected Defendant's argument regarding "Miranda,"
as well as his related argument regarding coercion,
the law of the case doctrine bars Defendant from
rearguing those issues in the instant petition.

Defendant's arguments regarding
prosecutorial misconduct are also barred by the Taw
of the case as the Nevada Supreme Court has
considered and rejected those arguments. Further,
as Defendant failed to offer any good excuse -- any
good cause to excuse his failure to raise those

arguments on direct appeal, Ground 3 of his petition
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1s denied.

Ground 4 of Defendant's petition regarding
allegations of evidentiary error is denied. His
arguments regarding the tainted jury venire could
have been raised on direct appeal but were not.
Thus those arguments are dismissed, pursuant to
NRS 34.810, Subsection (1), Subsection (b),
Subsection (2). Further, his other arguments raised
regarding any alleged evidentiary error are barred
by the Taw of the case.

Ground 5 regarding double jeopardy 1s
similarly denied, pursuant to NRS 34.810,
Subsection (1), Subsection -- it's a small (b),
Subsection (2), and Defendant's argument regarding
redundancy 1s barred by the law of the case.

Ground 6 1s denied as Defendant may not
reargue the sufficiency of the evidence, pursuant to
"LaPierre v. State"” and "Pellegrini v. State.”

Ground 7 regarding ineffective assistance
of trial counsel 1s denied as the Defendant has not
shown that, but for counsel's alleged incompetence,
the results of the proceeding would have been
different.

Further, Defendant has not shown that he

was denied reasonable effective -- reasonably
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effective assistance of counsel, nor that counsel's
conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the
adversarial process that the trial cannot be relied
on as having produced a just result, pursuant to
"Strickland vs. washington.”

Ground 8 regarding ineffective assistance
of appellate counsel 1s denied as Defendant has not
demonstrated that the issues he claimed were
admitted would have had a reasonable probability of
success on appeal, pursuant to "Kirksey v. State."”

Finally, as to the cumulative errors
alleged by the Defendant, Defendant has not
demonstrated that any claim raised warrants relief
and, as such, there i1s nothing to accumulate. Thus
Defendant's cumulative error, I feel 1s also denied.

Therefore, Defendant's petition and the
Supplemental Petition for writ of Habeas Corpus are
both denied.

I would Tike the State to prepare the
order -- and I know this is a lot. I usually ask
for form and content. I don't know i1f you guys do
that in criminal.

MR. ZADROWSKI: The great thing i1s that the
law clerk pool does 1t. So you can order 11t all day

long, and I won't object.
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THE COURT: Okay. well, I would Tike --

MR. ZADROWSKI: I had to do it when I --

THE COURT: -- Counsel to make sure.

MR. ZADROWSKI: I get 1t.

THE COURT: I worked hard on this one.

MR. LAY: They typically send us a copy.

MR. ZADROWSKI: Wwe will. Sure.

THE COURT: Okay. That's all I care about
because 1f you think there's something that's not --
I want to clean this up. I want the best record I
can, especially for this case. Okay.

MR. LAY: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. ZADROWSKI: I always had to do it when
I was a law clerk. So I'm okay with 1t.

THE COURT: oOkay. I'm sure you did your
dues, Mr. zadrowski.

Thank you.

MR. LAY: Thank you.

(The proceedings concluded at 10:45 a.m.)

-000-
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CERTIFTITCATE

STATE OF NEVADA )
)SS:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, Dana J. Tavaglione, RPR, CCR 841, do
hereby certify that I reported the foregoing
proceedings; that the same 1is true and correct as
reflected by my original machine shorthand notes
taken at said time and place before the
Hon. Kerry Earley, District Court Judge, presiding.

Dated at Las vegas, Nevada, this 6th day of

June 2016.

/S/Dana J. Tavaglione

Dana 7J. ?avagT?onE, EPRT CCR NO. 841
Certified Court Reporter
Las Vegas, Nevada
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